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FOX VILLAGE OF Fox CROSSING

e vy e S eter we L

September 20, 2023

Fox Crossing Village Board of Trustees
Village of Fox Crossing Residents:

The 2022 Annual Comprehensive Financial Repont (ACFR) of the Village of Fox Crossing (Village)
was prepared by the Finance Department, Fiscal year 2022 was a wondertul year financially, with an
increase 1o fund balance. Please note, as of January 1, 2017, the Town of Menasha financially was
incorporated into the Village of Fox Crossing. As such, this will be the sixth ACFR prepared as the
Village of Fox Crossing. Due to this significant change, please note that all historic financial data
used, prior to 2017, for companson purposes 15 from the Town of Menasha’s financial information
Please see the history of the Village for more information on the historic process needed 1o accomplish
this amazing endeavor.

Management Representations

Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data, and the completeness and faimess of the presentation,
including all disclosures, rests with the Village. To the best of my knowledge and beliel, the data is
accurate in all matenal respects and is reported in a manner designed to fairly present the financial
position and results of operations of the various funds of the Village. All disclosures necessary to
enable the reader to gain an understanding of the Village™s financial activities have been included,

The Reporting Entity

The Village provides a full range of services, including police and fire protection; construction and
maintenance of highwavs, streets, trails, water, sewer and stormwater systems, and other infrastructure
facilities; garbage and recycling services; community development services; and park and recreational
activities. The Fox Crossing Utlities, consisting of water, sewer, and stormwater are reported as
enterprise funds of the primarv government. Also included are activities of the Police and Fire
Commission, Park Commission, and Planning Commission, and other smaller boards and commissions
over which the Village Board of Trustees exercises or has the ability to exercise direct admimistrative
authority and/or responsibility. The Neenah Joint School District, Menasha Joint School District,
Appleton Area School District, Fox West Regional Sewerape Commission, Meenah-Menasha
Sewerage Commission, and Fox Vallev Technical College do not meet the established cnitena for
inclusion in the reporting entity and accordingly are excluded from this report, These entities are
independent junisdictions with elected poverming bodies and mimimal financial interdependency with
the Village, Separate audited statements are available from each of these respective agencies.

History of the Village
source: Town of Menasha Bridging the Past with the Future 1833 1o 2003

In the late 1600s and early 1700s, the Fox Indians had a large village about one mile west of Little
Lake Butte des Morts, near the present day Village of Fox Crossing Fritse Park. [t was from this Indian
village that they would come to the shore of the lake and stop the French traders as they followed the
main channel along the western shore of the lake. In 1730, the French authorities decided to rid the
area of Fox Indians and opened up negotiations with the Menominee Indians, who were the Fox Indians
enemies, promising them hunting grounds. It is from the ensuing battle, that the lower lake got its
name, Fuite des Morss, which means “hill of the dead” in French.
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In 1831, the United States Government bought 2.5 million acres of land from the Indians by treaty
which included the land of the Village. The first settler in what 15 now known as the Village of Fox
Crossing was James Ladd. A naove of Vermont, he moved into one of the government block houses.
In 1849, Mr, Ladd constructed a ime-kiln on his farm (west side of Little Lake Butte des Morts), from
which he supplied this entire section of country with brick.

In 1849, the Town of Meenah comprised the area of present day Cities of Meenah and Menasha, Village
of Fox Crossing (previously Town of Menasha), and Town of Neenah. In 1854, the Menasha area
wanted improvements to the railroad svstem in their area, Neenah residents did not feel a need for these
projects and to avoid paying for this, they petitioned the county board for a division. On Apnil 3, 1855,
Town of Menasha officers were elected.

Incorporation of the Town of Menasha into the Village of Fox Crossing:

On January 27, 2014, the Town of Menasha Board of Supervisors established the Town of Menasha
Incorporation Review Ad Hoc Commuttee (Incorporation Committee). This committee was comprised
of three residents from the east side of the commumity and four from the west side. They conducted
ten open meetings, including public input sessions to research, analyvze and discuss the positive and
negative attributes of a potential incorporation effon, Whereas, on October 22, 2014, the Incorporation
Committee voted unanimously to recommend incorporating the west side of the Town of Menasha,
then annex/attach the remaining east side at a future date. On Movember 24, 2014, the Town of
Menasha Board of Supervisors accepted the Incorporation Commuttee’s recommendations,

On December 16, 2014, two Town residents published their notice of intent to circulate a petition to
incorporate the west side of the Town, which is approximately 70% of the Town’s equalized property
value, This action formally imtiated the process o incorporate the west side of the Town into the
Village of Fox Crossing, and was based upon the final report and recommendation of the Incorporation
Committee. The petitioners indicated that they would like to incorporate the west side of the Town
and then reunite the new village with the remaining Town on the east side through the annexation or
attachment process at a later date. While the petitioners needed 50 signatures for a valid petition, they
had over 200 signatures, On May 1, 2015, the incorporation petition was submitted to the Winnebago
County Circuit Court, which validated the petition.

Dunng the first six months of 2015, Town staff worked on creating an incorporation packet to submit
to the State of Wisconsin Department of Admimistration for review, Per Wisconsin State Statutes, the
State of Wisconsin Incorporation Review Board must approve an incorporation petition. Afler the
State's review and several public hearings, on February 2, 2016, the State of Wisconsin Incorporation
Feview Board approved the petition for incorporation of the west side of the Town of Menasha. With
this approval, Winnebago County Judge Karen Seifert placed the required referendum question on the
spring 2016 election ballot, On Apnl 5, 2016, the west side of Town residents overwhelmingly (36%)
approved the referendum. On Apnl 20, 2016, the State of Wisconsin Department ol Administration
Secretary signed the incorporation paperwork officially certifving the incorporation. The election for
the newly formed Village Board was on June 7, 2016. From June through September, the Town and
Village Boards met jointly to handle business within both commumities,  Additionally on August 17,
2016, both Boards passed inter-municipal agreements 1o continue financially as one community. On
September 22, 2016, the Town and Village entered into an agreement for the Village to amend its
borders to attach the Town into the Village, except for three parcels. Those three parcels were annexed
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into the City of Menasha on December 19, 2016,  For financial purposes, January 1, 2017 was used
for the transition date from the Town of Menasha to the Village of Fox Crossing,

History of the Fox Crossing Utilities

Established in 1965, the water and sewer utility was onginally known as the Town of Menasha Sanitary
District No. 4. In 1999, the Town of Menasha Sanitary District No. 4 was dissolved and the Town of
Menasha Unlity District was created. In 2017, the Town of Menasha Utility District was changed to
be departments within the Village called Fox Crossing Utilities, after the Town of Menasha
incorporated into the Village of Fox Crossing.

The stormwater utility, now known as the Fox Crossing Stormwater Utility, was created on August 3,
2009 by the Town of Menasha Town Board of Supervisors, which approved the formation of the Town
of Menasha Stormwater Utility. In 2017, the Town of Menasha Stormwater Utility was changed to
Fox Crossing Stormwater Utility, after the Town of Menasha incorporated into the Village of Fox
Crossing.  The utility was originally formed to create a funding source for the federal and state
unfunded stormwater mandates. The Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources { DNR) had imposed
strict particulate reduction guidelines, which required the construction of several stormwater detention
ponds. Additionally, the Wisconsin Legislature imposed levy himits on municipalities. To meet the
required mandates and to stay within the levy limits, the municipality was forced to create a stormwater
utality to fund the costs associated with stormwater management.

In early 2020, the Village of Fox Crossing entered into an inter-municipal agreement to provide water
service to customers in a Town of Clayton area, and to allow the Town of Clayton Sanitary Dhstrict to
use the Fox Crossing Unlities” infrastructure to tansport sewerage to the regional treatment plant.
With this agreement the Fox Crossing Water Utility expanded its service area into the eastern portion
of the Town of Clayton. The Water Ltility"s west border is now State Highway 76, instead of Clayvton
Avenue.

Owverview of the Village

The Villaze of Fox Crossing comprizes an area of 12.6 square miles and 100 miles of roads, and is
strategically located in East Central Wisconsin in the heart of the Fox River Valley, which is
approximately 90 miles north of Milwaukee, The Village 15 one of seventeen commumities that
comprise the Neenah-Oshkosh Metropolitan Statistical Area (MSA), the sixth largest metropolitan area
in the State of Wisconsin. The Village of Fox Crossing’s population is over 10% of this MSA. The
US41/US10/WIS544] Interchange 15 located in the middle of Fox Crossing, which makes property in
this community desirable for the easv access to the interstate

The Village is home to several major emplovers including: Secura Insurance Companies, Kimberly-
Clark Corporation, Pierce Manufactuning (division of Oshkosh Truck), Great Morthern Corporation,
Community First Credit Union, Hayes Manufacturng, Miron Construction Company Inc., Orthopedic
and Sports Medicine Speciahists (O5MS), Warchouse Specialists, WOW Lomstics, and Essity
Professional Hygiene.

The Village has a president/trustee form of government, with the president and six trustees serving at-
large. The president and trustees are elected for two-year alternating terms.

Fox Crossing 15 a growing community in which urban services are provided in a more rural atmosphere,
with an appointed full-time village manager, who manages the daily operations, The Village provides
for the public safety of its residents through its full-time Police Department. The Police Department
provides patrol, raffic control services, crime prevention and detection, investigations and community
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relations. The Fire Department has five full-ume, twenty two pan-time and forty-six paid-on-call
emplovees. In addition to fire suppression and prevention, the department provides fire inspections,
community education, paramedic level medical trensportation and specialized rescues. The Village's
residents are also provided with waste collection and disposal, snow and ice removal, street and sewer
repairs, recyclable matenal collection, parks mamntenance and recreation activities, i addition to
sewer, water, and stormwater services,

The Village of Fox Crossing 15 located in Winmebago County and borders the Cines of Appleton,
Menasha, and Neenah, the Villages of Greenville and Harrison, and the Towns of Clayton, Grand
Chute, Greenville, Harmson, and MNeenah. The Village has shorefront property on Little Lake Butte
des Morts. The Town of Menasha was the second largest town in the state of Wisconsin, and now the
Village of Fox Crossing 15 the seventh largest village, with a population of 19011, In the ACFR
Statistical Section Schedule 16 of this report, the population growth in Fox Crossing, over the last 10
vears can be viewed.

Fox Crossing is very proud of our spectacular trail system. The Village currently has 1950 miles of
off-road pedestrian transportation trails. The Fox Cities Trestle-Friendship Trail is the largest
pedestman trail crossing a body of water in the State of Wisconsin. It crosses Little Lake Butte des
Monts between the Village of Fox Crossing Fritse Park and the City of Menasha. It includes fishing
platforms, observation platforms, a major pavilion, and a draw bndge to coordinate pedestrnian traffic
with the operation of the locks system. The Trestle Trail is part of the state Friendship Trail, which,
when completed, will run from Manitowoe to Stevens Foint, over 100 miles. Additionally in 2018 the
Cities of Menasha and Meenah completed the trestle trail loop that enables the public to loop Little
Lake Butte des Morts with the Fox Cities Trestle-Friendship Trail and N Lake Street trail connections
in Fox Crossing. This trail loop length is approximately 3.2 miles.

Public school districts serving Village residents are Menasha Joint School District and Meenah Joint
School District with a very small population served by the Appleton Area School Distmct. The
Menasha Joint School Distnict facilibies include one high school, one middle school, six elementary
schools and one community learning center. Student enrollment for 2021-22 is 3 462 FTE students.

MNeenah Jont School District facihities include one high school, two middle schools, ten elementary
schools and an admimstration building. Student enrollment for 2021-22 is 6,791 FTE students. In
2020, voters approved a 51149 million referendum. which included funds to construct a new high
school in the Village of Fox Crossing. The new high school construction has occurred through 2022
with utility infrastructure, road and parking infrastructure, athletic facilities, and large sections of the
main building self completed. The high school will be open in time for the 2023-2024 school vear,

In addition, 5t. Marv’s Catholic School, a parochial school system, provides comprehensive
educational programs. Not only does 5t Mary's Catholic have a high school in the Village of Fox
Crossing, but seven vears ago, St. Mary s Catholic School built their middle school in the village also.

Opportunities for post-secondary and adult continving education are offered by Fox Valley Technical
College (FVTC). In 2014, FVTC opened the Public Safety Training Center for law enforcement, fire,
wildland fire, and EMS students 15 in the bordering community of Grand Chute. The FVTC fire-fighter
traming facility located i nearby Neenah 15 one of only three in the State of Wisconsin, In addition,
Lawrence University, the University of Wisconsin - Oshkosh Fox Cities Campus, the University of
Wisconsin — Oshkosh. and the University of Wisconsin — Green Bay are within easy commuting
distance for Village residents. Marion College, located in Fond du Lac. is a four-year liberal arns
college, which offers classes in nearbv MNeenah.
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The Village maintains one of the lowest tax rates in the Wisconsin Fox Cities area.

TAX RATE
per S 1000 of Value
ABSESSED EQUALILZED
2022 2021 'I_'.'Imngi 022 2021 EhuE
44406854 4040578 (999 4.45 4940 (10L28%)

The 2022 local tax rate was 3445 per 1,000 of equalized value and of assessed value, which can be
seen in the above table. Since the assessment ratio >etween assessed and equalized values was roughly
100%%, the tax rates for both are roughly the same,  The commumity’s equalized tax value on January
I, 2022 mcrepsed 12.6%; whereas, the assessed value increased 5249 mullion or 12.2%, from
£2.036,936,800 to $2, 286,085 000_ Starting in 2018 and effective for 2019 property values, the Village
of Fox Crossing changed our assessment practices by contracting assessing services for annual full
value assessments, instead of just maintenance assessments. Under the maimntenance assessment
approach, a full Village assessment 1s required when the equalized value 15 less than 20% or more than
110% of the assessed value or every 10 years, At an approximate 3225 000 cost, and having properties
values change 35%-40%. the Villagpe of Fox Crossing Board chose to have annual full property
valuations conducted. Over time a dispanty occurs between properties within areas of the community.
A reassessment equalizes out all properties and ensures properties are always at fair and equitable
value, in comparison to all Village properties. By having annual full value assessments completed,
disparity within the village would be minimized. Due to the significant housing market value increases
over the past several vears, the Village has had significant changes in the community value that is now
fully represented in our annual valuation

Economic Condition and Ouilook

The Village s assessment ratio was 100.21% in 2022, compared to 100.34% in 2021, 100.05% in 2020,
G0, B80% i 2009 and 97.03% in 2008, The overall assessment ratio is only shightly more than [100%.
A 100% assessment ratio would mean that the average assessed value of the Village 15 the same as the
average fair market value of the state. The assessment ratio shows that Fox Crossing’s assessed
property values are at the averape property sales values in 2022, This has been the goal since the
Willage started the full value assessment program in 20109, as noted above. All properties are reviewed
annually and values adjusted based on sales and market data, This ensures fairness and equity between
all property owners, Detailed tax information can be viewed in the Statistical Section of this report.

Throughout the year, the Villape of Fox Crossing receives requests for parcel information from title
companies, sellers or purchasers of property. These real estate inquiry letters will let someone know
of municipal liens or 1ssues with the property, In 2022, the Village received 434 property inguires,
compared to 519 in 2021, 542 in 2020, 475 in 2019, 580 in 2018, 600 in 2017, 480 in 2016 and 450 in
2015, This economic indicator shows the real estate market cooling a bit after several vears of very
lowr mortgage interest rates,  The market available homes continues to be low which has kept =ales
prices up. The continued increase in sales prices despite the reduced number of sales, as seen in the
community value increase, indicates that demand 15 still high for people that want to live in the Village
of Fox Crossing.

In 2015, the community created its first Tax Incremental District (TID). TIDs are an economic
development tool for commumities, which allow 100% of the tax incremental value from the
development 1o pay for projects within the TID. Since a TID uses the taxes that normally would go 1o
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all raxing authorities, a five member Joint Review Board (JRB) is created, which has a member from
all tax authorities along with one citizen member. The JEB reviews the project plan, which includes
the development plan, boundaries, economic feasibility, and financing plan for the district. On June
30, 2015, the JEB approved TID #1 for the multi-million dollar corporate headquarters for Community
First Credit Union,  In October 2017, the facility was completed and open for business, This
development includes a regional stormwater detertion pond, in addition 1o the normal infrastructure
needs.

On January 27, 2018, TID#| was amended to include an additional 8 acres. which includes right-of-
way and a parcel for a hotel development by Fox Crossing Hotel Group, LLC, The increment for the
hotel development occurred on the 2019 tax bills.

On March 15, 2016, the Joint Review Board for Tax Incremental District #2 approved the Village's
second TID,  This TID s located within the MeMahon Business Park, which 15 on the comer of
Jacobsen Road and County Highway CB, and encompasses 51,8 acres of property. TID #2 15 prajected
to generate between $11 and $15 million in new tax base during its 20 yvear life, with berween %3 and
£5 million in tax increment during the same time Trame. On July 22, 2019, TID #2 was amended to
include an additional 31.2 acres, for 4 parcels and nghts-of-way, located to the north of the onginal
TID, bordening Cold Spring Road and across W Amencan Drive, for a total TTD of 82,92 acres. The
amended section includes parcels for OSMS Real Estate, LLC, which includes an Orthopedic and
Sports Medicine Clinic. The clinic was completed in 2020 for a full tax incremental value on the 2021
tax hills, for the 2022 budget.

On April 11, 2017, the Joint Review Board for Tax Incremental District #3 approved the Village of
Fox Crossing's third TID. The project encompasszs 68.9 acres of land located to the west of County
Highway CB, just north of the Village Municipal Complex. This TII is for the corporate headquarters
of Secura Insurance Compamies. In 2018, the roundabout on County Highway CB at the entrance to
the new facility was installed, and in 2019, County Road CB from E Shady Ln to County Road BB
was expanded from a two line road to a four line road. The Secura Insurance Companies” headquarters
was completed in 2019, for a full tax mcremental value on the 2020 tax bills, for the 2021 budget.

On January 11, 2021, the Joint Review Board approved Tax Incremental Distnct #5 for a new multi-
family residential project, located on the southwest corner of Clayton Avenue and East Shady Lane on
a 28.64 acres of land. The development will contain at least 200 residential units, with an estimated
project value of at least $5 million; however, the development agreement has incremental incentive
levels for up to 320 millhion in overall project improvements. In 2022, TID #5 incurred the assessment
to have municipal water and sewer main extended to the development and expects to recover the cost
through future increment receipts.

Village growth in large businesses results in an increase of employment and traffic in the village. along
with increased use of amenities such as our trail system. The Village anticipates these numbers to
continue to increase as properties continue to develop in the TIDs.

Another future growth area is expected on the Village's southern border. As mentioned earlier. in
Apnl 2020, a Neenah Joint School District (NJSD) referendum was approved to fund building a new
high school. The 222 acre property site for the high school has been annexed o Village of Fox
Crossing and construction was started in 2021, with the school opening in the fall of 2023, The NISD
high school educates roughly 2.8} students annually. All services for this property, such as police,
fire, water, sewer, etc, will be handled by the Village of Fox Crossing. Since the previous high school
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was not located in the Village, it is anticipated tha! this project will bring more development into our
COMIMUNICY.

Another area that shows the Village's overall economic condition can be seen in building permit
activity, Fiscal vear 2022 showed 965 permits 1ssued, which 1s more than the 10 vear average of 946
permits but less than the 1,080 permits issued in 2021 or the 1,074 permits issued in 2020, Driven
primarily by Meenah High School as mentioned above, the 2022 permits penerated $167 million in
building value, which is $109 million higher than the 10 year average of 58 million, and %130 million
maore than the $38 million in 2021. Based on the mulding activity the large building industry in Fox
Crossing 15 slowing down, but the smaller home improvement projects are sill very high with a lot of
homeowners pulling permits, The largest 2022 project, for 64.5% of the total permits issued, or $108
million of value, is for the new Neenah High School. The second and third largest permits are for
additions to Pierce Manufacturing and expansion and remodeling at the Miron Construction Co.
offices

Unemployment Rate
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As seen in the Statistical Section, Schedule 16 and above, the 2022 average annual unemplovment rate
for the Oshkosh-Neenah Metropolitan Statistical Area (MSA) was 2.5% compared to 3.3% in 2021,
5.5% n 2020, 2.9% in 2019 and 2.7% in 2008, This statistic has a tentatively stable lookout for 2023
for all Communities in the MSA, including the Village. The unemployment levels decreased to the
lowest levels in the last 10 vears; however, there is a strong concern with the housing bubble bursting,
problems with the supply chains and limited customer products creating a national recession.  As can
be seen across the United States, the Coronavirus pandemic greatly affected many businesses with
mandated closures or staffing and customer imitatons,  This resulted in a new ideolosy occurring on
how customers do business; however, not all businesses could change to meet the drastic changes
required during the pandemic. Several small business needed to close down or declare bankruptcy.
All of this affected the unemployment of the country; however, the Village, along with the entire State
of Wisconsin, was not affected as much as other municipalities and states across the United States
The annual 2022 local unemployment rate of 2, 5% continues to be below average for the United States
(3.6% nationally) and the State of Wisconsin (2.9%). The chart above shows the 10 year
unemplovment history.

In Wisconsin, to change water rates, a water rate study must be presented to the Wisconsin Public
Service Commission (PSC) for approval. In 2021, the Village of Crossing finished and submitted the
water rate increase application to the PSC. The review process continued throughout 2022 with many
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additional requests for information, but in December 2022, the PSC approve a 21.5% average rate
increase. This requested rate increase is to ensure rates cover current and projected future costs of the
utility, with the rate changes effective February 15, 2023, As a condition of this rate case, the Village
will need to perform another full rate case review in two vears.

In early 2020, the Village of Fox Crossing entered into an inter-municipal agreement to provide water
service to customers in a Town of Clayton area. and to allow the Town of Clavton Sanitary District to
use the Fox Crossing Utilities” infrastructure to transport sewerage to the regional treatment plant. In
2021, the PSC approved construction of a booster station to facilitate this growth. The booster station
15 active but not considered complete as of the end of 2022 as a few items remain to be completed, at
which point the Town will contribute this asset to Fox Crossing Utilities.  The Town of Clayton has
also entered into agreements to begin building the infrastructure for this expanded service. The first
new customer in the Town of Clavton was connected at the end of 2021 with many new residential,
apartment, and commercial customers added through 2022,

In addition to current economic growth, there has also been strong financial growth in the Village over
the last several vears. Ower the past 10 years, the general fund balance has increased over $3_5 million,
which can be seen in the Statistical Section, Schedule 4. Even with the worldwide 2020 COVID
pandemic, the Village had another amazing year, 2021 and 2022 has seen the US economy with
continual unemployment causing staffing 1ssues st many employers, very high increases in gas and
supply costs, and consistent supply chain timing issues, the Village of Fox Crossing was able to
increase the general fund balance by $411.283, in addition to the $237.804 increase in 2021 and the
5351, 406 increase i 2020,

This great financial feat was accomplished through expenditure savings; however, some of these
savings came with an operational cost. In 2022, some departments were short staffed, which caused
problems performing normal required work, and supply chain issues caused timing i1ssues with
accomplishing projects.

The Village of Fox Crossing is very proud of its dedicated work force, who managed to accomplish
priority tasks and projects despite the state of the L'S economy and the continuation of the world-wide
COVID situation, The Village Board acknowledges the difficult and challenging vear our departments
had while dealing with the current economic climate, which includes stafling shortages and supply
chain i1ssues. The Fox Crossing Village Board and management staff goal is to continue to be fiscally
responsible to the residents while managing operations efficiently.

The 2022 unassigned general fund balance 15 at 28% of the next vear’s general fund expenditures. As
the 2021 vear-end unassigned fund balance plus the forecasted 2022 increase in general fund fund
balance during the 2022 budgzet process was anticipated to be greater than the 30% limit per our policy.
the Board budgeted for a use of fund balance of over $1.1 million in 2023.

Financial Information

Management of the Village is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control structure
designed to ensure that the assets of the Village are protected from loss, theft or misuse and to ensure
that adequate accounting data 15 compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements in
conformity with Generally Aceepted Accounting Principles. The internal control structure 15 designed
to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these objectives are met. The concept of
reasonable assurance recognizes that- (1) the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likelv to
be denved: and (2) the wvaluation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by
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management.  As a recipient of federal, state, and county financial grants, the Village is also
responsible for assuring that adequate intermal comtrols are in place to ensure compliance with
applicable laws and regulations. This system of internal controls is subject to periodic evaluation by
management,

Budgetary Controls

The Village maintains strong budgetary controls over its funds. The objective of these controls is to
ensure safety of funds and compliance with legal provisions incorporated in the annual budget adopted
bwv the Village of Fox Crossing Board of Trustees. Annual budgets are adopted for all funds, including
General, Special Revenue, Debt Service, Capital Projects, Equipment Replacement, Water Utility,
Sewer Utlity, and Stormwater Unlity funds. For the General Fund, the budget is adopted at a
department/activity level. The Village also maintains an encumbrance accounting system as one
technique of accomplishing budgetary control. Encumbered amounts lapse at year-end; however,
encumbrances can be reappropriated as part of the following year’s budget through formal resolution,
For unbudgeted expenditures, the Village Board may at any ume, by a 2/3 vote of the entire
membership, transfer any portion of an unencumbered balance of an appropriation to any other
department/activity or from one fund to another fund.

Purchasing Policy

The Village of Fox Crossing not only adheres to the above budget policy, but also maintains a tiered
purchasing policy. For any product purchase below $500, the deparmment head has complete authority
for purchasing. For any purchase $501 - $1,000, the Finance Director and department head review
and authonize the purchase. For any purchase over 51,000, the Village Manager, Finance Director, and
Department Head all need to review and approve the purchase. These approval levels are integrated
into the computerized purchase order svstem that the Village of Fox Crossing maintains through its
accounting software. Additionally, before most checks are issued, the Village of Fox Crossing Board
of Trustees or the authorized commission has to approve the check 1ssue. There are a few exceptions,
which are listed in our finance policy, such as dabt service payments and payroll; however, these
exceptions are still submitted to the Village Board 1o review for their approval.

Long-term Planning

Within the Capital Projects Fund budget, the Village approves a five-vear improvement program, This
program includes roads, trails, park, water, sewer, and stormwater infrastructure, Independently, the
Park and Recreation Department prepares a Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation Plan that is used to
guide the development of our park and recreation areas. Information from the outdoor plan assists in
the preparation of the capital projects five vear improvement plan, Ower 15 years ago, the Village of
Fox Crossing created an equipment replacement fund for large expenditures, such as vehicles. This
account 15 funded annually to have a consistent budget without fluctuations due to eguipment
purchases. The intention of this fund is to alleviate the need to borrow for the replacement of current
equipment and vehicles, by using cash-on-hand. This will save the community money by eliminating
the need to borrow and incur debt interest costs, along wiath the ability to have interest earmings on
these funds. Each year the Village of Fox Crossing Board of Trustees allocates monies to fund this
program. As of December 31, 2022 there was $5 9 million in the Equipment Replacement Fund. This
fund ensures money availability for roughly 15 million in replacement value for future purchases of
capital vehicles and equipment, Since the cost to replace equipment has been significantly increasing
over the past few year, this fund has also has increased to account for these costs.  The expenditures
over the past few vears ideally show the fund performing as anticipated, since the overall costs to the
village remained consistent, even though equipment expenditures varied drastically.
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In May 2008, a Sustainability Committee was formed by the Board. This committee has been charged
with exploring sustainability in all aspects of Village functions, both internal and external. The goal 15
to create a healthier and more economically efficient place to live. For the last ten years, this committee
has undertaken many projects, including holding semi-annual electronics recveling events here at the
Village in the spring and fall and creating community gardens at Schildt Park and Wittmann Park, Our
first community garden was at Schildt Park. There were originally eight garden plots and a teaching
garden; there are now 33 plots, all of which are remted. and two teaching gardens. There is currently a
waiting list for garden plots at Schilde Park. In 2017, the Committee received approval from the Parks
Commission to create a second garden at Wittmann Park. This garden opened in 2018, and also has all
plots rented out. The purpose of the community and teaching gardens is to promote and educate
residents about sustainable local, organic food preduction and healthy eating. These effonts will be
continued in 2023 to further the Committee’s poal of promoting sustainable food production and
healthy living.

Enterprise Operations

The Village's enterprise operations are comprised of three separate and distinct activities: Water
Utility, Sewer Unlity, and Stormwater Utility. The Stormwater Utility encompasses the entire Village
of Fox Crossing; however, it does not extend past our borders hike the Water and Sewer Litihty District
does, The Water and Sewer Utility Dhstrict borders include some customers from the cities of
Appleton, Menasha, and Neenah, Village of Harnison, and the towns of Clayton, Neenah and Harrison.

Woater Uility

The Water Utility adheres to regulations from the Wisconsin Public Service Commission (PSC). Since
the Village is divided by Little Lake Butte des Mouts, there are two separate systems. The east side of
the Water Utility uses approximately an equal combination of well water and surface water. Currently,
the surface water is purchased from the City of Menasha Utility, which pumps the water from Lake
Winnebago. In 2022, the Unlity purchased 16% of total pumped water from the City of Menasha
compared to 14% in 2021, 14% in 2020, 17% in 2019, and 17% in 2018, The Water Unlity s water
comes from four deep wells on the west side and the two deep wells on the east side. The Water Utility
maintains three 300000 zallon water towers, three concrete reservoirs with three million zallon
capacity each, and over 130 miles of water mains. In 2022, the Village had 607 million gallons of
water sold, compared to 638 million in 2021, 687 million in 2020, 666 million in 2019, 696 million in
2018, and 709 million in 2017,

Sewer Uiliny

Due to the two utility systems on each side of the lake, the collection of wastewater flows to two
treatment facilities. The Village of Fox Crossing does not own or operate either of these facilities;
however, the Village of Fox Crossing Board of Trustees appoints Utility Commissioners to serve on
the boards of the sewerage commissions. The Sewer Utility maintains and operates eight lift stations
and approximately 125 miles of sewer mains,

Stormwarer Urility

On August 3, 2009, the Stormwater Utility was created as a funding source for unfunded federal and
state stormwater mandates. The Wisconsin Department of Matural Resources has imposed strict
particulate reduction gudelines, which require the construction of several stormwater detention ponds
Addinonally, the Wisconsin Legislature has imposed levy Limits on mumicipalines. To meet the
required mandates and to stay within our levy limitzs, the municipality was forced to create a stormwater
utility to fund the costs associated with stormwater management. Even though this utility was created
in 200K the charges to the property owners did not begin until January 1, 20010, Due to the delay in
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revenue collection, the General Fund advanced the Stormwater Utility for its 2009 operating costs.
Additionally, the governmental fund has transferrad the associated stormwater assets and dabt liability
to this proprietary fund. The debt pavments previously paid on the outstanding debt issues for
stormwater associated assets are required to be repaid to the general fund over the next several vears,
along with the advance for stormwater utility operations. Currently, the Stormwater Utility has seven
large regional wet ponds and 52 miles of storm mains, The remaining road infrastructure is supponted
bw culvert and ditching systems.

Debt Administration
For many years, the Village of Fox Crossing has continued to maintain its high Aa2 rating for General
Obligation ((G0) debt and an Al rating for Reverwe Bonds from Moody's Investors Services, The
Village was last rated in October 2020 for Revenue Bonds and June 2022 for GO Notes. At that time,
Moody's Investors Service reaffirmed Fox Crossing’s high Aa2 rating for General Obligation debt and
an Al rating for revenue bonds, Credit strengths hsted include:

* Solid Financial position supported by strong reserves and liquidity

*  (Growing tax base

e Fox Crossing’s Water and Sewer Enterprise has a broad service area that extends beyond the

village boarders

Under Wisconsin statutes, general obligation debt is subject to a legal limitation based on 5% of total
equalized value to real and personal property.  As of December 31, 2022, the Village's gross general
obligation debt of $32,950,126 was well below the legal limit of $114,258 080 ({29%), and deln per
capita equaled $1,733. The Village adheres to an ageressive debt repavment policy: ten vears for
general obligation debt and twenty years for mos: utility debt, which can include revenue bonds or
general obligation notes,

The majority of the debt service fund balance comes from Fox Crossing’s special assessment policy,
which is to finance the amount due from a resident over a ten year period, and to use these monies over
the life of the debt to offset the liability. However, if a resident pays their special assessment liability
prior to the end of the assessment peniod, these monies accumulate in the debt service fund balance
Therefore each year, the Village uses these prepayments of special assessments to offset the debt
payment, over the 10 vear period, as though the prepayvment never occurred.

The Village of Fox Crossing 15 very serious about maimmtaiming debt coverage requirements.  Fox
Crossing Water and Sewer Utilities are required to maintain earnings which are greater than 1,25 times
the annual debt service of the revenue bonds, For 2022, the Village utility operations resulted in 1.79
fimes coverage.

Independent Audit

State Statutes require an audit by independent ceriified public accoumants. The Village selected the
accounting firm of KerberRose SC. The independent auditors” report is included in the Financial
Section of this report.  The independent auditors” report is on the financial statements of the
wovernmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaming fund
information of the Village of Fox Crossing.

Reporting Achievements

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the Village of Fox Crossing for
its comprehensive annual financial repont for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2021, In order to be
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awarded a Centificate of Achievement, a government must publish an easily readable and efficiently
organized comprehensive annual financial report. This report must satisfy both generally accepted
accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement 15 valid for a period of one year only. We behieve that our current
comprehensive annual financial report continues ‘o meet the Certificate of Achievement Program's
requirements, and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.

Acknowledgments

The ACFRE 15 a major financial achievement for the Village of Fox Crossing, The time consuming
preparation of this document on a timely basis was made possible by the efficient and dedicated
services of the entire staff of the Village's Finance Department, our auditors, KerberRose SC, and
vanous other Village personnel. 1 would like to express my sincere appreciation to all who assisted
and contributed to its preparation,

Fox Crossing is very proud of our staff and the cortinued dedication to our cost saving goals. As vou
can see by our general fund budget to actual comparison and our general fund balance increase, the
Village of Fox Crossing reabzed significant savings and had more revenue than anticipated. For more
detailed financial highlights, please read the narrative introduction, overview and analysis found in the
management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A) inthe ACFRs financial section. In closing, we would
like to thank the Village Board for their leadership and support in planning and conducting the financial
operations of the Villaze in a responsible and progressive manner.

Sincerely,
Jeffrey Sturgell Jeremy A Searl. CPA
Village Manager Finance Director
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT



W KerberRose

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Vilage Board
Village of Fox Crossing
Fox Crossing, Wisconsin

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinions

We have audited the accompanying finencial statements of the governmental aclivities, the business-iype
activities, sach major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Vilage of Fox Crossing,
Wisconsin (Village), as of and for the year ended December 31, 2022, and the related notes to the financial

slatements, which collectively comprise Village of Fox Crossing, Wisconsin's basic financial stalements as listed
in the table of contents,

In cur opinion, the financial statemants refarred to above present fairly, in all matenial respacts, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major furnd, and the aggregate
ramaining fund information of the Vilage of Fox Crossing, Wisconsin, as of December 31, 2022, and the
respeciive changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principlas genarally accapled in the United States of Amarica.

Basis for Opinions

We conductad our audif in accordancea with auditing standards generally asccepted in the United States of Amanca
and the standards applicable to financial audits cortained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Complraller Ganeral of the United States. Our responsibilities undar those standards are further dascribed in tha
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Ausdit of the Financisl Statements section of our report. We are required to be
indapendant of Village of Fox Crossing, Wisconsin and fo maat our ather ethical responsibilifies, in accordancs with
the relevant ethical reguirements relating to our audit We believe that the audit evidence we have obiained is
sufficiant and appropriate to provide a bases for owr audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsibla for the preparation and lair presentation of the financial stalements in accordance
with accounting principles generally acceptad in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation,
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to frawd or error,

In preparing the financial statements, managemeant is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events,
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Village of Fox Crossing, Wisconsin's ability 1o
continue as a going concern for twelve months beyvand the financial statement date, including any currently known
information that may raise substantial doubt shorlly thereafler.

EerherRose 5.0 1'5' l BDO

wowrw kerberrose com
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To the Village Board
Villags of Fox Crassing, Wisconsin

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statemenits

Dur objectves are to oblain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material missiatemeant, whether due to fraud or emor, and o issue an suditors’ report that includes our opinions,
Feasonable assurance i a high level of assurance bu? i nol absolule assurance and therefore is nol a guarantes
that an audif conducted in accordance with generaly accepted sudiling standards and Govemment Audifing
Standards will always delect a materal misstatemeant whan it exists. The risk of nol detecting a material misstatemant
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, &s fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intenfional
omissions, misrepresantations, or the override of internal contral. Misstalements are considered matenal if there iz a
substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reascnable
user based on the financial statemeants.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepled auditing standards and Governmen! Auditirg
Standards, we;

Exercise professional judgment and maintzin professional skeplicism throughout the audif
Identify and assess the nsks of matanal missiatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
emmor, and design and perform audit procadures responsive to those risks, Such procedures include
axamining. on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statemenis.

= Dbtain an understanding of intermal control reevant to the audit in order {o design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the cireumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
Village of Fox Crossing, Wisconsin's infernal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

# Evaluate lhe appropriatenass of accounting policies used and the reasonablenass of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements,

& Conclude whether, in our jJudgrmant, there are conditions of events, considered in the aggregate, that raisa
substantial doubt about Village of Fox Crossing, Wisconsin's ability to continuee as a going concern for a
reasonable panod of tima.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and fiming of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we idenfified
during the audit.

Reguired Supplemantary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America reguire that the management’s discussion
and analysis on pages 189 - 48 the schedulas of employver's proportionate share of the net pansion kability (asset) and
emplover confributions = Wisconsin Retirement Systerr, schedule of changes in employer's other post-employment
benefils liabilty and relatad ratios, defailed schadule of revenuas and ofher financing sources — budget and actual -
general fund and detalled schedule of expandiures and ather financing use — budget and actual — general fund on
pages 101 = 105 be presenied to supplement the basic financial statements. Such infarmation is the responsibility of
managemant and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, i required by the Govemnmental Accounting
Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
statements in an appropriate cperational, acanomic, or historical conlext. We have applied cerain limited proceduras
to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of Amenca, which consisted of inguines of management about the methods of preparing the information and
comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial
statements, and other Knowledge we oblained during cur audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express
an opinion or provide any assurance on the informaton because the limited procedures do nol provide us with
sufficlent evidence to exprass an opinion or provide any assurance.
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To the Village Board
Villags of Fox Crassing, Wisconsin

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions an the financial statemants that collectvely comprisa
Village of Fox Crossing, Wisconsin's basic financial statzments. The supplementary information, as listed in the table
of confanis, is presanied for purposas of addibional analysis and 5 nof a8 reguired part of the basic financial
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the
underlying accounting and other records usad 1o prepare the basic financial stalemeanis.

This information, except for the budgatary amounis, has been subjectad ta the audiing procadures applied in the
audit of the basic financial statements and cerfain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling swch
infarmaton diractly {o the undearlying accounting and other records usad to prepare the basic financial statements or
to the basic financial statements themsehes, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accapled in the Uniled States of Amerca, |n our apinion, the supplementary information, axcept the
budgetary amounts on which we express no opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic
financial statements as a whale,

Other Information

Management s responsibla for the other information included in the annual reporl. The other information comprises
the introductory and statistical sections, but does not include the basic financial statements and our auditors” report
thereon. Our opinions on the basic financial statements do nol cover the other information, and we do nol express
and opinion or any form of assurance theraon,

In connection with ouwr audit of the basic financial statements, owr responsikility is to read the other information and
conskder whether a material inconsislency axisls between the olher information and the basic financial slatements, or
the other information otherwise appears to be malerally misstated, If, based on the work performed, we conclude that
an uncorected malerial misstatament of the ather information exists, we are reguired to describe iLin our report.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Governmearnt Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated September 20, 2023, on
our consideration of the Village's internal control over firancial reporting and on our test of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreaments and other matters. The purpose of that report s
solely to describe the scope of our festing of internal control cwer financial reporting and compliance and the results of
that testing, and nol 1o provide an opinkon on the effectveness of Village of Fox Crossing, Wisconsin's internal contral
over financial reporting or on compliance. The repart 5 an integral part of an audit peformed in accordance with
Governmen! Auditing Standards in considanng Village of Fox Cressing, Wisconsin's intemal confrol over financial
reporting and compliancs,

Aerberfmse SC

KerberRose SC

Certified Public Accountants
Oshkosh, Wisconsin
Sepltember 20, 2023
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VILLAGE OF FOX CROSSING, WISCONSIN

MANAGEMENT ™S DISCUSSION AND AMALYSIS
UNAUDITED
As of and For Year Ended December 31, 2022

As management of the Village of Fox Crossing, Wisconsin, (Village ) we offer readers of the Village's financial
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the Village as of and for the year
ended December 31, 2022. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction
with the Village's financial statements. Please note that the Village of Fox Crossing incorporated from the
Town of Menasha, effective January 1, 2017 for financial purposes. The Town of Menasha's historical
information will be used for companson purposes, i the statistical section,

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

e The water and sewer utilities are required to maintaim eamings which are greater than 1.25 times the annual
debt service of the revenue bonds. The Village is very diligent with maintaining debt coverage, In 2022
the coverage requirement was 52.7 million and the utility generated $1.2 million above the requirement or
1.80 times the annual debt service of the revenue bonds. In 2021 the coverage requirement was 2.7
million and the utility generated %1 million above the requirement or 1.7% times the annual debt service of
the revenue bonds.

* For many vears, the Village of Fox Crossing has continued to maintain its high Aa2 rating for General
Cibligation (GO debt and an Al rating for Revenoue Bonds from Moody™s Investors Services, The Village
was last rated in October 2020 for Revenue Bonds and June 2022 for GO Notes.  Ax that time, Moody s
Investors Service reaffirmed Fox Crossing's high AaZ2 rating for General Obligation debt and an A1 rating
for revenue bonds.

s Asof December 31, 2022, the Village has created five Tax Incremental Financing Districts (T1Ds). TID
#| & TID #3 bwlding phases have completed. TID #2 was amended m 2019 and all scheduled
development has occurred, however, additional vacant land 15 stll available for development. In TID #2
various infrastructure, such as road and storm water improvements were completed in 2022, The
construction phase of T1D #5 started near the end of 2022. 'With the building phases for TID #1, TID #2,
& TID #3 complete, the fund balance remaining in each of the respective Capital Project Funds were
transferred to each TTDs Debt Service Fund.

o Only TID #] and TID #5 have expended more funds than revenue generated. The General Fund has
advanced funds to these TIDs in the amount of 8172357, which is pant of the General Fund Nonspendable
Fund Balance, Advances to Other Funds, to cover the shortfall. The Village expects that these T1Ds will
gventually generate the expected funds to fulfill the TID project costs, including complete repayment of
the General Fund advances.

o [In 2022, the TIDs combined generated $2.200475 in incremental tax revenue resulting in a $203,177
mcrease o TID special revenue fund balance, Compared with 2021, the TIDs combined generated
£2,273,710 in incremental tax revenue resulting in a $476,872 increase in TID special revenue fund
balance. Including the 2022 debt 1ssuance and debt-financed projects. the net result in 2022 15 an overall
increase in TID fund balances totaling 3442 745

e In 2022, the Village utilized the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) funds received in 2021 and 2022 for
varous water utlity infrastructure projects associated with mains around and under interstate highway 41
in anticipation of a State Department of Transportation construction project and with the Rocket Pond
stormwater utility infrastructure project
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VILLAGE OF FOX CROSSING, WISCONSIN

MANAGEMENT'S DISCLUSSION AND ANALYSIS (cont.)
UNAUDITED
As of and For Year Ended December 31, 2022

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS (cont. )

As of the close of the current fiscal vear, the Village of Fox Crossing's povernmental funds reported
combined ending fund balances of $27.8 millhion, an increase of $2_1 million in comparnson with the prior
yvear. The majonty of the change was due to the Equipment Replacement Capital Projects Fund, with a
fund balance merease of 0.9 million. The purpose of this fund 15 to provide a consistent budget funding
for large equipment replacement purchases, as further discussed on page 36.

Under Wisconsin Statutes, Chapter 67, the Village of Fox Crossing’s gross aggregate indebtedness may
not exceed 5% of the equalized value of taxable property located in the Village. For 2022, the Village's
debt capacitv 15 114,258 080, which iz an increase of %128 million from 2021. The total outstanding
general obligation debt at vear end was $32,950,126, or 29% of the possible debt capacity, and is only
1.4% of the Village's equalized value. The Village's debt equates to 51,733 per capita. In 2021, the general
obligation debt was at £30,712,949 or 1.5% of the Village's equalized value. The statutory debt limit
compared to the actual amount of general obligation debt can easily be seen in the graph below.

Available vs Outstanding General Obligation

120,000,000 Debt
100,000,000 -
B0,000,000 -
sognen | ==
20.000.000 St g g e et
& =5 o (4 = o0 ey} i = f|
& 5 &6 & a5 a6 8 &8 8
il [ ] (] [ | 3] & [T 3] o
Year

At the close of the current fiscal vear, unassigned fund balance was 53 942 389 for the general fund, Ths
15 approximately 32% of the 2023 wotal general fund expenditures and other financing uses, When
compared to $4.333.062 in 2021, this is a $390,673 dollar decrease, with overall peneral fund balance
increasing 411,283 from 2021, As the 2021 vear-end unassigned fund balance was greater than the 30%
It per our policy, the Board budgeted for a use of fund balance of $1,377 331 1n 2022

Due to a combination of solid financial planning and adherence to the comprehensive plan, the Village of
Fox Crossing is able to promote quality services with low tax rates. The Villaze maintains a proactive
approach to growth, planning and development, which results in an increase in tax base and diversity of
business types., Additionally, the Village has an Equipment Replacement Fund, This fund enables the
Village to maintain a consistent tax levy and to purchase capital equipment as needed. Therefore, the
Village only needs to borrow for large-scale projects, such as road reconstruction. This saves the Village
money in interest expense, plus provides increased revenue due to interest earnings.
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VILLAGE OF FOX CROSSING, WISCONSIN

MANAGEMENT™S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (cont.)
UNAUDITED
As of and For Year Ended December 31, 2022

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Village's basic financial statements.
The Village’'s basic financial statements are compnsed of three components: 1) government-wide financial
statements, 2) fund financial statements and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report also contains
supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-Wide Financial Statements
The governmment-wide financial statements are desgned to provide readers with a broad overview of the
Village's finances in a manner similar to a private-sactor business,

The Sratemens of Net Position presents information on all of the Village's assets, liabilities, and deferred
inflows and outflows of resources with the difference reported as net position, Owver ime, increases or decreases
n net position may serve as a usetul indicator of whether the financial position of the Village 1s improving or
deteriorating. To assess the overall health of the Village, vou need to consider additional non-financial factors
such as changes in the Village's property tax base and the condition of the Village's infrastructure.

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the Village™s net positon changed during the
fiscal vear. All changes in net position are reported when the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs,
regardless of the timing of the related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement
for some items that will only result in cash flows in the future fiscal periods (e.g.. uncollected taxes and earned,
but unused compensated absences),

Both of these government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the Village that are principally
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from functions that are intended
to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities).
The povernmental activities of the Village include peneral government; public safety; public works; leisure
activities; and conservation and development. The business-type activities of the Village of Fox Crossing
include the water, sewer, and stormwater uhilities,

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 49 to 52 of this report.

Fund Financial Statements

A fund 15 a grouping of related accounts that 15 wsed to mamtain control over resources that have been
segregated for specific activities or objectives. The Village, like other state and local governments, uses fund
accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of
the Village can be divided into three categories: govearnmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.
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MANAGEMENT™S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (cont.)
UNAUDITED
As of and For Year Ended December 31, 2022

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {cont. }

Fund Financial Statements (cont.)

Crovernmental Fumds — Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements, However, unlike the government-wide
financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term mnflows and outflows of
spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal vear. Such
information may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide linancial statements,
it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented
for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so. readers may better
understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental
fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund
balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental
activities.

The Village mamtains seventeen individual governmental funds, Information 15 presented separately in the
governmental fund balance sheet and in the govemmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and
changes in fund balances for the major governmenial funds, which include the General Fund, Debt Service
Fund. and Capital Projects Fund. Data from the non-major governmental funds are combined into a single,
agpregate presentation, Individual fund data for each of these non-major governmental funds 15 provided in
the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report.

The basic governmental fund financial statements cen be found on pages 53 o 36 of this repont.

Proprietary Fundy — Enterpnise funds, the only type of proprietary fund the Village mamntamns, are used to
report the same functions presented as business-typs activities in the government-wide financial statements.
The Village uses enterprise funds to account for its Water, Sewer, and Stormwater Utilities.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only 1n
more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for the Water, Sewer, and

Stormwater Utilinies since they are considered to be major funds of the Village.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 57 to 61 of this report.

Page 22
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (cont.)
UNAUDITED
As of and For Year Ended December 31, 2022

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {cont. }

Fund Financial Statements (cont.)

Fiduciary Funds — Frduciary funds are used to account tor resources held for the benefit of parties outside the
government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements because the
resources of those funds are not available to support the Village's own programs. The accounting used for
fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds. The Village of Fox Crossing has one fiduciary
fund for tax collections.

The basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on pages 62-63 of this report.

Noves to the Financial Statemenss — The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements, The notes to the
financial statements can be found on pages 64 to 100 of this repon.

Other Informarion — In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanving notes. Required
Supplementary  Information presents detailed budzetary comparizon schedules for the General Fund to
demonstrate compliance with the budgets. These schedules can be found on pages 103 to 105 of this report.
Additionally, required supplementary information includes schedules for the Village's participation in the
Wisconsin Retirement System and the other post-employment benefits plan. The combining statements
referred to earlier in connection with non-major governmental funds are presented immediately following the
required supplementary information, Combining financial statements and other supplementary information can
be found on pages 108 1o 138 of this report. For 2022, this includes all TID Special Revenue Funds, Deln
Service Funds, and Capital Project Funds, the remaining Special Revenue Funds, and Capital Equipment
Replacement Fund.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE VILLAGE A5 A WHOLE

An analysis of the Village's financial position begins with a review of the Statement of Net Position and the
Statement of Activities. These two statements report the Village's net position and changes therein, It should
be noted that the financial position can also be affected by non-financial factors, including economic
conditions, population growth and new regulations.

As noted earhier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position
In the case of the Village of Fox Crossing, assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded habilities and
deferred inflows of resources by $152,717.229 as of December 31, 2022, which is approximately a $6.0 million
increase from 2021.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (cont.)
UNAUDITED
As of and For Year Ended December 31, 2022

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE VILLAGE AS A WHOLE (cont )

The majonty of the Deferred Outflows and Inflows in the chart on the following page is related to
Governmental Accounting Standard Board (GASB) Statements No. 68 Accounting and Financial Reporting
Jfor Pensions, The GASB 68 detailed information 15 from the Wisconsin Retirement System, imcluding the
Deferred Outflows and Inflows Related to Pension, The Village 15 part of the Wisconsin Retirement System,
which is managed through the State of Wisconsin, The Village has paid all contributions into the state
retirement system, as required. The paid conmtributions are based on the State of Wisconsin retirement
calculations. The change in the Yillage's net pension continued as an asset in 2022, mostly due to the fiscal
impact regarding the retirement svstem expected versus actual investment income, This resulted in a Net
Pension Asset of 837 mullion in 2022, compared to 32.8 million in 2021,

Inm 2019, the Village of Fox Crossing implemented GASB 75 (hther Posi-Employment Benefirs, with this
implementation, the Village now reports Deferred Inflows Related to Other Post-Emplovment Benefits. In
2022, for GASB 75, the overall statements reflect a net position change of (5293 8213), The Total 2022 OPEB
Liability related to Other Post-Employment Benefits is $1.4 million, compared to $1.7 million in 2021, Please
see Note 11, on pages 95 to 97, for additional information.

In 2022, the Village of Fox Crossing implemented GASB 87 Leases, with this implementation, the Village
now reports Deferred Inflows Related to Lease Revenue, The total Lease Receivable and offsetting Deferred
Inflow — Lease Receivable as of December 31, 2022 is $2.0 million, with a 2022 impact on net position of
(5190 460). RKefer to Mote 7, on page 87, for additional information.

Please see the following table regarding the Statement of Net Position, The largest percentage changes are for
the Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows, which were explained previously. While total lLabilities
decreased (1.6%), there is a significant increase in current liabilities offset by a significant decrease in non-
current liabilities. This is primarily due to the 2021 General Obligation Mote Anticipation Notes of $5,240,000
matunng in 2023, now bemng classified as cumrent versus non-current.  Additional General Obligation Note
Anticipation Notes in the amount of $2, 474 000 werz 1ssued in 2022, also maturing in 2023,

The largest portion of the Village's net position, roughly 71%, reflects its net investment in capital assets and
construction in progress (e.g., land, buildings, equipment, improvements, and infrastructure), less any debt
used to acquire those assets that 1s stll outstanding, The Village uses these capital assets to provide services
o citizens; consequently these assets are not available for future spending. Although the Village's investment
in its capital assets is reported net of related debt. it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this
debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to iquidate these
labilities.

An additional portion of the Village's net position, approximately 1 1%, represents resources that are subject
to external restnictions on how the funds may be used. This 15 a 46% increase from 2021, which i1s primarily
due to public works capital projects to be completed.  The remaining unrestricted net position balance, $26
million, has increased 8% from 2021, and may be ased to meet the government™s ongoing obligation to its
citizens and creditors.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (cont.)
UNAUDITED
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE VILLAGE A5 A WHOLE (cont.)

Analysis of the Village's Operations

Statement of Net Position

(im naillioas of dodlars )

Total
Govermme ntal Business-type Percentage

Activities Activitics Tutals Change
2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 ([ 2021-2022
Current and Other Asseis £43.52 3630 233063 F3300 £77.15 LR35 4, 15%
Capital Assets G134 6l02 47T EORD 146,11 1500 82 3.22%
Total Assets 10486 107.41 11840 123.76 22326 23117 3.54%
Deferred Ouillows 406 5.0 0.85 1.22 4.91 7.13 45.21%
Current Liahilities 518 444 5,57 1245 175 17.3% Gl 7%
Mon-Current Linbalities 14.81 15,61 738 2RO5 5219 44 .56 [ 14.62%)
Total Liabilities 1999 2005 42.95 4190 62.94 61.95 (1.57%)
Deferred Inflows 18,11 20082 1.8 282 19, 1% 23,64 23, 19%
Met lmvestment n Capital Assets 4874 4793 Mo al53 Is6d 10948 0.77%
Restrcted 2300 1A il6 615 746 16.65 [23.19%
Unresiricied 1778 1400 10, 1& | 2.5% 20 26,349 (111995
Total Net Position $T0.82 $72.45 = $75.,21 SR0.27 Sl46,04 %152,72 4,57 %

(Totals may vary due fo roundmg.)
*See Mote 17 of the Motes 1o Financnl 3tatemenis regarding a restatenent of the 2021 Busmess-iype Activitbes Net Position

The following table and charts provide a summary of the Village of Fox Crossing’s operations for the year
ended December 31, 2022, Governmental activities increased the Villape's net position by approximately $1.6
million, and business-tvpe activities increased the Village's net position by approximately $4.4 million,
resulting in a 4.6% or 36 million increase overall, Additional analysis of these activities follows the table and
charts.
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MANAGEMENT™S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (cont.)
LUNAUDITED
As of and For Year Ended December 31, 2022

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE VILLAGE AS A WHOLE (cont )

State ment of Activities
(im millions of dollars)

Tuartal
Gy rrnee ntal Business-iype Percentage
Ativitic s Activities Tutuk Change
2021 2021 2021 2022 2021 20212 2021-2022
Revenues:
Progmam Bevenues:
Charges for services 215 2.7 1.3 1162 1338 14.32 T.05%
Crperating eranis and contribions .23 1.31 0y 00 .23 1.31 6, 5004
Capital grants and contributons 200 2.3 65 261 5.05 4. Kl {14.87%)
Ceneral Bevenues:
Properiy taxes 11.53 1017 - - 11.53 L1 14T
Onher taxes LK IRIL - - LRIE i .00
Infergovermmenial 0,57 0,55 - - (57 0,58 1.75"%%
Ivesiment income o1l 0,33 014 032 (.25 0,71 LE4 D0,
Cither 027 0,24 o000 0K 0.27 0,24 (11 11%)
Total Revenues 17.94 1920 1502 14.55 320G 3378 2 40%
Expenses:
General govermment 1.71 1,85 - = 1.71 I.B5 B 19
Public safety 4,74 5,40 - - 4,74 5,40 13.92%
Public works B, 16 760 - - .0 760 25.41%
Legure activilies 1.36 1.4] - - .36 I.41 1.68%
Conservation and developmen 1.5 1.57 . - .56 L57 0.64%
Inmerest and fscal clarges 036 42 . . 036 42 16,67
Water utilicy - - 412 412 412 412 0.
Sewer utility - - IET 404 3487 4.4 439
Stormmwater ity - - 48  1.33 |43 1.33 (10 14%)
Total Expenses 15. 7% 18.25 PAT DA 2526 17.74 9.8I%
Excess revenues over capenses
before transfers 215 (1495 555 506 7.0 .1 21.595%
Transfers 66 (68 (0663 (0.68) i .00
Change in Met Position 2Kl 163 4.8 438 T.70 B, 1] 21.95%
Begmnmz Met Position-Restated G801 T0E2 T033  TE Y 13834 146,71 6, 05%
Ending Nei Posifion TR 7145 75,22 B0.2T 146,04 152.72 4,57 %

{Totalks may vary due o mounding.)
*5ee Mote [Toflthe Motes o Financial Statenenis regardme a restatement of the 2021 Busmess-tbype Activities Net Posfion
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UNAUDITED
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE VILLAGE AS A WHOLE (cont.)

2022 Revenue by Source - Governmental Activities
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VILLAGE OF FOX CROSSING, WISCONSIN

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (cont.)
UNAUDITED
As of and For Year Ended December 31, 2022

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE VILLAGE A5 A WHOLE (cont. )

Analvsis of the Village's Operations {cont.)

Total revenues were consistent from 2021 into 2022 with an overall increase of $0.8 million, or 2.4%. The
largest percentage change, 184%, related to investment income due to the overall investment market and
interest rates rebounding from 2021, amounts to 305 million, The largest amount increase of $0.9 million, or
T%, is related to public charges for services. This increase is largely due to permit fees related the new Neenah
High School being built by Neenah Joint School District and permits associated with the apartment building
construction in TIDY #5, as mentionad further in the TID #5 section. These were offset with a (14.9%%), $0.8
million decrease, in capital grants and contributions, This decrease 15 a result of the final Town of Clayton
payment of 32 million to governmental activities and 33 mullion to business-type activities for a total of 85
million received in 2021. In 2022, approximately $2.0 million of American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) funds
was recognized as a capital grant, partially offsetting the Clayton payment from the vear before, as discussed
in the Water Utility and Stormwater Utility specific sections later in this report

Total expenses increased 9.8%, or $2.5 million, from 2021 to 2022. The largest increase, 1.5 million, or
25.4%, was in public works and was due to increased operating costs, primanly from the ARPA funds. as
discussed previously. The second largest increase, $0.7 million, or 13.9%, was in public safety and was
primanly due increased costs for contracted imspectors, similar to the comment in the previous paragraph about
the ncreased building permit revenue. The Village contracts for commercial electrical and plumbing
inspection services. The second part of the increase in public safety expenses is due to filling open positions
and increased pay rates for the part-time and paid on call firefighters.

For revenues by source, the most significant changs was a decrease in Capital Grants and Contributions of
(15%). This decrease is mostly in the business-type activities, resulting from decrease in the amount paid by
the Town of Clavton, which is for the use of the Village's land and sewer mains to transport the Town of
Clayton sewerage to the treatment plant. Refer back to the discussion at the top of this page regarding
differences in capital grants and contributions, The business-type contrnibuted capital related to the utilities
installed with the high school and apartment complex referred to in the first paragraph, were not completed in
2022 and thus, not contributed to the Villape. When new development occurs, the developer is required to
install all infrastructure to the Village's standards. When the infrastructure is completed to specifications and
lien free, the developer gives the infrastructure to the Village to control and mamtaim. Thas transfer results in
a developer capital contribution to the Village. These developments fluctuate based on economy and growth
of the area. Please see the Financial Analysis of the Government's Funds - Proprietary Funds for specific
development information.

In regard to the governmental activities, which are shown on the prior table and pie chan, the largest expense
for 2022 is the public works program at 42% or over 37.6 mullion of the total expenses, and includes items
such as street and trail construction'maintenance, snow plowing, engineering, street lishting, sarbape
collection, and transportation services. The Village continues to show a strong commitment to funding street
reconstruction/maintenance to ensure the Village maintains excellent road conditions within its borders,

The second largest expense for 2022 is the public safety program at 30% or $5.4 million of the total expenses,
and includes police, fire, building inspections, and emergency government. In 2021, these two categories were
also the top expense categones, with $6 nullion or 2% spent on public works and 34.7 mallion or 30% spent
on public safety,
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (cont, )
UNAUDITED
As of and For Year Ended December 31, 2022

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE GOVERNMENT'S FUNDS

Governmental Funds

The focus of the Village of Fox Crossing”s governmental funds 1s to provide information on near-term inflows,
outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information 15 useful in assessing the Village's financing
requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of the government s net
resources available for spending at the end of the fiszal vear.

As of the close of the current fiscal vear, the Village's governmental funds reported combined ending fund
balances of 3278 million, an increase of 52, 14 milhon in companson with the prior vear, The majonty of the
change was due 1o the Capital Projects Fund — Equipment Replacement Fund, with a fund balance increase of
5094 million. This fund is funded annually to have a consistent budget without fluctuations for equipment
purchases. The intention of this fund is to alleviate the need to bormow for the replacement of current equipment
and vehicles, by using cash-on-hand. This wall save the community money by ehiminating the need to borrow
and incur debt interest costs, along with the ability to have interest eamnings on these funds. In 2022, the
Village budgeted for a $0.5 million increase due to the expected equipment to be replaced versus the amount
set aside. however, due to the vehicle and equipment economic market turmoil, lead times for new vehicles
and equipment were significantly longer than in the past and approximately $0.4 million of equipment or
vehicles ordered in 2022 were not recerved untill 2023 or later,

Approcamately 29% of the combined fund balance, 53,770,032, 15 unassigned and available for use within the
Village's designations and policies. The remaining total governmental fund balance of 524,022 679 is
considered nonspendable, restricted, committed or assigned. This would include tems such as future budgzet
project allocations, accrued sick and vacation appropriations, and prepaid items.

Nonspendable fund balance includes: 1) prepaid items ($80,532), 2) delinquent personal property taxes
(%$1.918), and 3) advances to the Stormwater Untility ($108,496), TID # | ($48.639) and TID #5 ($123.718).

Restricted fund balance includes funds that are limited in use by external imitations,  As of December 31,
2022, the restricted fund balance totaled $11.2 million. Restricted funds includes such uses as for debt service,
earbage and recyecling, and uncompleted or future capital projects of $8.2 million.

Commutted fund balance 15 for self-imposed hmitatons, which have been set in place by the Village of Fox
Crossing Board of Trustees, At vear-end the commitied fund balance was 52,8 million, for a stabilization fund.
This fund shall not be used except in the following circumstances: externally imposad reductions in revenue,
including dramatic changes in economic or financial conditions of the Village, unforeseen external factors
such as a natural disaster, which impacts the current year budget by over $100,000 and where the general
fund’s unassigned fund balance is a deficit at the end of a calendar vear. The stabilization fund is set at 20%
of the next year's budget.

Assigned fund balance 15 the Village Board designations resulting from intended use, which includes items
such as debt retirement, $1.28 mulhon, and capital equipment replacement, $5.9 million,  Additionally, the
Village has assigned a portion of its fund balance for acerued sick and vacation leave, With the knowledge that
employees leaving the organization can create a laree financial impact to the Village when thev terminate
employment, the Village has an assigned fund balance of 50097 million specifically for accrued benefits.
Another item in the assigned fund balance 15 an allocation of funds for specific future purchases and projects
£1.5 million. These future purchases have been budgeted to be spent in 2023,

Page 29



VILLAGE OF FOX CROSSING, WISCONSIN

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (cont.)
UNAUDITED
As of and For Year Ended December 31, 2022

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE GOVERNMENT'S FUNDS (cont.)

Governmental Funds (cont.)

Crewerad Frnd

This fund is the main governmental fund; whereas, all operational activities occur here, OF the $43.1 million
in total governmental assets, the general fund contrels 43.7%, roughly $18.8 million. Additionally, this fund
eenerated 5111 million in revenues and $11.1 million of expenditures, which are increases of about 0.9
million in revenues and 30.5 million of expenditures when compared to the 2021 general fund revenues of
2102 million and $10.6 million of expenditures.

The total 2022 General Fund Assigned Fund Balance includes 1.5 million for carry forward appropriations
related to future purchases and projects. Of this amount $1.3 million has been assigned for 2023 capital assets
and one-time purchases, includmg $200.000 towards the municipal complex vehicle garage improvements,
£299.200 wowards street resurfacing/repair projects, $219,750 to fund the capital projects fund — equipment
replacement program funding shortage for 2023 and 2024 expected for vehicle and equipment replacement
caused by the dramartic increases in prices as a result of the pandemic and economic conditions, $55, 000 for
the upgrade to the Fire Alert Svstem, and $51_ 800 for improvements to the Arden Tews Assembly Room. The
remaining $692 698 15 assigned for future specific projects.

Im 2020, the Village Board of Trustees increased the required unassigned fund balance levels to 209 - 30% of
the subsequent vear's general fund operating budget, from 0% - 20%. The purpose 15 to ensure normal
operations of the Village, in order to avoid short-term borrowing,  In 2020 1t was easy to see the need for a
higher unassigned fund balance level due to the worldwide pandemic, which affected many businesses and
governmental entities. At the close of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance was 53,942 389 for the
general fund, which i1s approximatelv 28.2% of the 2023 total general fund expenditures and other financing
uses, When compared to $4,337.471 in 2021, this is a ($395,082) decrease, while the overall general fund
balance increased $411,283 from 2021, As the 2021 year-end unassigned fund balance plus the forecasted
2022 increase in general fund fund balance during the 2022 budget process was anticipated 1o be greater than
the 30% limit per our policy. the Board budeeted for a use of fund balance of ($1.111,330) in 2022.

The General Fund revenues and other financing sources were 5448 942 over budget. Building and related
permits, zoning permits, and fire impact fee, which is a calculation based on new development. combined to
come in over budget by $329.251. This is about 73.3% of the total amount of over budget. These activities
are over budget primarily related to the new Neenah High School as mentioned previously.

The General Fund expenditures and other financing uses were significantly less than budgeted, by 51,339 672,
As can be seen on page 105, most of the significant expenditure savings were due to substantial general fund
operational savings, with $319.001 in public safety, 3221 696 in public works, $112,640 in leisure activities,
£8,880 in conservation and development, and $555 732 in general government, which includes the Village's
annual contingency amount.

Some of the prior mentioned savings, $99 580, were for items that were not purchased in 2022, but have been
reallocated for purchase in future yvears. This amount 15 included in the Assigned Fund Balance for Camry
Forward Appropriations. An example of this is in the General Government, Information Technology
expenditure category. The schedule shows a savings of $98.672; however, $53.370 of these savings are
planned to be spent in 2023 on a project that was budgeted in 2022 but could not be started until 2023,
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE GOVERNMENT'S FUNDS (cont.)

Governmental Funds (cont.)

Creweral Frund (oot

For several departments, much of the savings was in personnel costs. For example, the police department had
savings from being short staffed for much of the vear, including not being able to fill a Lieutenant position and
the new detective position that was budgeted for. Additionally savings came from the Street Department due
to the annual resurfacing and repair program and salf expenditures, Pnicing came in very favorably compared
to budget for the resurfacing program plus it was detzrmined during the bid process 1o not resurface a segment
due to anticipated utility infrastructure work that will be needed. The Village salt shed was fairly full coming
out of the 2021/2022 winter so less purchases were needed in 2022, plus, salt prices did not increase as much
as anticipated during the budget process.

The majority of general fund costs to local povernments are personnel related. For 2022, personnel costs were
budgeted at 575 million. out of the total amended budget of $13.6 million, or 56.7%. For comparison, in 2021,
personnel costs were budgeted for 571 million, out of the total amended budget of £12.3 million, or 57 8%,
Theretore, when the Village has a favorable vanance 1t 15 most likely resulting from savings in personnel costs,

For the 2022 General Fund, the Village of Fox Crossing had another excellent vear financially. In 2022, as
detailed above, the Village's expenditures and other financing uses were less than the actual revenue and other
financing sources recerved by 309 million. This s amazing, since the Village budgeted to use over %1 .4
million from fund balance. This great financial feat was accomplished through expenditure savings, however,
some of these savings came with an operational cost. In 2022, some departments were shont staffed, which
caused problems performing normal required work., and supply chain issued cauwsed timing issues with
accomplishing projects.

The Village of Fox Crossing is very proud of its dedicated work force, who managed to accomplish pnority
tasks and projects despite the United States economy and unemplovment levels. The Village Board
acknowledges the difficult and challenging year our departments had while dealing with staff shortages, supply
chain 1ssues, and rising costs, The Fox Crossing Village Board and management staft’s goal 15 to continue to
be fiscally responsible to the residents while managing operations efficiently.

The detailed schedule of revenues compared to budget and the detailed schedule of expenditures compared to
budget can be found on pages 103 to 105 of this report.

Tax Mncremental Districts (TIDs) Special Revenue Funds

Tax Incremental Districts are an economic development tool for communities, which allow 100% of the tax
mcremental value from the development to pay for projects within the TID, Since a TID uses the taxes that
normally would go o all taxing authorities, a five member Joint Review Board (JRB) is created, which has a
member from all tax authorities along with one citzen member, The JRB reviews the project plan, which
includes the development plan, boundaries, economic feasibility, and financing plan for the dismict. Each TID
can have a Special Revenue Fund, Debt Service Fund and Capital Project Fund. Please see the TID Combining
Schedules on pages 121 to 124 of this report.
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On June 30, 2015, the JRB approved TID £1 for the multi-million dollar corporate headquarters for Community
First Credit Union. In October 2017, the facility was completed and open for business. This development
includes an area-wide stormwater detention pond, ir addition to the normal infrastructure needs. On January
27,2018, TID #1 was amended to include an additional 8 acres, which includes nght-of-way and a parcel for
a hotel development by Fox Crossing Hotel Group, LLC. The first increment for the hotel development
occurred on the 2019 tax bills, for the 2020 budget.

Im 2021, TID #1 completed infrastructure improvements on Amencan Drive funded with a 2021 bormowing of
£365.000. As of December 31, 2022, $325 000 remains outstanding. With these projects completed, in 2022
the TID #1 capital projects fund was closed and the remaining balance transferred to the TID £1 debt service
fund to offset future debt pavments. The full annual amount of the current projects, Community First Credit
Union and Fox Crossing Hotel Group, LLC are generating the full tax increment; however, at the end of 2022,
this special revenue fund has a deficit balance for direct project costs in the amount of $48 639, compared to
£40,133 10 2021, Funds in the same amount have been advanced from the General Fund and will be repaid as
the Village of Fox Crossing receives tax payments [rom the development’s tax increment. As ol December
31, 2022, the TID #1 special revenue and debt service fund combined have a negative ending fund balance in
the amount of (£38,595).

Ty &2

O March 15, 2016, the Joint Review Board for Tax Incremental District #2 approved the Village's second
TID. The project encompasses 51.8 acres of land located in the McMahon Business Park and estimates a
conservative 312 million construction increment. On July 22, 2019, TID #2 was amended to include an
additional 31.2 acres, for 4 parcels and rights-of-way, located to the north of the original TID, bordening Cold
Spring Road and across W Amencan Drive, for a total TID of 82.92 acres. One of the main projects in the
original boundaries is the Menasha Office One, LLC. (WOW Logistics) corporate headguarters, which was
completed in the beginning of 2018, Tax revenues started generating in 2018. The amended section includes
parcels for OSMS Real Estate, LLC, which has been developed for an Orthopedic and Sports Medicine Clinie,
The clinic was completed in 2020, and had a full tax incremental value on the 2021 tax balls, for the 2022
budget.

Infrastructure construction on Jacobsen Road started in 2019 and fimshed in 2021, Tnitial debt of $150,000
was borrowed in 2018 with a 2020 bormowing in the amount of 32,180,000 to finance the project. As of
December 31, 2022, debt in the amount of 51,815,000 remains outstanding for TID #2. With these projects
completed, in 2022 the TID #2 capital projects fund was closed and the remaining balance transferred to the
TID #2 debt service fund to offset future debt payments. As of December 31, 2022, the TID #2 special revenue
and debt service fund combined to have a positive ending fund balance in the amount of 440,525, The
majority of these funds are for debt service as a result of the transfer of excess capital project funds.
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On Aprl 11, 2017, the Joint Review Board for Tax Incremental District #3 approved the Village of Fox
Crossing’s third TID. The project encompasses 68.9 acres of land located to the west of County Highway CB,
just north of the Village Municipal Complex. TID #3 is estimated to generate between $30 and $90 million of
new tax base during its 20 vear life, along with between %10 and $30 million of tax increment.  This TID is
tor the corporate headquarters of Secura Insurance Companies, which was completed i 2019,

In 2019, TID #3 issued debt in the amount $185,000. This was in addition to the $425 000 debt in 2018 for
infrastructure improvements regarding methane mitigation and monitoring. As of December 31, 2022, the
total ocutstanding debt 15 3610,000. With this project completed, in 2022 the TID #3 capatal projects fund was
closed and the remaiming balance ransferred to the TID #3 debt service fund 1o offset future debt payments.
As of December 31, 2022, the TID #3 special revenue and debt service fund combined to have a positive
ending fund balance in the amount of 51,007,179, Most of the funds, $993 845 are in the special revenue fund
for future project use.

T

On January 22, 2018, the JEB approved TID #4 for 15 million for a medical clinic. TID #4 15 located on the
comer of Olde Buggy Drive on the west and West American Dirive on the south on a 6.96 acre parcel. The
company that this TID was onginally created for decided to not develop this property. The TID #4 Specal
Revenue Fund has a fund balance at the end of 2022 in the amount of 32,865 for direct Village project costs.

W TAEA]

On January 11, 2021, the JRB approved TID #5 for a new mult-family residential progect, located on the
southwest comner of Clayton Avenue and East Shady Lane on a 28.64 acres of land. The development will
contain at least 200 residential units, with an estimated project value of at least 55 million; however, the
development agreement has incremental incentive levels for up to 20 million in overall project improvements.
Im 2022, TID #5 incurred the assessment to have municipal water and sewer main extended to the development
and expects to recover the cost through future imcrement receipts,  As of December 31, 2022, this special
revenue fund has a deficit balance for direct project costs in the amount of $123 718, compared to 53,290 in
2021. Funds in the same amount have been advanced from the General Fund and will be repaid as the Village
of Fox Crossing receives tax payments from the devzlopment’s tax increment.

Garbage Collection and Recveling Special Revenue Fuund

The Village of Fox Crossing provides for garbage and recvcling collection for its residential customers,
recording these activities in the Garbage Collection and Recveling Special Revenue Fund. The main collection
service 15 provided through a contract with a local vendor; however, the Village provides curbside brush and
leal collection and customer service for handling problems. The Village charges an annual fiee on all residential
real estate tax bills, based on the number of units serviced on each parcel.
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Crarhage Collection and Becyeling Special Revenue Fund (coni )

Asg seen in the following chart, thru 2015 the Villaze of Fox Crossing had used significant fund balance to
offset the parbage and recveling program; however, since 2015 the Village Board of Trustees has increased
the annual garbage and recveling fee most vears with the intent to increase the special revenue fund’s balance,
along with assigming fund balance for garbage/recycling cart and equipment replacements, As can be seen in
the financial statements, this program has increased fund balance,

Fund balance increased in 2022 to $711,321, a $126,972 increase over the December 31, 2021 fund balance
of 3584349, Part of this fund balance, 556,668, has been allocated for equipment replacement, with 5225000
set aside for purchasing cans, and $3,510 of debt premium to offset future debt service payments, which leaves
£426.143 available for other uses of the program.

Garbage & Recycling Fund Balance
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For fiscal year 2022, the Village had a positive revenue vanance from budget in the amount of 348 909 due to
surplus recyching sales through the County consortium, an expenditures vaniance under budget in the amount
of 811,801, and other financing sources (uses) had a net positive variance of 362,243 under budget for a total
favorable variance of $122,933. The majority of the transfars out are for labor and equipment costs reimbursed
to the general fund for the Village's residential brush chipping program and leaf collection program. The
calculation 15 based on actual staff and equipment hours devoted to the program,

Debr Service Fund

This fund pays the debt for all governmental funds. The debt service fund balance comes from the Village of
Fox Crossing’s special assessment pohicy, which 1s o finance the amount due from a resident over a ten year
period, and to use these monies over the life of the debt to ofTset the hability. However, if a resident pays their
special assessment liability prior to the end of the assessment period. these monies accumulate in the debt
service fund balance. Therefore each vear, the Village uses these prepavments of special assessments to offset
the debt payment, over the 10 year peniod, as though the prepayment never occurred.
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The debt service fund balance decreased (359 883) 1o $1,369,238; of this amount, $89 620 is considerad
restricted from 2020, 2021 and 2022 debt service premiums from borrowings to be used for debt interest
pavments in the next couple years. Most of the decrease, ($110,852), resulted from the use of the 2020 and
2021 General Obligation (GO) bid premiums allocated to offset 2022 interest pavments. The debt service fund
balance may only be used for future debt service payments, 1f the 2022 GO bid premium did not occur, this
fund would have seen a decrease in fund balance of roughly (3124,120). The Village of Fox Crossing actually
budgeted to use ($181,012) of fund balance, which includes the debt premium use mentioned above.

The debt service assets available for future debt service payments decreased (3172, 328) to 53,134,762 and the
liabilities and deferred inflows decreased (S112,445) 1o 51,765,524, Since special assessments are paid over
time and the revenue is recognized in the vear of the payment. special assessments are a deferred inflow of
resources.

TI Dbt Service Fundds

These funds are for debt service pavments related to the TID development projects. In 2022, TID #1, TID #2
and TID #3 have outstanding debt. As noted in the review of each TIF Dustrict on pages 31-33. TID #1, TID
#2, and TID 3 all closed their respective TID capital projects fund and transferred the remaining fund balance
to the respective debt service fund to offset future debt payments, As of December 31, 2022, TID #1 Debt
Service Fund had a balance of $10,044, which is the result of the 2021 General Obligation bid premium and
2022 wansfer from TID #1 capital projects fund. TID #2 debt service fund had a balance of 5427 484, which
15 the result of the 2020 General Obligation bid premium in the amount of $31,509 and mostly the transfer
from the TID #2 capital projects fund of 395,975, TID #3 debt service fund had a balance of $13.334 which
consists of the transfer from the TID #3 capital projects fund, The fund balance in the TID debt service funds
will be used to offset future delt payments,

apital Proiects Fund
All government borrowed funds for capital purchases are receipted and expended 1n this fund. In 2022, the
fund balance increased S451,004 to 38,239 801, compared to $7,788 887 in 2021. Normally, the Village
borrows for capital projects annually, but the project expenditures may cross multiple years, which results in
a fund balance at vear-end. As noted on page 28, in 2020 and 2021, the Village received $6.5 million into this
tund for the inter-municipal agreement with the Town of Clayton, of which, 36 million 15 sull available as of
December 31, 2022, For specific project information that occurred in the current year, please see the Capital
Asset section of this report.
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As noted in the review of each TIF District on pages 31-33, TID #1, TID #2, and TID #3 all closed their
respective T1D capital projects fund and transferred the remaining fund balance to the respective debt service
fund to offset future debt payments. Each TID capiral projects fund had a $0 fund balance and was closed in
2022,

Eguipment Replacement Fund

Many vears ago, the Village created an Equipment Replacement Fund for larze expenditures, such as vehicles.
This account is funded annually to have a consistent budgzet without fluctuations for equipment purchases. The
intention of this fund 15 to alleviate the need to borrow for the replacement of current equipment and vehicles,
by using cash-on-hand. This will save the community money by eliminating the need to borrow and incur deln
interest costs, along with the ability to have interest eamings on these funds.

Each wvear the Village Board of Trustees allocates monies to fund this program. In 2021, this fund had a fund
balance of 35,9 million, which 1s 2 1% of the total governmental fund balance, This compares to 54,96 million,
or 199, in 2021. This fund will ensure money availability for over $15 million in replacement value for future
purchases of capital vehicles and equipment. Since the cost to replace equipment has been sigmificantly
increasing over the past faw vear, this fund has also has increased to account for these costs. The expenditures
over the past few vears ideally show the fund performing as anticipated, since the overall costs to the village
remained consistent, even though equipment expenditures varied drastically.

Proprietary Funds

The Village of Fox Crossing’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the
government-wide financial statements, but in more detail, The Village of Fox Crossing has three proprictary
funds: water, sewer and stormwater utilities, All the utilities are overseen by the Village of Fox Crossing
Board of Trustees. The Stormwater Utility encompasses the entire Village of Fox Crossing: however it does
not extend past Fox Crossing’s borders like the water and sewer utility does. The Fox Crossing Utlities
borders for water and sewer include some customers from the cities of Appleton, Menasha, and Meenah, and
the towns of Clayton, Neenah and Harrison. Additonally, since the Fox Crossing Utilities encompasses an
area that is on both sides of Linle Lake Burtte des Morts. it has two separate water and sewer systems.

Im early 2020, the Village of Fox Crossing entered imto an inter-municipal agreement to provide water service
to customers in a Town of Clayton area, and to allow the Town of Clayton Sanitary Distnct to use the Fox
Crossing Utilities” infrastructure to transport sewerage to the regional treatment plant. The Board designated
%5 million from this agreement into the sewer utility for future projects. Consistent with other development
projects, the Town of Clavton 15 required to install all infrastructure to the Village's standards. When the
infrastructure 15 completed to specifications and lien free, the Town will give the infrastructure to the Village
to control and maintain, When this happens, the transfer will result in a developer capital contribution to the
Village.
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The business-type activities net revenues were approximately 30,7 million lower than last vear, caused by a
(%1 million) decrease in Capital Grants and Capitel Grants & Contributions and a 0.4 million increase in
Charges for Service in 2022_ The majonty of the Capital Grants and Contnibutions were from Town of Clayton
inter-municipal agreement, as mentioned previously. Specific detail on each utility can be found under each
proprietary fund.

The water and sewer utilities are required to maintain eamings which are greater than 1.25 times the annual
debt service of the revenue bonds. The Village is very diligent with maintaining debt coverage. In 2022 the
coverage requirement was 52,689, 109 and the utility generated $1,171,524 above the requirement or 1.79 times
the annual debt service of the revenue bonds, In 2021 the coverage requirement was 52,694,386 and the utility
eenerated $967.701 above the requirement or 1.70 times the annual debt service of the revenue bonds. The
Fox Crossing Water Utilitv, established in 1965, 15 governed by the Village of Fox Crossing Board of Trustees
which consists of seven members, Historically, the water utility was ongimally known as the Town of Menasha
Sanitary District No. 4. In 1999, the Town of Menasha Sanitary District No. 4 was dissolved and the Town of
Menasha Utility District was created. In 2017, the Town of Menasha Unlity District was changed to Fox
Crosszing Utilities, after the Town of Menasha mcorporated into the Village of Fox Crossing.

The Fox Crossing Village Board of Trustees s the policy making body of the Fox Crossing Unlities, overseeing
all projects and programs, reviewing and approving the budget, and determining utility projects. Water Utility
operations are directed by the Utility Superintenden:.

Wader Uliility

In 2021, the Village of Fox Crossing expanded the Fox Crossing Water Utility into the Town of Clayton.
During 2021 and 2022 several projects have been completed by the Town of Clayton, or other developers. The
water infrastructure installed by the Town of Clavton as of December 31. 2022 has not been completed to final
Village of Fox Crossing specifications and, thus, has not been contnbuted to the Water Utility as of vear end,
The ultimate goal 15 provide water to the east side of the town between State Highway 76, County Highway
11, County Highway BB, and the Village of Fox Crossing border.
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In 2022, developers contributed $200,052 of the water utility infrastructure to accommodate the growth that
occurred in the Fox Crossing Urilities. As you can see below, this is compared to developer contmibutions of
$221,2161n 2021, $45907 in 2020, $318,032in 2019, $5,6501n 2018, $230,411 in 2017, and 565,578 in 2016,
The 2022 contnbutions for developer projects Praine Lake Circle, the 67 meter for the Clayton Booster Station,
and adjustments to the Services balance. The Clayton Booster Station as a whole has not been contributed to
the Water Utility as of December 31, 2022 as the project has not been finalized. however, the meter was
recorded as a contributed asset for PSC purposes. In completing the PSC Annual Report, it was determined
an adjustment was needed to record customer mstalled service laterals that were not previously recorded.
MNeenah Joint School District erected a new high school that will be a customer of Fox Crossing Utilities.
Construction of the high school includes the expansien of the water utility and installation of new transmission
mains as well as the services. The project will not be completed until 2023, at which time the infrasmucture
will be contributed to the utility.
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In 2022, the Village utilized $946 810 in American Rescue Plan Act {ARPA) funds received in 2021 and 2022
for various water utility infrastructure projects associated with mains around and under interstate highway 41
in anticipation of a State Department of Transportation construction project. This is not considered a developer
contribution but is included in the capital contributicns total revenue of 51, 146 862,

Comparing water service revenues, as seen on the following chart, 2022 shows a decrease of approximately
31 million gallons sold from 2021 Overall, the water operating revenue was more than operating expenses by
over 51,1 million, and net position increased by 51,502 61 8.

As can be seen in the following table, the Village had 607 million gallons of water sold in 2022 as compared
to 638 million in 2021, 686 million in 2020, 666 million in 2019, 696 million in 2018 and 709 million in 2017.
Water consumption has been decreasing over the past five years: resulting in a five year average for water sold
at 659 million gallons. Additionallv the Fox Crossing Unlities” largest water customer, Clearwater Paper
closed its facility in the summer of 2021, In late December 2021, the facility was sold to KK Integrated
Logistics, Inc. The new owner is not expected to be a large water customer user.
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The Utility's last water rate increase was in March 2012, which was approved by the Wisconsin Public Service
Commission. The water utility completed a full rate case water rate study in 2022, which was approved by the
Wisconsin Public Service Commission in December 2022, The new water rates went into effect as of February
15, 2023

For over 20 years, the Fox Crossing Utilities has been very aggressive with water main replacements. This is
due to the number of water main breaks that occur ir the utility. In 2003, the Water Utility hit an all-time high
in the number of water main breaks, 127; however, due to the aggressive main replacements, the number has
decreased to 15 in 2022, with a five vear average of 23 for water maimn breaks., The associated overtime hours
for water main breaks has decreased due to our water main relay and leak detection programs. We estimate a
water main break costs the Village approximately 57,000 to 8,000 per break. By investing in infrastructure,
the Water Utility is decreasing annual operating costs, along with improved water service reliability for the
Village’s customers,
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In 2022, the Village replaced 2.04 miles of ductile iron water main on and around Palisades Drive and also on
and around Kerry Lane. The past few years Fox Crossing has replaced several miles of ductile iron mains,
such as 1.4 miles in 2020, 1.2 miles in 2019, 1 mile in 2018, 1.25 miles in 2017, 0.50 miles in 2016, 0.88 miles
in 2015, and 1.1 miles in 2014 This has been a decrease from the very aggressive replacement plan in vears
2005 through 2010, where the Water Utility annually averaged 2.5 miles of mamn replacements, The Water
Uility maintains 138 miles of water mains, with only approximately 17% of ductile iron mains remaining,
Owver the past 20 vears, the utility has significantly invested in the water infrastructure. In addition to the water
main replacements, the Water Utility expanded the system by roughly 0.3 miles along Clavton Avenue,
effectively looping the system from Shady Lane to Smoke Tree Road. Approximately 0.5 miles of main was
added at Prairie lake Circle from developer contributions,

For the 2022 financial statements, the 2021 water utility net position has been restated. During the water rate
study, it was determined that the Village had expensed the cost of moving water assets from 2007 to 2019 in
conjunction with the reconstruction of the Interstate 41 [ Highway 10/441 interchange, Roland Campo
Memorial Bridge (Tri-County bridge) over Little Lake Butte Des Morts, and Hwy 441 improvements from the
bridee to Hwv 47. Per Public Service Commission guidelines, these relocation costs should have been
capitalized and depreciated. In 2022, the cost of the previously expensed relocations were capitalized, along
with correcting the associated accumulated depreciation. The net position has been restated by a net amount
of 670,829, as detalled in Note 17,

Sewer Uility

The Sewer Utility mamtams 120 miles of sewer mains, and eight hft stations, In 2021, there was 30,2 million
in developer contributions, compared to $3.2 million in 2021, $2.7 million in 2020 and $531,280 1n 2019, The
large amounts in 2021 and 2020 were mainly due to the Town of Clayton inter-municipal agreement. as noted
earlier. The 2022 contributions are from the developer project Prairie Lake Circle.
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On November 8, 2021, the Village of Fox Crossing Board of Trustees increased the Fox Crossing Sewer Utility
rates by 5%. The rate change was efTective July 15, 2022, which resulted in a $0.1 million increase to operating
revenue.

As shown in the following graph, the 2022 sewer usage increased 2 million gallons to 532 millhion gallons sold,
compared to 530 million in 2021, 502 million mn 2020, 530 million gallons in 2009 and 550 milhon gallons in
2018. The 2022 usage is slightly above the five year average of 529 million gallons.
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In 2022, the Sewer Utility earned 4.4 million in operating revenue and had 53.7 million in operating expenses.
with 0.7 million operating income. This compares to $4.1 million in operating revenue, $3.4 million in
operating expenses and 30,6 milhion operating income n 2021,

The Sewer Utilitv’s poal is to clean the sanitary mains on a four vear schedule. Additionallv, a televising
program i5 in place to detect inflow and infiltration (&) of ground and stormwater flows into the samitary
sewerage system. This ensures the flow to the treatment plants does not include the additional inflow of
groundwater, since the utility 15 charged based on the amount of flow the treatment facility receives, The utility
has been referenced by Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources as a role model in 1&]1 removal mitiatives
with the implementation of the Lateral Fepair Fund which sets a portion of the residential class user fee aside
for lateral repairs. These funds are used to partially fund replacement or repair of proven faulty residential
service laterals and or to provide backflow prevention devices to residential customers in areas most vulnerable
to sewer back-ups during excessive ranfall events. Starting in 2013, the uulity implemented a lateral
replacement program during our sanitary sewer relay projects to eliminate unwanted clear water entering the
new sewer system. This program requires that customers replace their leaking laterals. The customers have an
option to use the Fox Crossing Utihities” sewer main contractor at a discount or the customer can hire their own
contractor,
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As seen above, the 2022 non-operating cost for the discount to the customers and televising customer laterals
was 341,825 compared to $72,207 in 2021, §72,219 in 2020, 326,599 in 2019, 359,030 in 2018, 363,555 in
2016, 318,442 in 2016, 516,789 in 2015, $54,219 in 2014 and 573,146 in 2013, These non-operating costs
will vary bv vear depending on the projects completed annually. These projects will have a long-term operating
cost savings for sewerage treatment, since there will be less I&I into the sewer system for treatment at the
plant

The sewer utility does not have its own treatment facilitv. This service i1s contracted out with two treatment
facilities, Fox West Regonal Seweragze Commission (FWR) and the Neenah-Menasha Sewerage Commission
(NMSC)., Both of these treatment facilities have had upgrades in the last several years, to ensure future
capacity needs and State of Wisconsin Depariment of Natural Resource’s treatment requirements.

Stormmwaier Ulilicy

The stormwater utihity, now known as the Fox Crossing Stormwater Utility, was created on August 3, 2009,
by the Town of Menasha Town Board of Supervisors, which approved the formation of the Town of Menasha
Stormwater Utility. In 2017, the Town of Menzsha Stormwater Utlity was changed to Fox Crossing
Stormwater Utility, after the Town of Menasha incorporated into the Village of Fox Crossing.  The utility was
originally formed to create a funding source for the federal and state unfunded stormwater mandates. The
Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (DNR) had imposed strict particulate reduction guidelines, which
required the construction of several stormwater detention ponds. Additonally, the Wisconsin Legislature
imposad levy limits on municipalities. To meet the required mandates and to stay within the levy limits, the
municipality was forced to create a stormwater utility to fund the costs associated with stormwater
management, Even though this utility was created in 2000, the charges to the property owmers did not begin
until Janvary 1, 2010, Due to the delay in revenue collection, the General Fund advanced the Stormwater
Utility for s 2009 operating costs. Additionallv, the governmental fund has transferred the associated
stormwater assets and debt liability to this propriztary fund. The debt payments previously paid on the
outstanding debt 1s5ues for stormwater associated assets are required to be repaid to the general fund over the
next several years, along with the advance for stormwater utility operations, Currently, the Stormwater Utility
has seven large regional wet ponds and 52 miles of storm mains. The remaining road infrastructure 1s
supported by culvert and ditching svstems.
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE GOVERNMENT'S FUNDS (cont.)

Proprietary Funds (cont.)

Stormwenter Dllinye feont )

From 2008 through today, in order to meet Wisconsin Deparmment of MNatural Resource’s stormwater
particulate reduction mandates, the Village of Fox Crossing purchased and is still constructing detention ponds.
Cine of these ponds was a joint municipal project with the City of Menasha, which included the purchase of
& 058 acres of land for the Tayveo Road Pond. The cost split between the Village of Fox Crossing and City of
Menasha was 25 8% Village and 74.2% City, and cost maintenance on the pond is shared.

Im 201 1, Governor Walker and the Wisconsin State Legislature changed the stormwater particulate reduction
mandates for mumcipalities with Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System (M54) permmts,  Previously,
communities with MS4 permits were required to meet a 20% particulate reduction requirement by 2008, and
a 40% particulate reduction requirement by 2013, The newly implemented laws required communities to
maintain particulate reduction requirements of at least 20% with the 40% particulate reduction requirement by
2013 having been removed.

In 2014 the Village utilized a DNR Stormwater Planning grant and conducted an update 1o the Village's Total
Suspended Solids (T55) model and determined thar the Village currentlv had a TSS removal level of 35%,
which 1= a large increase from the approximate 22% removal that had been determined under the old model.
The increase was due to the inclusion of Tayco Pond and Independence Pond into the particulate reduction
numbers, along with a recalculation of particulate reduction from ditch and grass swales within the Village.

In 2016, in conjunction with the WIS 441 Tr-County Project, the Stormwater Unlity began a joint project on
the expansion of the Tayco Road Pond, with the City of Menasha and the Wisconsin Department of
Transportation (DXOT). With this project, the DOT constructed the expansion of the pond; however, the Village
and City are responsible for the maintenance of the pond. With this joint expansion, the Village realizes
additional particulate reduction without construction costs at approximately 15,800 pounds per year,

Im 2017, the Village of Fox Crossing formed a public/private parmership with Community First Credit Union
in constructing a regional stormwater pond for the Village. Community First Credit Union constructed a
stormwater pond for their development located on West American Drive, and tumed over the pond to the
Village upon completion. In return, the Village reimbursed Community First Credit Union a portion of the
pond costs through the Village's T1D #1.

Im 2018, the Village drafied the Village Stormwater Quality Management plan required for the renewal of the
Village's Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System (MS-4) permit. In the updated MS-4 permit, the Village
must meet the new Total Maximum Daily Load (TMDL) percent requirements in each of the three (3) Village
watersheds, The TMDL requirements include the removal of total suspended solids (TS3) and total
phosphorous (TF).
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Proprietary Funds (cont.)

Stormwerter Uility foont )
The plan analyzed and provided the following information:

» [dentified the study area to include the three primary watersheds within the Village—the Fox
River Watershed, Mud Creek Watershed, and Meenah Slough Watershed,

* Smdied and determined the baseline pollutant load conditions for phosphorous (P) and total
suspended solids (TS5) in each watershed.

» [dentified the Total Maximum Daily Load (TMDL) percent reduchons that are required for the
Village to meet its Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System (MS-4) permit.

«  Apalvzed the current Best Management Practices (BMPs) within the Village to determine our
present status in meeting the Village's MS-4 permit.

o  Determined an action plan for moving forward in meeting the P and TSS percentage reductions
required for the MS-4 permit.

The Village's Stormwater Quality Management Plan determined the following:

TP BEemoval Current TH M TS5 Remowval Current Ts5 Mlee
Watershed Prequired Removal Siandard Required Removal Siandard
Fox River 4. 5% 34 8% Mo T2.2% 44.2% Mo
Mud Creek 48.2% St 0% Vs 42 8% 6] .(Fa Yes
Meenah Slough 400.5% 46.5% Y= 52.0Pa 53.9% Y

In other words, the Village met both TS5 and TP stormwater requirements for lands in the Mud Creek and
Neenah Slough watersheds, but did not meet the requirements in the Fox River watershed.

In November 2018, the Village submitted the plan to the Department of Natural Resources (DNR) for review
and approval. The implementation plan indicated the Village would take 30-35 vears to reach the high TS5
removal threshold required by the permit for the Fox River watershed. In March 2019, the plan was approved
by the DNR.

Im 2022, the Village began construction on FEocket Fond on the comer of W, American Drive and Irish Road.
This 0.9 acre wet pond 15 expected to be completed in 2023 and 15 designed to assist with managing stormwater
when Irish Road is urbanized in the future, In addition to helping the Village meet TSS and TP reduction, this
project includes a 12.7 acre prairie land to aid in controlling flooding 1ssues that have been experienced in this
area during heavy rains. Engineering and design work on Sand Point Pond (formerly referred to as East Shady
Lane Pond) and Church Pond (formerly referred to as Jacobsen Road Middle Pond) started in 2022 with the

intention of begimming construction on both ponds in 2023,
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Stormwenter Dllinye feont )

In 2022, the Stormwater Utility earned $2.3 mallion in operating revenue and had 1.2 million in operating
expenses, with 31,1 million operating mcome, This compares to 32,1 million in operating revenue, 1.3
million in operating expenses and $0.8 million operating income in 2021,

As shown in the following graph, in 2022, the Stormwater Utility had $0.2 million in developer contributions
related to the Praine Lake Circle development. Comparatively in 2021 there was $0.2 mulhon, in 2020 there
was 30,7 million, in 2009 30.7 million, and in 2018 50,2 million in developer contributions from stormwater
mains in developments,

Developer Contributions - Stormwater

B00,0:00
BO00,000
400,000
200,000

Amount

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 201% 2020 2021 2022

Year

Im 2022, the Village utilized $1.,049 209 in American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) funds received in 2021 and
2022 for the Rocket Pond development noted earlier. This is not considered a developer contribution but is
included n the capital contributions total revenue of §1,205 787,

On November 8, 2021, the Village of Fox Crossing Board of Trustees increased the Fox Crossing Stormwater
Utility rates. effective January 15, 2022. This change increases one ERU from %130 to $140 per vear, resulting
in the Stormwater Utility earning $0.2 million of additional operating revenue.

CAPITAL ASSETS

At the end of 2022, the Village had invested a total of $151 million in capital assets (net of accumulated
depreciation), compared to $146 million i 2021, This investment in capital assets includes land. land
improvements, builldings, machinery and equipment, infrastructure and construction in progress,

As seen in the following table, the most significant mount change from 2022 to 2021 in capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation, excluding construction in process, was in the transmission and distribution system
assets for replacement and new water and sewer infrastructure. Reductions on the table are mainly related to
the annual depreciation and retirement of the old infrastructure that was replaced.
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CAPITAL ASSETS (cont.)

Capital Assets

Net of Accumulated Depreciation
(in millions of dollars)

Total
Governmental Business-type Percentag
Activities Activities Totals Change
2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021-2022
Land and Land Rights ns 314 2.19 219 3324 3323 (0.03%)
Land Improvements 0,35 0.35 0.35 0.35 0.00%%
Buildings 817 .10 817 B.10 (0.86%)
Computer Software & Equip .13 .18 013 .18 3B 46%
Machinery and Equipment 1.95 1.65 230 242 425 4.07 {4.24%)
Vehicles 2.84 2.84 2.84 2.84 0004
Roadways 1495  15.00 1495  15.00 0.33%
Trails 1.77 1.64 1.77 1.64 (7.34%)
Source of Supply 116 1.11 116 1.11 (4.31%)
Pumping 1.02 088 1.02 (.88 {13.73%)
Treatment 031 026 0.31 0.26 (16.13%)
Trans, & Dist./Collection 7362 7843 7362  TRA43 6.53%
Construction in progress 0.13 0.21 4.09 452 4.22 4.73 12.09%
Total 6l.34 al.0l B4.69 8F9EI] 146,03 15082 3.28%

i
{ Totals mmay vary die 1o rouinding, )

Municipad Complies:

During 2022 several projects were completed at the Municipal Complex, including replacing the concrete
sidewalk and curbing near the main entrance, replacing the HVAC system in the storage garage, installing
a software program to control the HVAC systems, and re-roofing the shingled parts of the roof.

Clavton Avenne Water Main:
A project that both expanded the water utility to include a portion of Clayton Avenue from Shady Lane to
Smoke Tree Road as well as strengthening the overall system by looping the system together. The $0.4

million project includes approximately 173 mile of main, 9 services, and 3 hydrants.

Palisades Avea Main Replacement;

The 2021 utlities main replacement program was completed in 2022, The Water Unlity replaced
approximately 1.8 miles of main, 142 services (0.9 miles of service line), and 20 hydramts at a cost of
approximately $1.4 million. The Sewer Utility replaced approximately | mile of main. |13 manholes, and
associated laterals at a cost of approxamately 51.9 million,
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CAPITAL ASSETS (cont.)

Lliilivy Construction in Progress (CIP)-

The major Water Utility project in 2022 consisted of vanous infrastructure projects associated with conflicts
for the utility and interstate highway 41 i anticipation of a State Department of Transportation construction
project. The conflict areas were Viola Street 1o Green Bay Road, Northern Rd to Holly, American Drive to
Ehlers, and Shady Lane to Butte Des Morts Beach Foad. As of December 31, 2022, the Water Utility has %1
million of costs incurred.

Three (3) Sewer Utlity projects started in 2022 are expected to be completed i 2023, The Ninth Street and
Mayer Street neighborhood main lining project incurred 304 million. The project to resolve vanous
infrastructure conflicts with interstate highway 41, similar to the water utility projects, incurred 0.2 million
in costs. The Midwav Road liming project from Appleton Road to Estate Drive incurred costs of $0.5 million.

Additional information on the Village of Fox Crossing’s capital assets can be found in Note 5 of this report.

LONG-TERM DEBT

The Village of Fox Crossing intends to 1ssue General Obhigation Promissory Notes as well as Water and Sewer
Utility Revenue Bonds in the fall of 2022 1o finance various projects and to refinance the Water and Sewer
Mote Anticipation MNotes mentioned previously in this report.

Under Wisconsin Statutes, Chapter 67, the Village of Fox Crossing’s aggregate indebtedness may not exceed
3% of the equalized value of taxable property located in the Village. The net amount of debt that 1s applicable
to the statutory limit is $32,950,126, or 1.4% of equalized value, which 15 considerably below the maximum
debt allowed of $114.258 080. The total debt has increased $0.3 million from 2021.

Gross Outstanding Debt

General Obligation & Revenue Bonds
{in millicns of dollars)

Total
Governmental Business-Type Percentage
Activities Activities Totals Change
2021 2022 2021 2022 201 2022 2021-2022
General Obligation 1455 1539 1E16 17 .56 3071 3295 T.20%
Revenue Bonds - - 2208 21.14 2308 2114 (8, 41%)
Total 14 .55 1539 3524 3870 5379 5408 0, 565

tT’ﬂtaIs may vary due to rounding. )
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LONG-TERM DEBT (cont.)

The Village of Fox Crossing was last rated in June 2022 for General Obligation debt.  Ax that time,
Moody's Investors Service reaffirmed Fox Crossing's high Aa2 rating. In October 2020, Moody's
reaffirmed the Village at an Al rating for revenue bonds, with a stable outlook. Credit strengths listed
e lude:

s Solid Financial position supported by strong reserves and liquidity

* Modest debt burden

s  Fox Crossing’s Water and Sewer Enterprise has a broad service area that extends beyond the

Village boarders

Additional information on the Village of Fox Crossing’s long-term debt can be found in Mote 6 of this
report,

CURRENTLY KNOWN FACTSECONOMIC CONDITIONS

On November 14, 2022, the Village of Fox Crossing Board of Trustees increased the Fox Crossing
Sewer Utility rates effective January 15, 2023

On December 14, 2022, the Public Service Commission of Wisconsin issued a final decision authoring
a rate increase for the Fox Crossing Water Utilitv. The Village of Fox Crossing Board of Trustees
authonzed the rate increase to be effective February 15, 2023,

On March 13, 2023 the County Highway Il Water and Sanitary Sewer Main Extension project was
approved for 805,000

On March 27, 2023, the Ninth Street Water Main improvement project was approved for $292 889,
the Sand Point Stormwater Pond construction project was approved for 3886316, and the 2023 Road
Resurfacing Program projects were approved for $1,307 951,

On April 24, 2023, the Church Pond Stormwater Pond and Utility installation construction project was
approved for 3,029 107,

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

The financial report i1s designed to provide the Village of Fox Crossing's citizens, customers, investors
and creditors with a general overview of the Village’s finances. If you have questions about this report
or need any additional information, contact the Village of Fox Crossing, Deputy Finance Director Myra
Piergrossi, 2000 Municipal Drive, Meenah. Wisconsin, 54956, call 9207207106, or e-mail
mpiergrossia foxcrossingwi.gov or Finance Director Jeremy Searl at jsearli@ foxcrossingwi.gov.
General information relating to the Village of Fox Crossing, Wisconsin, can be found at the Village's
website, www. foxcrossingwi.gov.
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VILLAGE OF FOX CROSSING, WISCONSIN
Statemear of Mat Position
Ag ol Decamber 31, 2022

See Accompanying Males

E ]

Business-
Governmental Type
Activities Activities Taotal
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and Investments L] 28 509 00T 11470013 32 079 020
Receivables:

Tanes 13,112,526 13,112,526

Delnguent Personal Properly Taxes 1818 - 1,818

Accounis 455 514 2 B3T 35T 3,202 B51

Accruad Inlarast 28 158 21,508 47 BET
Prepaids B0 532 55,0876 136,508
Internal Balances [128.TE2) 12B TE2 -
Due from COiher Govemmends 84 2B 24 547 EE 8486
Current Porlion of Advance be Neenah-

Memnasha Sewerage Commissian - 171,355 171,355
Currant Portian of Advance o Fox West -

Regonal Sewerage Commission - 35BE,T4T 358, 74T
Lease Recaivabla 54 BEE 165,636 220,626
Inweniories - 44 576 44 376

Total Current Assets 42 178 180 15,27E 460 57 454 B40

Honcurrent Assets

Spetial Assessments 3138 454 148 457 2B6T
Resiricled Cash = 12,141,351 12,141,351
Rastrictad Cesh - Debt Sendce from Bond Pramiurms S0 482 13,114 553,508
Dwua from Other Governments - 272,387 2r23e7
Agvance to Mesnah-Menasha Sewarage Commission - 1,761,310 1,761,310
Aghvance to Fox West Regional Sewearage Commission - 2,210,990 2,210,990
Proparty Hald for Future Use - 14373 4,373
Lessas Recevable 45 B48 1,123,738 1,770,587
Meat Pansion Assal 3,028,164 B27,281 3655478
Capital Assets, Mondepreciabe:

Land 31,051,320 2,180,118 33,241 438

Conatruction in Progress 204 544 4 516 852 4, T 25 TOE
Capital Assets, Depreciable G2 420,635 118,762,630 182,213,266

Less: Accumulated Depreciaton {32 663 6BG) (35 686, T43) (i, 360 4.28)

Total Honcurrent Assets G5 235 BED 108 481,552 173, T 432

TOTAL ASSETS 107 412 DED 123,760,012 231,172,072
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Defarrad Outflows Related to Pension 5.910.6804 1,224 623 735617




VILLAGE OF FOX CROSSING, WISCONSIN
Statement of Net Posdion - Continued
Ag ol Decamber 31, 2022

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Acoounis Payable
Acorued and Othar Current Liakbilities
Unaarned Revenuas
Deposids
Acorued Inferest Payable
Lang-Term Debl Due Withe Cne Year
Total Current Liabilities

Hon-Current Liabilities
Long-Term Debt Due in More than CGne Year
Cither Post-Employment Benafits
Total Non-Current Liabilities

Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF REEOURCES
Taxes Levied for Subsequent Perods
Defarred Inflows Relaled o Leases
Defarred Inflows Relaled o Pension
Defarred Inflows Relaled o Other Post-Employmant Benedits

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

HET POSITION
et Invastmant n Capital Assets
Restricied:
Ganeral Government
Public Satety
Pubic Works
Leisure Activities
Community Developrment
Debt Sarvice
Pension Banefils
Linrestricted

TOTAL NET POSITION

See Accompanying Males

50

Business-
Governmantal Type
Activities Activities Taotal
L3 1,307,008 L3 1,582 618 2. BB0 EZT
IO TE TE 955 447 TOE
81 500 - 61,500
123,453 - 123,453
108 117 166,327 274 444
2 487 BTS 11,112 642 13,560,317
4 438 504 12 B4E 543 17 367 047
14, 545053 20 GET 158 43 132 262
1,070,124 360,141 1,430,265
15815217 28847 300 44 5E2 617
20,053 721 41,885 B43 B1,848 564
12 E32 585 - 12, B32 5085
701 B3E 1.2EB 57T 1,881,413
7128 318 1476 BOD BEDS1ZT
158 365 53,286 211,861
20821114 2,819,682 23 640,795
4T 682 212 61,525,306 10477 518
2T - 2721
191,830 - 161,930
6500 510 - &, 500 510
425 TED - 428 T50
1,465 481 - 1,468 481
89620 671,831 6,761,451
1,810,774 375,085 2,185 868
14 008 121 11,686 BTE 25 701 995
] 72448113 & BO.269.110 152717228




VILLAGE OF FOX CROSSING, WISCONSIN
Statement of Activities

For the Year Endec December 31, 2022

FUNCTIONS/PROGRAMS
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
Genaral Governmant
Fublic Safety
Public Woarks
Leisure Activibes
Conservabon and Development
Interest on Debl
Toltal Governmental Activities

BUSINESS-TYFE ACTIVITIES
Water Litility
Sewer LHility
Storm Water Litility
Total Business-Type Activities

Total Government

Program Revenues

Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and
Expenses Services Coniributions Contributions
5 1,850,354 3 111,808 § 4256 & 206,162
5,403,924 HEE,204 179,156 -
7.602 8960 1,302 863 1,099,241 1,860 859
1,403 574 343,210 11.108 -
1,587,104 ¥3,814 21413
420,754 = = =
18,254 674 2,699,900 1315175 2.196,121
4121660 4,919,535 1,239 447
4,042 Bed 4,583,201 162228
1,350,601 2,319,802 1,205,767
9,485 209 11,622 6238 2 607 462
§ 27749883 0§ 14322528 § 1315175 § 4,803 583

GEMERAL REVENUES
Taxes:

General Property Taxes

Debt Servoe Levy
CHher Taxss

Federal and Stale Grants and Other Coanbibulions
Mot Restrizted to Specific Functions

Cable Franchise Fess (Unrestricted)

Interest and Investment Eamings

Miscallaneous

Total General Revenues

TRANSFERS

CHANGE IN NET FOSITION

NET POSITION - BEGINMING OF YEAR - RESTATED

NET POSITION - END OF YEAR

Ese Accompanying Moles

51



Het [Expense) Revenue
and Changes in Net Position

Business-
Governmental Type
Activitbes Aactivities Total

£ (1,528127) % - - (1,528,127}
(4,358 564) {4,358 564)
(3,210,887 (3,210,887}
{1,055,255) {1,055,255)
{1,468,877) (1,468,877}
{420, 758) (420, 758)
(12,043 AT8) - (12,043 478}

- 2,037,322 2,037 322

502,481 502 481

2,195,078 2,195,078

4,734,881 4,734 Ba1
(12,043 AT8) 4,734 881 (7,308,587}

9,569 854 9589 854

2,131,313 2,131,313

ES QED = 85 089

YT BT - 77 537

175,935 - 175,935

365,584 327,743 713,327

65,208 - 85,209

12 390,521 327,743 13,318,264

BB0,648 (680 649)

1,627 602 4,381,975 8,009 667

70820427 75,887 135 148,707 562

5 72448119 § 80269110 3§ 152717229

Ese Accompanying Moles
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WILLAGE OF FCX CROSSING, WISCONSIN
Balanis Shesd
Georsrnimanial Funds
As of Dadssimkss 31, 2022

Criheer Tokal
Dbt Capital O e ndal ‘Gaorrnmesaital
Gansral Sardcs Progecis Furla Funis
ALSSETS
Cash and Invesimenis % G9BMEE 5 12TeeE § AoMam £ BT 584§ 3508 00T
R vahhes:
Taxe H1E24 1,762 386 - 3,211,828 13112536
Delinquent Personal Property Taxes 198 - - . 1918
B0 445 101 - - 5,413 455 514
Special Assessmsnis 114 11
Aoorued Imienest 2434 - 1244 . 265 1ER
Prapaid Remes S0.4355 - - o BD.532
Rosricled Cash - Dabd Servics fom Bond Premiums A% 520 450,862 SA0 482
Diiiia Trom Othar Sovermimanis =2 B 1] - - . Ed, 255
Lmase Receivable TO1.58 - - . 701,836
Aghaancs o Other Funds ZE0 B3 - - - :-.ln,uu-z-
TOTAL ASSETS E 1EE§ i 3 134 TEZ E EE'HE i ‘I!I‘IE&IBE! E 43 TTE JE3
LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF BESOURCES
AHD FUND BALANCES
Linbilties
Accourts Payable 3 4323 5 - & ESEEET  § 17eTeE 5 1,207,008
Acoried and O Currenl Lisbdldios i - - . 270, T
Unaamad Revanuas 51,500 - - . 1,500
Dispasils 115453 10,000 1EL 453
D $o Othaer Funds ZIT 258 - - . PTG
Ardyancs from O Fund - - - 172,357 1TEAST
Total Liabilities 1215243 K 158,152 2ITEAT
Dolemsd irflows ol Resownes
Unavadlatda - Spsecial Asreskamants - 3138 - . 3138
Uinavailable - Muricpal Court A[-=F- 165 801
Diibaarmead Inflores Flialatead 00 L TO1.536 - - . 0,836
Taxes Lovied for Submaquent Parods TAE2 138 1.7E2. 386 - 3,211,828 12836450
Total Deferred Inflows of Resouroes B TXN T 1,765 524 :IIEIIIE'EB 15711225
Fund Bakarces
Manspandabla;
Ciinguent Parsanal Propesrty Tases 198 1818
Propaid llems B0 455 - - T B0 B3Z
AdvEnces e Ofvee Funds 250,853 - - . IB0,B53
Flaktriciad;
Capital Projscts B A #2205 aen
R g ] - =R e ol - - B B2
Enquilabls Sharing - - - 1,147 1,147
Gartage CollscionRecycing T11,2a4 711,244
Publiz Prodeciicm - - - 127,831 127831
Ciihar Specl Purposes - - - 2,008,205 AR
Commifed:
Shald Ezation Furnds 2 TaTiEra - - . ZTETETR
Azmgnad:
Aporued Sk Loase and Vaoatomn L] - - . STZ 086
Carry Forsard Appropialions 1518448 - - . 1,518,448
it Earvics 1,278 818 1,276 818
Equipmant Raplassmen - - - 5,003,637 5 B03.E3T
Linassigred
Sonarad Fundad 3242 383 - - - 3,542 285
Spacial Revanua Funds Dahdls - - - {172,357 [172.357]
Tatal Fund Balances 9555 TR 1,368 208 A i, 588, Ta4d 2r e T
TOTAL LIABILITIES, EFERRED INFLOWS
OF REEOURCES AND FUND BEALAKCES E 1EE§ i 3 134.TEZ -1 Tr3 i ‘I!I‘IE&IBE! 43 TTE JE3

San Socnrpmrying Noks
Fct



VILLAGE OF FOX CROSSING, WISCOMNSIN
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds to the Statement of Met Positon
Az of Decamber 31, 2022

Total Fund Balances - Gowernmental Funds & 2. 7a2T1

Total net position reparted for governmental activities in the statement of nef
position is different from the amount reported above as fotal governmental funds
fund balance because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not current financial resources
and therefore are not reported in the funds. 61,007,214

Amounts reporied for governmental aclivities in the statemeni of net position bul deferred

on the funds balance sheet.
Special Assesaments G S
Court Receivables 168 801

The Village's progartionate share of the Wisconsin Refirement Sysiem pension plan is nol
an available financial resource; therefora, i = not reported in the fund finenciad statements.

Mel Pension Assel 3,028, 126
Defemed Outfiows of Resources Related o Pension 5,910, 854
Defamred Infiows of Resources Releted to Penaion (7, 1268,218)

The Willage's proportionate share of the Other Post-Employment Benefit i not an available
financial resource, therefare, it is nof reporbed in the fund financial statements
Deferred Inflows Related io Other Post-Employment Benefils - Single-Emplayer Plan {138,383)

Certain labdties, incheding bonds and notes payable, are nol due and payable in the
currant pericd and therefore not reported in the fund statements. Liabiliies reportad in tha
staternent of net position that are not reported in the funds baance sheet

Bonds and Notes Payable % (15,390,000)

Bond Premium (650,712}

Compensated Absences (972 056}

Mel OPEE Liability - Single Emglayer {1,070.124)

Acerued Inlerest on Long-Term Obligations {108,117) {18.181,008)
Total Net Position - Governmental Activities 5 724481159

—

Ses Accompanying Motes
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VILLAGE OF FOX CROSSING, WISCONSIN

Slatement of Revenues, Expendiures and Changes m Fund Balances
Gowernmental Funds

For the Yaar Ended Decembar 31, 20022

REVENLES

Taxas
Imisrgoysmmental
Licsiinseis @i Farenils
Fines and Forfeits
Puilblic: Chargas for Sarvicas
Spscial Asssssmenls
Iriwasatmant Incoenma
Mecslansous

Todal Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Gaoreral Soysmment
Puitdic; Safety
Publio WWarks
Liseauire Buirailies
Consernation and Ceelapment
Capital Quilsy
Debl Serdoie
Prircipal
Irfcrest, Bark Charges. and Dot ssuanoe Cosls
Todal Expanditunes

EXCESS (DEFIIENCY) OF REVENLUES
OVER |UNDER] EXFEMDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (UBE)
Issuanon of Genoral Onkgation Bornds
Band Pramium
Transfers In
Tranefars Cul

Total Cther Fnancing Souwces (Use)

HET CHAMGE IN FUND BALANCES

FUKD BALANCES - EEGIMHING

FUND BALANCES - ENDING

‘Cahar Tatal
Dbt Capital Gowermamenial Goyvernmental
Ginaral Sarvioe Prajects Fumds Fumds

-1 ThBE2 145 F 1,BEE,0E3 - 1 Z, 231 BdE 11 TdE 254
1,852,188 2,078,845 FA0 &k
771,565 . 1566
138,956 135 s
482 443 . 1,354 B4% 1547 52
20,113 5,488 el
45752 22.4TB 177,228 100, 0% 55T

b6, Jad 5. 00 75, 1688 188515
11,070,512 1,853,030 182,338 £,830,375 12 976 145
2,1r3214 1,181 2180 355
5,452,701 i SAS3ET
2,352 523 1,005,461 3 353 9B
BER.TS1 16,182 1,006 533
154 535 . 1,438,684 15902

- 1,847,543 2,458,859 4 301 442

- 1,815,000 285, Bog 2100 000

- EB-'IIEIJE TEE 15411 &35 402
11,130,874 2,108,203 1,835,331 5,351,964 WSS AT
{50,552} {213,173 {1,743,103) 438,411 {1.578.327)

- - 2 B5E, D00 248, 000 2940000

- §4,237 27418 T.819 04T

1,565 432 859,531 1,053,747 P LR el
{1003, 747 ) {878 [528.311) [445,.585) 2058 521
-ﬂi|'1.i|'-li ‘IBEIEB'D 5154|'|DT EH'I 30 1EY
411,283 |59,883) 454,004 1,335,352 149 Tes
8,182,515 1,428,121 7,788,887 7250, 393 FHESDAS
& goanran % liggan & Banaal oA TR % 2 hae T

Sem Arcompaning Bl
=



VILLAGE OF FOX CROSSING, WISCONSIN

Feconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities
Far the Year Endad Decamber 31, 2022

Met Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are
different because;

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditires. However, in the statement of
activities the cost of these assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and
reported as depreciation expensea,
Capital outlay reported as an expenditure in the fund financial statements but is
capitalized in the governmantal-wide financial statemants
Depraciation expansa reported in the statement of activitias
Met book value of disposals and adjustments

Amounts related o the pansion and other post-employmeant benafit plans that affect tha
statement of activilies but do not affect the fund finandcal statemenis.

Special assessments are recognized as income as the payments are received in the
fund financial statements but were recognized as revenue in the statement of activities at
the time they were earned, Other court revenues in the statement of aclivities that do not

provide current financial resources are nof reporied as revenues in the funds wntil they
are availabla.

Caourt

Fepayment of principal an long-term debt is reported in the govermmental funds as an
expenditure, but is reported as a reduction in long-term debt in the statement of net
position and doses not affect the statement of activities,

The amaunt af long-ferm debl principal paymeants in the currant yaar is;

Debt incurred in the governmental funds is reporied as an other financing source, but is
reported as an increase in outstanding long-term debtin the statement of net position,
and does nol affect the stalamant of activities,

The amount of debt incurred in the current year is

Vested employee benefits are reported in the governmental funds when amounts are
paid. The statement of activities reports the value of benefits eamed during the year.
Amounts earmed in curent year are more than amoants paid by

In governmeantal funds interest payments an oulstanding debl are reported as an
axpanditure when paid. In the statemeant of activiies interest is reported as incurred.

Interest paid is more than interest accrued by

Governmental funds report debt discount’premium as expenditures/other financing
sources when incurred. These are allocated over the period the debt is outstanding in the
statement of activities and are reporied as expense. This is the amaount of premium
amortization in the current year that is more than the premium on new debt.

Debt premium

Change in Net Position - Governmental Activities

See Accompanying Maobes
7]

2,141,796

1,737,224
(2,058.745)
(3.524)

F42.333

19,4049

2,100,000

(2,840,000)

(149,972)

(18,859)

28,030

1,627 602

S ——



VILLAGE OF FOX CROSEING, WISCONSIN

Statamert of Med Position

Proprictary Funds
A of December 31, 2022

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and Imvasimenis
Receivables
Cushomer
Anoriacd |nbanesd
Dl fraain Otfvar Funds
D Trar OFvar Govarnmsanis
Curranl Portion af Advance ko Nsanak-
Merasha Sewerage Commmsion
Currant Portion of Advance ta Fax Wiest -
Regional Sewerage Commission
Frepald Items
Laasa Receivabia
Irrvanlorias
Tatal Current Assela

MON-CURRENT ASSETS
Othar Assals
ESpacial Assassments
Resbriclad Cash
Raafriclad Cash - Dok Sarvics from Band Pramiims
Dhsa Trgei Ohar Gosvarnimant
Advance to Meerah-Merasha Sewerage
Cammissicn
Advance to Fox West Regional Soecrage
Commission
Proparty Hald for Fulure Lise
Lease Recevalbks
Mt Panaion A
Tarlal CitFsar Aats
Capital Azasts, Nondepreciabls
Lard
Constniction in Progress
GCapital Assois
Utility Piamt
Luass; Accurrlabed Degraoatbcn
Ml Capilal Assals

Tokal Morourent Assats

Tatal Assels

DEFERRED QUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Defarred Quifiows Redated to Pansicn

Slarm
Wiater S Wialer Tatal

g 1,868 891 724181 3§ 2,349,161 11,470,013
1,995,813 1,128,285 515,429 2 BT AT
7,825 B, 505 3are 21,508
2115 108 085 e 23T 288
11,522 10717 2308 o4 547

- 171,355 - 171,355

- 358,747 - 358 747

3202 17,158 15618 55876
157,351 - Ba47 165,838
44 176 - - 44 376
34688, 835 E28127 2,870,854 15,365 858
535,430 348,531 44 RS 454 148
3,562, 788 5 844 851 2,333,702 12,141,381
13,114 - - 13,174

- - 272387 272387

- 1,781,310 - 1,761,310

- 2210580 - 2,210,860

- B T4373 4,373

B04 BEZ - 218877 1,133,729
ZB8 B3 195,834 142 5E4 EZT 2B1
5,232,567 10358416 3,086,251 18,678,654
158,213 B,355 1,850,551 2,190,119
1,078,119 1120258 217 ATT 4,516,852
51,030,851 44 230,500 3841278 119,752,630
117,324,355} (12048, T5E) (5,323 582] |36 ,E56, 743}
34 804 TBES 13082 345 21,785,735 &3, 802 A58
40,167,775 43 447, 781 24 872076 108,461,552
43 854 810 52 570,588 2T 843090 1235, BI58 508
BE3.TE3 382517 278,333 1,224 633

Ses Accompanying Noles
ar



VILLAGE OF FOX CROSEING, WISCONSIN
Statermeni of Nal Fosilion - Congirmad

Proprictary Funds
As of Desember 31, 2022

Sorm
Water Sewer Wiater Tata
CURRENT LIABILITIES
#ucounts Payablic £ SETTO % H38 57T 113272 % 1,582 818
Bcrued and Oihar Cunrend Liabllfas A 24,421 14 810 T 855
Accrusd Inberast Payabla 19,297 1,850 41,747 E2.824
Curranl Fortion of Comparsated Absances TE.83T 45018 S0.708 172663
Currant Portion of General Obligaticr Debi 3,435,000 3,781,355 1,754 877 8,951,232
Currant Portion of Reverue Bonds - 718,281 - 718281
Gurrant Liabiities Payable fram Restricied Assets
Currerd Portion of Fervanus Bonds B11,709 358,747 - 1,270,458
Aponsed Intarast 449 405 53 597 - 1003, 405
Total Current Liabilities 5,110,863 5 852 356 1,875 214 12,548 543
HON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Advances from Cher Furd - - 105 406 1065 406
Ganeral Obligation Delt 2,113,855 1,781,310 4 BES BOS 8,538,058
Reverue Bonds T2 TRS 12010,723 - 19,505, 508
Comparsated Absances 47 TR 43172 5% 7o 144 B55
Mat Ofnar Post-Employmant Sancdis Liabibty 143,034 131871 a4 30, 141
Tabal Monciurmeni Liakilitiss 10,003,202 133945078 5,103 516 23,0585 756
Tatal Liabilities 15,714, 165 19,811, 444 T 078,730 42 004 339
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Dafarad Inflows Radatad to Laases 1,062,253 = 23T 334 1,289 57T
Dafarred InNows Redatad (o Pansicn B3 BB 451,288 335538 1,476 809
Datarrad Inlews Radated ba Other Post-Emplayrian Baradils 2055 15811 11430 53,266
Tatal Deferred Inflows of Resources 1, 7E4, 181 481,095 574,352 2,819,682
MET POSITION
Met investmant in Capital Asscts X2 B2 02 32 542 604 16,058,375 &1,525 306
Fasricsed far
Depreciaton Accouni 485 TES 2383 284 1442 182 43111234
Fliacgarys Sgsonifil B0 346 479837 - 1,080 163
Planl Rapacermnan - 388,594 851 520 1,280,414
Paension Banefits 172,883 117,163 85249 375,085
Unresiricied 3,256 215 B 448,775 1,090 8RS 11,6806 875

TOTAL MET POSITION

Ses Accompanying Noles

i 27 0037

=

-

J2 460862 3§ 204858211

i 0,268,110
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VILLAGE OF FOX CROSSING, WISCOMNSIM
Siaternent of Revenues, Expanses and Changes in Met Posiion
Frogretary Funds
For tha Yaar Enced December 31, 2022

Storm
Water Sewer Water Tatal
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for Services 3 4 533,110 3 4,383,201 L3 2,319.265 5 11,355,576
Qther Receipts 266,425 = 827 267 52
Total Operating Revenues 4919 615 4,583 201 2.319.892 11,622 628
OPERATING EXPEMNSES
Qperation and Mainienanca 27859 462 2 805 962 BE5 570D 6,360 534
Depreciation 1021,55) 7546 054 G2 198 2,298 772
Total Cperating Expenses 38108682 3,661,016 1,187,766 g,650 766
OPERATING INCOME 1 108,553 722,185 1,132.124 2962 BE2
NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Imvestmient Return 66,551 186,770 14422 327,743
Gain on Disposal of Assats = 58,350 . 5B 350
Special Assessmenis 90,04 - - a0 (46
Oiversizing 2538 2,538 - 50Ta
Laterals - (137,195} . (137,195)
Interast and Amorization Expensa |3-1D.E?H! (303,087 (142 833) {756,598
Total Mon-Operating Revenues (Expenses) 151,542 (192 8273) [E2.411) (412 576)
INCOME BEFORE CAPITAL
CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS 957,011 529,562 1,063.713 2 550 788
CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS 1146, 662 184,689 1,208 787 2512338
TRANSFERS
Transfars m 111,538 . . 111,538
Transfers out i712,7T81] (26,4223 (52 8723 (792 185)
Total Transfers iG01, 255 (26,422 (B2 AT2) (66D E49)
CHANGE IN NET POSITION 1502618 BE2 828 2 218 528 4 3815975
MET POSITION - BEGINMNING - RESTATED 26 837 418 31,798,033 18,281 683 5,867,135
HET POSITION - ENDING § 27 3-1-I:IIIZI3-? i 52 -d-EIIIIHEE E 20 468 311 E EDIEEB 110

Sea Accomganying Mobes
b



VILLAGE OF FOX CROSSING, WISCOMNSIN
Hatemert of Cash Flows
Fropratary Funds
Far tha Yaar Enced Decambar 31, 2022

Water Sewer Storm
Lty LIty Wiatar Tatal
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cosh Rissaived from Usar Changas 5 477397 E 442331 5 FI2M1 955§ 11708283
Cash Received from Municipality for Services 8,318 20 882 19,925 TT.128
Cash Paymants i Suppliars (2,048 1349 [2,774 E&d ) [251,418) {5,0758.221)
Cash Paymenis ta Employesss (898, 160) {670,583} (353,003} {1,816,748)
et Cash Flows From Operating Activities 1,664 934 T18,01E 1.707 462 4,290 412
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Inferest Imcome B2 A3 178,574 70,444 311,845
Net Cash Flows Fhvas From Investing Activities. 62831 178,574 444 311,849
CASH FLOWS FROM CAFITAL AND RELATED
FIMAHCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of Capital Assets (2ETE 106) (1,973, 23%) (22656 344 {B,915,738)
Capilal Asseds Sakvaged 22 086 216,798 - F3B BES
Capital Conbrbutions 1,146,362 1539, 6a% 1205, 787 2312338
Advance from Other Funds - - 3,689 3869
Special Assassmant Progcts 190,045 {4468 534 - (EaRAED)
Special Assessments Colleciad 184, 562 79,214 X3,386 BQ7T 202
Procaeds fram Lang-Tarm Dabd 1,253,000 454 000 1097000 2,724,000
Principal Payments an Long-Temn Debt (1,180,3849) [T06, 165} [B53,318) {2,740 A58
Interast Payments on Long-Sarm Dabd [348,673] (336217} (156, 702 (B 547
Met Cazh Flows From Capatal and
Related Financing Activities 11,688 650) (1,975 807} (1016 5123 14,681 678)
MET CHANGE IN CASH AND INVESTMENTS (3632 144 [1,105,338) F0E 432 {Tal 0es)
CASH AND INVESTMEMTS - BEGINNING B 335 752 14,074 351 3874 441 24,384 544
CASH AND INWWVESTMEMTS - ENDING E & BT &0 E 12|EIEEIII:I11* E 4 GED BES I8 B34 4TH

B Accompaniing Nobes
[=x]



VILLAGE OF FOX CROSSING, WISCONSIN

Slatamert of Cash Flows
Fropretary Funds

Far the Year Enced December 31, 2022

Waler Sewer Shoam
Lty LHillity Wiater Total
RECOMCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO
HET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Oparating ncoma 3 1,10B553 & T22 185 1,132,124 & 2862 BEZ
Adpistments 1o Reconcle Operabing Income
1o Nat Cash Flows From Dparating Activias
Dapraciation 1,021,530 THS, D5 522,188 2,598 772
Mater Dapreciation Changad to Sewar 54 457 (5 A5T] - -
Mscclancous a2 585 1134 B5E) . [£2071)
{Increase) Decrease in Operating Assets and Oeferred
Cutfiows of Resources.
Aceaunl Recaivables (240808 {244 105} {B1,543) (BB, 258)
D Traem Ciher Governments 2405 3,285 33,608 36,298
D Trae Cihar Furnds 36318 20 882 18,928 TT 128
Frepald Ibams [ATE) EQZ 258 L1
Irvartones [302) - - [30Z)
Met Pension Assct [54.072) (45,127} 138,501 (145, 7040)
Defarmed Outfiows Related to Pension (190.4548) {133 B35} (107,089 (431,193
Defarmed Oubfiows Related o Other Past-Emplayment Benefibs 28833 21,13 13,033 G0 BES
(Decrease] Increase in Operaling Labilities and Deferred
Infoass of Resclices
Aceaunls Payable (121.844) {283,101} BE3,751 (320,904)
Accrsad and Oihar Liskikbes &7 (114} 233 554
oo peit Pebei bt AbSaE s (§.204) (30,497} 14357 [2%.3448)
Met OPEB Liabiity [45.247) (20,851} {17 ,935) [84,324)
Diefarred Inflows Rizlated io Pension 1TA T8 123 B43 1003, 4085 401 044
Diefarred Inflows Related 1o Other Post-Employmeand Banefils 20287 18,404 10,565 48 258
NET CASH FLOWS FROM DPERATING ACTIVITIES E 1,854 934 E ?1!|I'.:I1E- 1707 482 % 4290412
m— ————=——
RECOMCILIATION OF CASH AND INWESTMENTS PER
STATEMEMT OF NET POSITION TO STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS
Cash and Imveasimanis 3 1,996.651 2 OTA240870 2344 181 § 11470013
Riesinchad Cash 3,563 TRA 5,544 BS1 2.333,702 12,141 351
Restriched Cash - Debt Service from Bond Premiums 13114 - . 13,114
TOTAL CASH PER STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 3 SETIE03 12959012 4 5E3 BE3 5 23634 478
HOMCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING &CTIVITIES
Reduction in Dbt for Regional Treatmient Plant i - & 516& DI 516,342

B Accompaniing Nobes
E1



VILLAGE OF FOX CROSSING, WISCONSIN
Statement of Net Position
Fiduciary Fund
As of December 31, 2022

Custodial Fund
Tax Collection
Fund
ASSETS
cash and Investments 3 14,133 463
Rocalvables - Taxes 14,535 349
Total Assets 28,968 812
LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable 471
Dwea to Other Governmenls 28 958 341
Total Liabilities 28,968 B12
5

MET POSITION

See Accompanying Motes
62



VILLAGE OF FOX CROSSING, WISCONSIN
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Met Position
Fiduciary Fund
Far the Yeaar Ended Decembear 31, 2022

ADDITIONS
Propery Taxes Collectad on Behalf of Other Taxing Entities

DEDUCTIONS
Property Taxes Remitted to Other Taxing Entities

CHANGE IN NET POSITION
MET POSITION - BEGINNING OF YEAR

MET POSITION - END OF YEAR

Sea Accompanying Males
63

Custodial Fund

Tax Collection

Fund
g 21,081,871
21,081,871
5




VILLAGE OF FOX CROSSING, WISCONSIN

Motes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2022

Hote 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

This summary of significant accounting policies of the Village of Fox Crossing, Wiscansin (Village) is presantad ta
assist in understanding the Village's financial statementz. The financial statements and notes are representations of
the Village's management who is responsible for the infegrity and abjectivity of the financial statemeants, These
accounting policies conform to generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and have been consistently applied
in the preparation of the financial statements. The Governmental Accounfing Standards Board (GASB) s the
accepied standards setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.

Reporting Entity

This report includes all funds of the Village. In accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP), the
financial stalemants are requiraed to include the Villags (the primary governmeant) and any separate componant units,
Component units are legally separate organizations for which the elected officiale of the primary govemment are
financially accountable or ather arganizations whossa nature and significant relationship wath the Village are such thal
exclusion would cause the Village's financial statements to be misleading. Financial accountability iz defined as the
appoinimant of a vating majority of the component unil’s board, and (i) eithaer the Village's ability to impose its will on
the organization or {ii) there is potential for the crganization to provide a financial benefit to or impose a financial
burdan on the Vilags. The Vilage has not identified any component unils that are required to be included in tha
financial statements.

Government-Wide And Fund Financial Statements

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of aclivities) report
infarmatban an all of the aclivilizs of the Village, excepl those that are fiduciary. Governmental aclivilies, which
normally are supporied by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type
activities, which rely 1o a significant extent an fees and chargas for suppaort.

The statement of aclivibies demonsirales the degrea to which the direct expenses af a given function are offsat by
program revenues, Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific funclion or segment.
Program revanuas include 1) chargas to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or direcily banafit from goods,
senices, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and confributions (including special
gssessmenis) thal are rastncied to mesating the aperabanal ar capital reguirements of a particular function. Taxes and
other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues,

Az a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the govemment-wide financial statemenis.
Furd Financial Statements

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary funds even though
tha lattar are axcluded from the govammeant-wide financial stalements. Gavernmeantal funds include general, spacial
revenue, capital projects and debt service funds.  Proprietary funds include enterprise funds.  Major individual
governmantal funds and major ndividual entarprise funds are reported as separale columns in the fund financial
statements.



VILLAGE OF FOX CROSSING, WISCONSIN

Motes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2022

Hote 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements (Continued)

Fund Financial Statements (conlinwad)

Proprietary funds distinguish oparating revenues and axpensas from nonaperaling items, Operaling revenuas and
expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary
fund's principal angaing operations. The principal operating revenues of the entarpise funds are charges fo
customers for zales and services. Operating expenses for enterprizse funds include the cost of sales and services,
administrative expanses, and deprecialion on capital asseats. All revanuas and expensas nol meeting this definition
are repored as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

Fund financial staterments of the reporting entity are organized into individual funds each of which are considered to
ba separate sccountng entiies. Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of salf-balancing accounts
which constilute ifs assets, deferred outfliows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, fund equity,
ravenues, and expendiluresfaspanses,

Funds are arganized as major funds or non-major funds within the governmental and proprietary statements, An
emphasis i placed on major funds within the govemmental and proprietary categones. A fund is considered major if
il is the primary operating fund of tha Village ar meats the fallowing criteria;

a. Taotal assals and deferred outiiows of resources, liabiliies and deferred inflows of resources, revenues, ar
expendiluresfespenses of that individual govemmental or proprietary fund are at least 10 percent of the
corrasponding tatal for all funds of that category or type and

b. Tha same element thal meat tha 10 percent criterion in (8} is al least 5 percent of the correspanding alement
total for all governmental and proprietary funds combined.

c. In addition, any other governmental furd that the Village believes i parlicularly imporiant to financial
statlement usars may be reparied as a majar fund.

Governmental Funds

Governmenial funds are idantified as either ganaral, special revenua, dabl sarvice, or capilal projects basad upon the
following guidelines:

General Fund

The general fund is the primary operating fund of the Village and is always classified as a major fund. it is used 1o

account far all financial resources excepl those raguired o be accountad for in another fund.

Special Revenue Funds

Special revenue furnds are usad 1o account for the specific revenue sources (olher than major capital projects) that
are legally restricted to expenditures for specific purpases,

Debt Service Funds

Drabt sarvice funds are used o account for the accumulalion of resources for, and tha payment of, ganaral long-
term principal, interest. and related costs.

G5



VILLAGE OF FOX CROSSING, WISCONSIN
Motes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2022

Hote 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements (Continued)
Governmental Funds (Continued)

Capital Projects Funds

Capilal progacis funds are used to account for financal resources (o be usad for the acguisibon or constructon of

major capital facilities {other than those financed by proprietary funds).

The Village reports the following major governmeantal funds:

Seneral Fund

This fund accounts for the Village's primary operating activities, | is used fo account for and report all financial
resounces axcepl those accountad for and reporied in ancther furd.

Dabt Service Fund

This fund is used to account for and report finandal resources that are restricted, committed, or assigned 1o

expenditures for the payment of general long-term debt principal, interest, and related costs, other than enterprise
dabl.

Capital Projects Fund

Capital projects funds are used to account for finandal resources o be used for the acquisition or construction of
majar capilal facilibes (othear than thoesea financed by proprietary funds).

Proprietary Funds
Entarprisa Funds

Entarpnsa funds may be usad to account for aclivilas wheare a fee is charged lo external users for goods and
senvices. Enterprise activities must include cperations {a) that are financed with debt that is secured sclely by the
pledge of the net revanuas of tha fund, or (b) wharm laws or regulations require that the costs of the activity be
recoverad with fees and charges, or {¢) where the fees and charges are priced in a way designed to recover the
costs of the activity.

The Village reports the following major proprietary funds:

Wiater Litility

The water ulility accounts for the financing of the conrstruction, operations, and maintenance of the Vilage owned
water facilifies

Sewer Lility

The sewear ulilily accounts for the financing of the construction, aperation, and maintenance af the Vilage owned
sewage facilities.

Storm Water Liility

The stomm water wtility accounis for the financing of the construction, operation, and maintenance of the Village
owried storm water facilities.



VILLAGE OF FOX CROSSING, WISCONSIN
Motes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2022

Hote 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements (Continued)
Fiduciary Funds
The Village reports tha following custodial fund:
Tax Collaction Fund

Thizs fund accounts for taxes and deposits collecled by the Vilage, acting in the capacily of a cusiodian, for
distribution to other governmental units or designated beneficiaries

Non-Major Funds
The Village reports the following non-major funds:

Special Revenue Funds Capital Projects Funds Debt Service Funds
Garbage Collection and

Recycling Furnd Equipmen: Replacement Fund Tax Increrment District 21
Tax Increment District #1 Tax Increment District #1 Tax Increment District &2
Tax Increment District #2 Tax Increment District #2 Tax Increment District &3
Tax Increment District #3 Tax Increment District #3
Tax Increment District 24 ARPA Fund

Tax Incremeni Disirict #5
Other Special Revenue

Measurement Focus and Basis Accounting

The accounting and financial reportiing treatment i delermined by the applicable measurement focus and basis of
accounting. Measurement focus indicates the type of resources being measured such as current financial resources
(current assets, currant labilities, and deferred inflows of resources) of economic resources {all assets, deferred
ouiflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources). The basis of accounting indicates the fiming of
ransactions or events for recognition in the financial slatements.

The government-wide financial slatermants are reporec using the economic resources measurement focus and tha
accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary and fideciary fund financial sistements. Revenues are recorded
when eamed and expenses are recorded whan a liabilty is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.
Froperty taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Granis and similar items are
recognized as revenues as soon as all eligibdity requirements imposaed by the provider have been mat.

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the govemment-wide financial statements.
Exceplions o this ganeral rule are paymants-in-lieu of faxes and athar charges bebwesan the Village's enterprise funds
and varicus other functions of the Village. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct cosis and program
ravenues reported for the various funclions concarned.

Governmental fund financial statemenis are reported using the currant financial resourcas maeasurement focus and
the modified accrual basis of accounting.  Under this method, revenues are recognized as scon as they are bath
measurable and available. Revenues are considered o be available whan they are collechble within the currant
pericd or soon enouwgh thereafter to pay liabilies of the cument pericd. For this purpose, the Village considers
ravenues to be available if they are collected within 80 days of the end af the currant fiscal period. Expenditures
generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures,
gs wall as axpendilures ralated o compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded anly when
payment is due. General capital asset acquisiions are reported as expenditures in govemmental funds. Issuance of
lang-term debl and acquisitions undear capital l=asas are reporied as ather financing sources,
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Hote 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Measurement Focus and Basis Accounting (Continued)

Proparty taxes, licensas, and interest associatad with the curmant fiscal panod are all considerad o be susceplible to
accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the cument fiscal period. Entitlementis are recorded as
revenues whan all eligibdity requiremants are mel, including any time requireameants, and the amaount is received
during the period or within the availability pericd for this revenue source {within 60 days of year end). Expenditure-
driven grants are recognized as revanua when the gualfying expenditures have baen incurred and all athar eligibility
requirements have bean met, and the amount i receised during the pericd or within the availability period for the
revenue source (within B0 days of year end). All other revenue items are considerad to be measurable and availabla
only when cash is received by the government.

Azszets, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, Deferred Qutflows of Resources, Net Position and Fund

Balances
Cash and Investments

Cash and investmenis are combined. Cash deposils consist of demand and time depasits with inancial instibutions
and are carried at cost. Investmenis are stated at far value, which is the amount at which an investment could be
exchangad in a current fransaction belwesn willing parties, Far investments staled al thair fair valus, fair valuas
are based on quoted market prices.

For purpose of the statement of cash flows, all cast deposits and highly ligquid investments (including restrictesd
assels) with an crginal maturity of three months or less from date of acquisition are considered o be cash and
imvestments.

Accounts Receivable
Accounts receivable are recorded at their gross amount with uncollectible amounts being recognized under the
direct wrife-off mathod, Mo allowance for uncolleclible accounts has been providad since it is belisavad that tha
amount of such allowance would not be material to the financial statements.

Inventories
Governmental fund inventory items are charged to expenditure accounts when purchased. Year-end inventory
was not significant.  Propriefary fund inventories are ganearally usad for constrecton or for operation and

maintenance work., They are not for resale. They arz valued at cost and charged to construction andfor operation
and maintenance axpense whan usad,
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Hote 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, Deferred Qutflows of Resources, Met Position and Fund
Balances (Continued)

Prepaid Hems

Paymenls made to vendors that will banefit pericds beyond the end of the current fiscal year are recorded as
prepaid items,

Frepaid items of governmental fund types in the fund financial statements are offset by nonspendable fund
balance accounts o indicale that they do nat represent spendable available financial resources. The cost s
recorded as an expenditure at the time individual prepaid items are consumed rather than when purchased,

Special Assessments

Special assessments result from capital projects constructed through non-special assessment debl. In
governmental fund financial statemeants, special assessments are recorded as receivables and deferred inflows of
resources when the related capital outlays are made and are recorded as revenues when due and payable. In the
government-wide financial statermeants and proprietary funds, special assessmenis are recorded as receivablas
and capital contrbution revenue when the capital ouillays are made. All special assessments are due when billed
and may be paid on an installment basis with interest. The method of enforcing collections is the same as for
general Village taxes,

Bestricted Assets

Mandatory segregations of assats are presented as resfricted assets. Such segregations are required by bond
agreaments and other external parties. Current liabillities payable from these restricted assels are so classified.
The excess of restricied assets over curment liabilifies payvable from resiricted assets will be used first for retirement
of related long-term dabt. The remainder, if generated from eamings, i shown as restricted nel position.

Debl Accounts

Redemplon -  Used lo segregate resources accumulaled for debl service payments over the next twelve
manths.,

Reserve - Used to report resources set aside fo make up potential fulure deficiencies in the redemption
account.

Depreciation -  Usad W reporl resources sel aside lo fund plant renewals and replacement or make up
potential future deficiencies in the redemption account

Replacement Account

The sewer ufility established a plant replacement account to be used for significant mechanical equipment
replacement as reguired by the Wisconsin Depariment of Natural Resourcas.
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Matas to Financial Statameants

December 31, 2022

Mote 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Azszets, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, Deferred Qutflows of Resources, Net Position and Fund
Balances (Continued)

Capital Assets

Capital assels, which include proparly, plant and equipment, are reported in the government-wide financial
statements. Capital assets are defined by the government as assets with an initial cost of more than 35,000 and
an astimated wseful life in axcess of ona year, All capital assats are valued &t hislorical cost or estimatad histoncal

cost if actual amournts are unavailable. Donated capital assets are recorded at their acquisition value at the date of
danation,

Additions to and replacameants of capital assals of business-type actvibas are recorded al onginal cost, which
incledes material, labor, and overhead. The cost of rrnewals and betterments relaling to retirement units is added
to plant accounts, The cost of propary replacad, refired or olharwisa disposed of, is deducied from plant accounis
and, generally, together with removal costs less salvage, is charged to accumulated depreciation.

The costs of nommal maintenance and repairs that de not add to the value of the assets or materially extend asset
livas are nol capifalized.

Depreciation and amortization of all exhaustible capilal assets s recorded as an allocated expense in the
statement of activities, with accumulated depreciation and amortization reflected in the statement of net position.
Depreciation and amortization is provided over the sssels’ estimated ussful lives using the straighi-line meathaod,
The range of estimated useful lives by type of asset iz as follows:

Buildings 40 Years
Machinery and Equipment 2-20 ¥ears
Litility Svstem 1580 Years
Infrastructura 30-80 Years

In the fund financial statements, capital assels used in governmental fund aperations are accounted for as capital
oullay expenditures of the governmental fund upon acquisition. Capital assets used in proprietary fund operations
are accounied for the same way as in the governmeant-wide slatements.

Due From Other Governments

The water, sewer, and stormwater utilities have amounts due from other governments adjacent to the Village, All
of these amounts are due within one yaar.

The storm water utility also has a recalvable fram the City of Menasha for the funding of storm water projects. Tha
total amount remaining fo be paid is 272,387,

Compensated Absences

Under terms of employment, employvees are granied sick leave and vacations in varying amounts. Only benefits
conskderad 1o be vested are disclosed in these stalermanls.

All vested vacation and sick leave pay s accrued when incurred in the government-wide and proprietary furd
financial statemeants, A liability for these amounts is reported in govermmental funds only if they have matured, for
example, as a resull of employves resignations ard retirements, and are payable with expendable availabla
resources,
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Hote 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, Deferred Qutflows of Resources, Met Position and Fund
Balances (Continued)

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition o assets, the statements of net position reporis & separate section for deferred outflows of
resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred oulffows of resowces, rapresents a
consumplicn of net position that applies to a future periodis) and so will nof be recognized as an ouiflow of
resgurces [expense) unlil then. The Willage has ocne category of ilem that gualifies for reporting in this
category. The deferred outflows related to pension is reporied in the sistements of net position. Deferred
autflows related to the pension plan s explained further in Nate 10.

In addition o liabilites, the statements of net position and balance shesl report a8 separate saction for deferred
inflows of resources. The separate financial statement element. deferred inflows of resources, represenis an
acquisition of net position or fund balancea that applies o a fulure perod{s) and so will nat be recognizad as an
irflow of resources (revenes) until that time. The Vilage has four categones of items that gualify for reporting in
thiz category in the govemmeant-wide financial stalaments prepared on the accrual basis of accouniing. The
Village also has four categores of iems that qualfy for reporting in this category in the governmental funds
preparad on the modified accrual basis of accounting, Conssgquenily, laxes levied for the subsequent period and
deferred inflows related to leases are reported as defermed inflows of resources on both the balance sheet for the
povarnmantal funds and tha statement of net position for the governmenial activities. The daferred inflows relaled
to the pension plan and OPEEB plan are recorded on the statements of net position and are explained further in
Mote 10 and Nate 11, respactivitly.

Pension

For purposas of measuring the nel pension liability (asset), deferred outflows of resources and defarred inflows of
resources related to pensions, and pension expense (revenue), information about the fiduciary net position of the
Wisconsin Retrement System (WHS) and addifions iofdeductions from WRS' fiduciary nel position have been
determined on the same basis as they are reportec by the WRS. For this purpose, benefit payments {including
rafunds of emplay=e contributions) ara recognized when dus and payable in accordanca with the benafit ferms,
Invesiments are reporiesd at fair value,

Other Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pension (OPEB)]

Cualifying employves are provided with other post-employment benefitz. The OPEB e a single emplover defined
banefl plan administered by the Village. For purposes of maasunng the OPEB liability, ralated defarrad outflows
and inflows and OPEB expense, the Village has used values provided by their aciuary. Benefit payments are
racognized whan dua and payabla in accordance with tha banefil tarms.

Long-Term Obligations

The accouniing treatmeant of long-term dabt depands on whathar it = reparted in the govermmant-wide ar fund
financial statements.

All long-term debt to be repaid from governmental and business-type resources is reporied as liabilities in the
gavarnmant-wide slatements. The long-ferm abligations consist pnmanly of noles and bonds payvable and acorued
compensated absences.

Long-term debt for governmental funds is not reported as a liakility in the govermmental fund financial statements.
The dabl proceaeds and issuance pramiums are reparled as an alhar financing sourca and payment of principal
and interest reporied as expenditures, The accounting in proprietary funds is the zame in the fund statements as it
i5 in the government-wida slatements.
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Hote 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, Deferred Qutflows of Resources, Met Position and Fund
Balance [(Continued)

Interfund Transactions

Interfund transactions are reflecled as either loans, sarvices provided, reimbursements or ransfers. Loans are
reported as receivables and payvables as appropriate, are subject to elimination upon consaolidation and are
referred o as either “due taffrom other furds” (e, the curment portion of interfund leans) or “advances toffrom other
funds”™ (i.e. the moncument porfion of interfund loans). Amy residual balances ouistanding between the
governmental activites and the business-lype activiles are reported in the govemmeni-wide financial stalements
as "internal balances.” Advances between funds, as reported in the fund financial statements, are reporied as
nonspendable in applicable governmantal funds 1o indicate that they are nol available for appropriation and are not
available financial resources, The govermment has advancaes from the general fund fo TID #1, TID #5, and the
stormwaler utility fund in the currant year.

Senvices provided, deemed lo be al markel or near markel rales, are trealed as revenues and
expendifures/expenses. Reimbursemeants are when one fund incurs a cost, charges the appropriate benefiffing
fund and reduces its related cost as a reimbursemant. All other interfund transaclions are treated as transfers.
Transfers between governmental or proprietary funds are netted as part of the reconciliation o the government-
wide presantation.

Leases

The Vilage adopied GASE Statement Mo. 87 for the year ended December 31, 2022, which reguires the
recognifion of certain l2ase assets and liabilties for leaases that previously weare classified as opearating leasas and
recognized as inflows of resources or outflows of resources based on the payment provisions of the contract. This
statemant establishes a single model for lease accounting basad on the foundational principle that leases are
financings of the right to use an underlying asset A lesses is reguired to recognize a lease liability and an
intangible right-to-use lease assal, and a lessor is reguired to recognize a kease receivable and daeferred inflow of
MESOUNCes.

Equity Classifications

Government-Wide Statements

Equity is classified as net position and displayed in three components.

« Met investment in capital assets - Consists of capital assets including restricted capital assets, net of
accumulatad depreciation and reduced by the culsianding balances of any bonds, marlgages, notas ar othear
bomowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets.

» Restricted component of net position - Consists of resources with constrainis placed on their use either by 1)
axlemal groups such as credilors, grantors, contribulors, or laws or regulations of other governmaents or, 2)
law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation reduced by lisbilies related o those assets.

»  Unresfricted component of net position - |5 the net amount that does not mest the definition of “resfricted” or
“mel invesimant in capital assats”

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Village's policy to use restricied
resources first, then unrasinclted resources as they are neadad,
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Hote 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, Deferred Outflows of Resources, Met Position and Fund
Balance [Continued)

Equity Classifications (Continued)]
Furd Financial Statements

Fund balance iz classified as either 1) nonspendable, 2) restricted, 3) committed, 4) assigned, or 3) unassigned.

Monspendable fund balance represents amounts that cannct be spent due o form (such as inventories and
prapaid amounts), of amounts that must be maintaived intact legally or contractually (such as the principal of a
permanent fund).

Resiricted fund balance represents amounts constrained for a specific purpose by extemal parties, constitutional
provision ar enabling legislation,

Cammifted fund balance reprasenis amounts consirzsined for a specific purposa by a governmeant using its highest
level of decision-making authority. It would require action by the same group to remove of change the consiraints
pleced on the resources, The action to constrain rescurces musl ocour prior 1o year-end, however, the amount can
be determined in the subsequent period. The Village Board is the decision-making authority that can, by adoption

of a resolufion prior to the end of the fiscal year, commit fund balanca.

Assigned fund balance, in the general fund, represents amounts consirained by the Village Board for a specific
intended purpose but do not meet the criteria to be classified as resfricted or committed. The Village has delegated
that authorly to the Finance Direclor. Assigned fund balance in all other governmental funds represents any
positive remaining amount after classifying nonspendable, restricted or commitied fund balance,

Unassigned fund balance, in the general fund, represents amounis not classified as nonspendable, restricted,
committed or assignad. The general fund is the only fund thal would report a positive amount in the unassignesd
fund balance

The Village, unless otherwise required by law or agreemeants, spends funds in the following order; resincted first, then
committed, then assigned, and lastly unassigned.

Under Ordinance 1604, the Board formally established a stabilization fund in 2012, The stabilization fund is reporied
as a committed balance within the general fund. The stabilization fund shall not be used except in the following
circumstances: axbarnally imposed reduciions in revenue, incleding dramatic changes in economic o financial
conditions of the Village, unforeseen external factors such as a natural disaster, which impacis the current yvear
budget by over $100,000 ard whara the ganaral fund's unassigned fund balance is a deficit at the end of a calendar
year., Additions to the stabilization fund are reguired when the fund balance declines below 20% of the subseguent
yvear's ganeral fund aexpenditura budgeat. The balance in the account at year end was $2 797 679,

The Village has a formal minimum fund balanca policy. Thea palicy requiras the Village o maintain a warking capital
fund of 20%-30% of the subsequent years' general fund expenditures budget. The balance at year end was
£3,842 388, or 41.10%, and is shown as unassignad genaral fund balance,

Claims and Judgments

Claims and judgments are recorded as labiites if all the conditions of GASE pronouncements are mel Claims and
judgments that would normally be liquidated with expendable available financial resources are recorded during ihe year
as expenditures in the governmantal fund types. If they are nol 1o be liguidated with expendable available financial
resources, no liability is recognized in the govermmental fund statements. The related expenditure is recognized when the
lEabdity is lguidated. Claims and judgments are recorded in the government-wide and proprietary funds slatements as
expenses when the related liabilities are incurred, There were no significant claims or judgments at year end.
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Hote 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Basis for Existing Utility Rates
Water Utility

Current Water rates were approved by the Public Sarvice Commission of Wiscansin and became effective on Decamber
13, 2022 for the Village of Fox Crossing. The rates are designed to provide a 6.00% retum on rate base.

Soewer Utility

Current sewer rates were approved by the Village of Fox Crossings Board of Trustees’ and became effective January 15,
2021,

Storm Water Utility

Current starm watar rales were approved by the Village Fox Crossings Board aof Trusteas' and becamea effective January
15, 2021,

Uze of Estimates

The preparation of financial staterments in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of Amearica requires management to make estimales and assumplions that affect the reporied amounts of assels and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statemenis and the reporied
amounts of revenues and expendifuresiazpenses during the reporling panod, Actual results may differ from thosa
estimates.

Mote 2 - Cash and Investmaents

The Village maintains various cash and investment accounts, including pooled funds that are available for use by all
funds. Each fund's porfion of thesa accounts is displayed in tha financial siatemeants as cash and invasimeants.

The Village is required ba invest its funds in accordances with Wiscansin Statutes, Allowable investmeants are as follows;

= Timea depasils in any credit union, bank, savings bank or trust company maturity in thres years or less.

* Bonds or securities of any county, city, drainage district. technical college district, village, town, or school disirict
of the stals. Also, bonds issued by a local expasition disinct, local professional basaball park dislrict, local
professional football stadium district, local cultural arts district or by the University of Wisconsin Hospitals and
Clinics Authonty.

+ Bonds of secunties guarantead by the federal govarmiment.

*  The Local Government Pealed Invesiment Fund and the Wisconsin Investment Trust,

=  Any securily maturing in sevan years or less and having the highest or secaond highast rating category of a
nafionally recognized rating agency.

« Securities of an open end managamant investmenl company or invasimeant frust, subject to varnous condifions
and investment options.

» [Repurchase agreements with public depositories, with certain conditions.

Additional resfrictions could arise from local charers, ordinances, resolufions and grant regulations of the
Village.

The Village's cash and investments ane subjact to sevaral types af risk, as explaired in more dalall balow.
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Hote 2 - Cash and Investments (Continued)
Custodial Cradit Risk

Custodial credit risk for depaosils s the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depositary financial institution, a
government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral securities that are in the
passassion of an outside parly. The custodial credit risk for investments s the nsk that, in the evanl of failure of tha
counterparty (e.g., broker-dealer) to a transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of its investment or
collateral sacurifies thal are in the possession of another party, Wisconsin slatules require repurchasa agreamanis o ba
fully collateralized by bonds or securities issued or guarantead by the federal government or its instrumentalities. The
Village does not have an additional custodial credit palicy,

Deposits in each bank are insurad by the FOIC in the amrouwnt of $250,000 for the combined amounts of all time and
savings accounts (including NOW accounts) and up to $250,000 for the combined amount of all interest and non-interest
baarng demand deposit accounts. The Village maintains its cash accounts at saveral financial instilutions.

Deposils in each credil union ara insured by the Mational Credit Unian Share Insurance Fund (NCUSIF) up to $250,000
for the combined amounts of all accounts.

Any kbsses caused by failure of public depositories are also covered by the State Deposit Guarantee Fund. The fund
providas coveraga of $400,000 in each financial institulion above tha applicable insuranca coverage provided by ha
FDIC. However, although the fund had reserves available at December 31, 2022, the future availability of resources to
cover the lossas cannal be projecied because provisions of the 1885 Wisconsin Act 25 provided thal the amount in the
fund will be used to repay public depositors for losses until the appropriation is exhausted, at which time the fund will be
agholished; thersfora, the Stale Deposit Guarantee Fund is not considered in covered amounts noted bealow,

The following rapresents a summary of depasils as of Decamber 31, 2022:

Fully Insured Deposits $ 2107262
Collateralized with Secunties held by the Pledging of
Financial Institution in the Village's Mame 22,282 396
Total 3 24,389 658

The difference between the bank balance and carrying value is due to cutstanding checks andfor deposits in transit.
Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investmeant,

As of December 31, 2022, the Village's investments were as follows:

Lass Than O ta Two Threa ta Fiw
Investments Fair Valusa Cna Year Years Yaars
Wi Local Govemment Investment Pool  § 37,885,864 & 37,005,884  § - 8 .
Megatiable Certifcates of Deposit 1,443,168 508 353 721211 213 625
Money Markat Fund 18,257 19,257 - -
U5, Agency Bonds RETR-TE - FETR:-TE
State and Local Governiment Securities 1,814,914 1,221,750 375862 217,302

£ 41801118 5 30635244 5 1087073 %5 116880
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Hote 2 - Cash and Investments [{Continued)

Interest Rate Risk [Caontinued)

The Local Government Imsestment Pool (LGIP), an external investmeant pool cperated as a joint venlure under Section
B6.0301 of the Wisconsin Statutes. Membership in the joint venture is limited o school districts, technical colleges, and
municipalites in Wisconsin, The governing body, the Board of Commissionars, is elecied by the membership.

The Local Government Investmeant Pool is not registered with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission and doas
not publish credit quality ratings.  An investment in the Fund i not a deposit with any bank and is neither insured nar
guaranteed by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, the United States Government, of any slate governmaental
agency of the Fund, Upon demand, cash can be withdrawn with interest from the Local Government Investmeant Poal

The Villages's LGIP invesiments are measured at amordized cost, which approximates fair value. Adjustments necessary
o record investments at amortized cost are recorded in the slatement of revenues, expendilures and changes in furd
balances as increases of decreases in investment income,

Credit Risk

State law mits investmenis in commercial paper, corparate bonds, and mutual bond funds to the top bevo ratings ssued
by nationally recognized statistical rating organizations. The Village's investment policy does not further limit its
investment choicas, Credit nsk is the nsk that an issuer ar othar counterparty ta an investment will nod fulfill #s obigations.

A5 of Decembear 31, 2022, tha Village's cradil qualify ratings are as faollows:

Imeesiments Falr Walyse SR S0+10a1 LN
W1 Local Government Inestment Pool 5 drEasasd % - 8 - % -
State and Local Govermnment Secunties 1,814,914 367 154 574,474 425 D08

3 39700y88 % 3AF1A0 0§  Hr4874 0§ 425,008

Imestments Ab-TAad A+iad ASA2 Mot Rated
Wl Local Government Investment Pool 3 - % - 5 - % 37885834
State and Local Gowermnment Secunties 287 856 - - 139,906

] Mraen % - & = § 38025790
. trati { Credit Ris!

The investment policy of the Village contains no limits on the amount that can be invested in any one issuer. The Village
doas nol carry investmanis in any ona issuer (other than US, Treasury securities, mulual funds, and extamnal investmant
pools) that represents 5% or more of total Village investments and therefore, is not subject to concentration of credit risk.

Fair Value

Invesimeants are measurad al fair valuve on a recurring basis, Recuming fair value measurements are those that
Gowvernmental Accounting Standards Board (GASE) Statements require at the end of each reporiing pericd. Fair value
maasuremenis are categonzed based on the valuation inputs usad to measure an assel’s fair values, Adjustmants
necessany to record investments at fair value are recorded as increases or decreases in investment income,

. Level 1 - Valuation for assets are from quoed prices in active markets. These valuations are obtained
from raadily availabla pricing souwrces from market fransactions involving identical assats,

. Leval 2 - Valuation for assels are from less aclive markats, Thase valuations are cbiained from third
party pricing services for identical or similar assets.

. Level 3 - Measurements that are least cbservable are estimated from related market data, determined
fram sources with littke or no marketl actvity for comparable confracts, of are positions with lomger
durations, These valeations incorporate certain assumplions and projeciions in defermining fair value
assignad 1o such assals.
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VILLAGE OF FOX CROSSING, WISCDONSIN
Motes to Financial Statements
Dacamber 31, 2022

Hote 2 - Cash and Investments [{Continued)

Fair WYalua {Cantinued)

&z of December 31, 2022 tha Village had the following investmeants at fair value:

Irvestments Lewel 1 Lewvel 2
State and Local Governmenl Securitles L 1.814814 & -
Megotiable Carlificates of Daposit - 1,443 188
Maoney Market 18,257

§ 183407 § 1,443,188

Note 3 - Property Taxes

Properly taxes consist of laxes on real estate and personal proparly. Taxes are kevied during December and become an
enforceable lien on property the following January 1. Property taxes are payable in various oplions depending on the type
and amount. Personal property taxes are payable on or before January 31 in full. Real eslate taxes are payable in full by
January 31, or in o equal installments on or before January 31 and July 21. Real estale taxes nof paid by January 31
are assumed by the County as part of the August tax saettement. Delinquent personal property taxes remain the
collection responsibility of the Village.

The Village bills and collects its own property taxes and also levies and collecis faxes for the School District of the
Appleton Area, Menasha, and Neanah, Winnebago County, and Fax Valley Technical College.

&g part of Wisconsin Act 32, In 2011 and all fulure years, a municipality iz allowed to increase its levy over the amount it
levied in the prior year by the percentage increase in equalized value from net new construction or zero percent,
Changes in debt service fram one year to tha next are ganerally exampl from this limit.

Mote 4 - Interfund Receivable, Payables and Transfers

Interfund receivables and payvables between individual funds of the Village as of December 31, 2022 are detailed below:

Payable Fund Receilvable Fund Amount Purposs
General Fund Waler Ltility 3 2215 Due trom lax roll - delmguent accounts
General Fumd Sewar Litility 106,085 Dwe from tax roll - delmguent sccounts
General Fund Stomm Water ity 76,054 Dwe from tax roll - delmguant sccounts
Total 5 237258

The remainder of this page is left blank intentionally.
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VILLAGE OF FOX CROSSING, WISCDONSIN
Motes to Financial Statements
Dacamber 31, 2022

Note 4 - Interfund Receivable, Payables and Transfers (Continued)

Interfund fransfers for the wear ended December 31, 2022 as shown in the governmerntal and proprietary funds
statements were as follows:

Tranfers From Transfer To Amourt Purpose
Garbage & Recyling General Fund FO17349 Allocation of Personel Costs
TID #1 General Fund 1,204 Allocation of Personel Costs
TID #2 General Fund 1,485 Allocation of Personsl Costs
D #3 General Fund 205 Allocation of Personed Costs
TID #4 General Fund 212 Allocation of Personel Costs
TID #5 General Fund T.874 Allocation of Personsl Costs
Per Capila Grand General Fund 21,413 Allocation of Personsl Costs
Other Special Revenue Furds  General Fund 37,534 Allocation of Resources
Capital Project Funds General Fund 226,311 Transfer of Debi Procesds
Debl Serdce General Fund &78 Share of Debl Sardce
Water General Fund 712,73 Fayment in Lisu of Taxes
SEwWer General Fund 26,422 Payment in Lieu of Taxes
Storm General Fund 52872 Payment in Lieu of Taxes
TID #5 Watar 111,538 Capital Expenditures
General Fund Oiher Special Revenue Funds B15 Allocation of Resources
Other Special Revenue Funds  Debt Sendce 89,531 Share of Debt Senice
General Fund Equipment Replacament 1,083,132 Funding Equipment Replacarment Fund

£2 880,706
Advances

The general fund advanced funds to the storm water utility fund and is charging interest at a rate of 3.5%. The principal
purpose af the starm waler advance is to finance costs incwred in the storm watar utility rather than borrowing axiernally.
Mo repayment schedule has been established. However, the storm water utility has budgeted to repay 325,000 in 2023,
Interest costs on the advance are recorded as an expanss of the storm wabar utility whan the expense is incurmad,

The pganeral fund has advanced funds to TID #1 and TID #5 for the nitial costs of the fund. The advances la the TID's
will be paid with fulure tax increments of the districts.

The following is a schedule of advances:

Payable Fund Receivable Fund Amount Purpose
Slorm Water LRIlity General Fund F 10648986 Achances Tor construction/adminsirative cosis
TID &1 Ganaral Fund 48 639 Achances for construction/administrative cosis
TID #5 General Fund 123,718 Achances for construction/administrative costs
Total % 280,853
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VILLAGE OF FOX CROSSING, WISCONSIN
Motas to Financial Statameants

December 31, 2022

Mote 5 - Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the vear ended Decembar 31, 2022 was as follows:

Gowvernmental Activities
Capital Assets not being
Depreciated:
Land
Easements
Consirection in Progress
Total Capatal Assels not being
Cepreciated

Other Capital Assels
Land Improvernents
Buildings
Computer Sofbwans
Compuler Equipment
Machinery and Equipment
Vehicles
Roads
Trails

Total Capital Asssts being
Depreciated

Less Accurmulated Deprecigtion for

Land Improvaments

Buildings

Computer Softwans

Computer Equipment

Machinery and Equipment

Wehicles

Roads

Trails
Tatal Accumulated

Depracialion

Total Capital Assets Being

Depreciated, Met of Depreciation

Gowammental Activties Capital
Assets, Met of Accumulated

Depreciation

Balancas Balances
12032 Increases Decreases 12131120232
531,020 465 5 ar 3 - $31,020,502
& - - 088
133,244 111,568 36,468 208,544
31,185,127 111,605 36 468 31,260,264
419 442 - 419 492
14,730,511 412,053 - 15,142 564
258 366 - - 258 366
200,561 a4 502 15,000 202,863
G049 014 TB,810 - 6,127,524
5,685 626 473,070 28,968 6,129,728
20, 780 436 #33, 752 36,224 30,347 964
3,741,735 3,041 735
B0,838 T4 1,662 087 BO 192 B2 420 636
63 407 - - 69,407
6,561,364 482 741 - 7,044 805
285 399 16,862 15,000 287,761
57,740 - - 57,740
4104 235 Aranled - 4 4TF7 809
2. 848 468 474 71T 2B 068 3,202 M7
14,802 642 SE6, 220 32,700 15,356 162
1,973,204 124,681 - 2,097 %85
a0,681 600 2058, 745 T6 668 a2 663,685
30,157 132 {XB6,658) 3,624 28,758,950
$61,342 250 7 (285,053) % 30,002 $61.017.214
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VILLAGE OF FOX CROSSING, WISCONSIN
Motes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2022

Hote 5 - Capital Assets (Continued)

Balances Balances
1172022 Increases Decreases 123172022

Business-Type Activities

Water
Capital Assels not Being
Depreciated:
Land 158313 g - 5 - 5 159213
Constraction in Progress 1,247 524 1,001,823 1,240,758 1,073,119
Total Capital Assets not being
Depreciated 1,407,137 1,071,533 1,240,758 1,238 332
Capilal Assets being Depreciated
Source al Supply 2 284 407 22 258 13,6003 2,293 072
Pumping 1,470,184 - - 1,470,184
Treatment 3,244 GEE 5,440 1,818 3,247 989
Tranzmission and Cistribution 38,976,318 2,813,024 337,040 41,452 372
Ganeral 2553 125 4,108 - 2,557 234
Total Capital Assets being
Depreciated 48 528 407 2 844 911 352 467 51,020,851
Less: Accumulated Depreciation for,
Source of Supply 1,120,173 77,990 13,603 1,184 560
Pumping 718,509 T7.a78 . 796,387
Treatment 2 928 715 58,154 1,818 2,586 070
Transmiss on and Distribution 10,170, 585 15,5962 N4.57r 10,571,570
General 1,638 B2 145 587 - 1,785 BO8
Todal Accumidated
Depreciation 16,575,623 1,075,971 330,389 17,324,395
Tolal Capital Assels being
Depreciated, Met of Depreciation 31,548 59 1,768,840 22 06 33,6596 456
Water Capital
Assets, Net of Accumulated
Depreciation £33 356 116 52 8B40 853 51,262 821 34 534,788




VILLAGE OF FOX CROSSING, WISCONSIN
Motes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2022

Hote 5 - Capital Assets (Continued)

Balancas Balances
115202 Increases Decreasas 123112022
Business-Type Activities
Sewer
Cagpital Assets not B=ing
Depreciated:
Land ] A0 355 g - 5 - ] 80,355
Consinecton in Progress 2408 178 1,113,080 2,401,010 1,120,256
Total Capital Assets not being
Cepreciated 2,488 531 1,113,080 2,401,010 1,200,611
Cagpital Assats baing Depraciated
Collection System 38,441,100 2. 0a2 237 284 710 41,818 627
Collection Systerm Pumgng 1,610,620 - ol BFS 1,058,745
General 1,307,118 448 72 353 062 1.452 128
Total Capilal Assels being
Cepreciated 42 358 338 3,261,209 GO 547 444 830,500
Less: Accumulated Depreciation for
Collection System 10,887 353 48,145 284 710 11,247,158
Collection Systermn Pumgping 1,340 454 &4 400 50,875 1,354 019
General 14,500 B 052 FOF 824 447 Sa9
Total Accumulated
Desprecialion 12,842 347 100,597 1,043,509 13,048, 766G
Total Capital Assets being
Depreciated, Nel of Depreciaton 2941649 2,060,812 (353 862) 41,881,734
Sewer Capital
Assels, Met of Accumulaied
Depreciatan 531,808,022 33,673,702 32,047 028 333,082 345

&1



VILLAGE OF FOX CROSSING, WISCDONSIM
Motes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2022

Note 5 - Capital Assets (Continued)

Balances Balances
1M 2032 Increases Decreasas 123112022
Business-Type Aclivities
Storm
Capital Assets not Being
Depraciated:
Land % 1,850,551 5 - 5 - % 1,850,551
Constrection in Progress 365,250 1,848,219 - 2.37.477
Total Capaal Assets not being
Ceprecialed 2,319,500 1,848,219 - 4,268,028
Cagpital Assets being Depreciated
Slorm Sewer 21,650,041 305,724 - 21,956,765
Equipment 1,873,114 12,400 - 1,885,514
Total Capital Assels being
Depreciated 23523155 318,124 - 23,841,279
Less: Accurmulated Deprecsabon for
Storm Sewer 4 7)) 526 363,450 - 5,083,978
Equigmment 1, 080,58 158, 748 - 1,238,606
Total Accumulated
Deprecialion 5,801, 364 n22,188 - 8,323,582
Total Capital Assets being
Depreciated, Mel of Depreciaban 17,731,711 (204,074) - 17,617,697
Storm Capifal
Assets, Met of Accumulated
Depraciation 520,041,580 51,744,145 3 - 321,785,725

Depreciation expense was charged to functions of the Village as follows:

CGovernmental Activties

General Govemment § 1858112
Public Safety 480, 751
Public Warks Q56 850
Leisure Activties 431,882
Total Depreciation Expense - Govemmental Acthities 52,058,745
Business-Typa Actidlies
Water Uitility 51,075,977
Less: Share of Depreciation Chaged to Sewer {24,457}
Water Lhility Depreciation Expanse 1,021,520
Sewer LHility 700,597
Flus; Share of Depreciation Charged from Water od 457
Sewer Liility Depreciation Expense Voo, 054
Slorm Water Liility 522 198
Total Depreciation Expense - Business-type Activities 52,298,772

Depreciation expense may be diferent for business-type activity accumulated depreciation additions because of joint
matering allocation betwsen the watar ulbility and sewer ulility, salvage, internal allocations, or costs associalad with
the dizsposal of assels.
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VILLAGE OF FOX CROSSING, WISCDONSIM
Motes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2022

Note 6 - Long-Term Obligations

Thie following is & summary of changes in long-term chiigations of the Village for the year ended December 31, 2022:

Qs ta nding Cutstanding Due Within
11122 Increases Decreases 12131122 O Year
Governmental Activites
Bonds and Motes Payable
General Obligation Debt 314,550,000 F 2,540,000 £2,100,000 315290000 5 1240000
Frermium 09,742 90474 153,504 850,712 -
Total Bonds and Mobes
Payable 15,259,742 3,020,474 2,258 504 16,040,712 1,540,000
Compensabed Msences B22,084 600,027 450,055 472056 G527 BTh
Todal Govwermnmental
Aebities Long-Term
Liabilities $16,081,826 $ 3,636,501 £2,708,550 F17.012.768 S 2467 ETS
Business-Type Activities
Bonds and Motes Payable
General Obligation Debt F16162.049 3 2,724,000 51,328 823 F17.560 126 5 B851.252
Fewnue Bonds 23,084,143 - 1,839 405 21,144 7358 1.8E8.747
Premiums 76,944 6,188 105,553 &7y 560 -
Total Bonds and Mobes
Payable 40,024,036 2,730,189 3,371,781 39262 A44 10,839 879
Compensaied Mosences 342,704 143,093 163 440 T AET 172663
Total Busines s-Type
Actnaties Long-Term
Liabilities 540,368,740 3 2073282 53,540,221 539,858,801 511,112 842
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VILLAGE OF FOX CROSSING, WISCONSIN
Motes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2022

Mote 6 - Long-Term Obligations (Continued)

Date of Final Interest Criginal Balance
Issuance  Maturity Rates Indebiedness 12151122

Governmental Activities
Long-Term General Dbligations

2013 General Clhligation Promissory Motes 3 00923 200-3.00% £ 3553090 3 190,000
2015 General Obligation PFromssary Moles 11M1E1S 0125 2 00% 1,120,000 365 D00
201E General Oblgaton Fromesary MNoles OFnas3a 100123 3.00-4 00% 2,235 000 1,635 000
2019 General Cbigation Bonds OMETE L4124 2 00% 2,375,000 1,940,000
2020 General Obligation Bonds 110800 D140 2.00-2 34% 9 1E5 000 7260 000
2021 General Obhgation Bonds 1152221 1001931 2.00-3.00% 1,0&5.000 1,000,000
2022 Genaral Oblgaton Bonds O7MEz2 a2 200-3.00% 3,130,000 2940000
Total Governmental Actvibes Long-Tarm Ganeral Chligations £ 15390000

Business-Type Activities
Long-Term General Dbligations

2010 Clean Water Fund Loan 011310 (60129 115% £ 15888 % 753 461
2013 Clean Watar Fund Loan® o213 0E01a2 265% 3289151 1932865
2014 General Obligation PFromssary Moles DaME14 0124 2 00% 1,570 000 495 00D
2015 General Oblgaton Fromesary MNoles TME1S D125 200% 520,000 305,000
2018 Genaral Oblgaton Fromissory Notes 070518 1028 300-9.00% 2880000 1,870,000
2019 General Cbligation Bonds 0519 0E01249 4 00% 1,605,000 1. 4000000
2020 General Oblgaton Bonds 110820 0401440 2.00-2 34% 2,870 000 2 350000
20 General Colgaton Bonds 12221 10013 2.00-3.00% 550,000 490,000
A0 Mobe Anticipation Motes [ MARN) T2 1201023 {75 5, 240000 B 240,000
2022 General Cbligation Bonds OFMerz2 1 2.00-3.00% 150,000 190,000
2022 Clayban Loan O 2B 22 D228/ 000w B0, 000 60,000
2022 Mabe Anlicipation Mobes [MAM) 100322 12123 352% 2,474 000 2474 000
Total Business-Type Sctivities Long-Term Ganaral Obbgabons £ 1T 56D 126

The Village isswed 53,130,000 General Obligation Promissory Notes dated July 18, 2022 malturing on April 1, 2030
The resaurces will ba usad 1o finance projects in the walar wlility of the Villaga,

The Vilage ssued 52 474,000 General Obligation Mote Anticipation Moles dated October 3, 2022 maturing on
December 1, 2023, The resources will be used to finance projects in the water and sewer ulilities.

* The proceeds of the 2013 Sewer Clean Water Fund Loan were paid directly to the Meenah-Menasha Sewerage
Commissian for expansian of the regional planl. Principal and interest payments on this debl will be paid by
Meenah-Menasha Sewerage Commission under an sgency agreement The debl service is then recovered by
Mesnah-Manasha Sewerage Commission as parl of s anneal wser charges. Thae resulling “Advance to
Meenah-Menasha Sewerage Commission” and “General Obligation Bonds™ of a like amount has been recorded by
tha Village of Fox Crassing Sewer LMility and will be reducad as payments are mada.



VILLAGE OF FOX CROSSING, WISCONSIN
Matas to Financial Statameants

December 31, 2022

Mote & - Long-Term Obligations (Continued)

The annual principal and interest maturities for general chligation debt are as follows:

Governmental Activities Business.-Type Activitles Total
General Obligation De bt General Obligation Debt General Obligation Debt
Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2023 5 1,540,000 £ 408 268 5 8551232 5 42N 5 10,831 232 £ TEOIGD
2024 1,630,000 360 43 1,086 852 206 552 2,916,852 567,835
2025 1,675,000 07 536 1,064,689 158,677 2,693 oih 47,2113
2026 1,885,000 247 305 £32,r50 148,300 2,837 75l 305,605
2027 2,060,000 183,530 £71.041 124,083 3,031,041 307 81E
202B-2052 5,650,000 26T 238 2 E8B 582 322,017 B 578 562 589 255
20332057 - - 85,000 119,613 Q85,000 119,813
2038-2041 - - £80,000 16,588 GEO, 000 18,568

3 15,380,000 £ 1775520 3 17,560,126 3 14833576 3 32,830,126 £ 3,258,386

Estimated payments of accumulated employee benefits and other commitments are not incleded in the above
schedule, For governmeanial activities, the othar long-temn liabilties are generally fundad by the ganeral fund,

Legal Margin for Debt
The 2022 egualized valuation of the Village as cedified by the Wisconsin Depariment of Revenue is $2,285,161,800,

The legal debt imit and margin of indebtedness as of December 31, 2022, in accordance with Section 67.03 of the
Wisconsin Statutes follows:

Equalized Valuation of the Village F 2,285,161,600
Statutory Limitation Parcentage a%
General Obligation Debt Limitation, per Section 67,02 of the

Wisconsin Statues 114,258,080
Qutstanding General Obligation Debt 5 22,850,126
Furds Available in Debi Senice Fund {1,260 238)
Met Dulstanding Genaral Obligation Daebl Applicable to Debt Limit 31,580,888
Legal Margin for Mew Debt P B2ETT 182
Revenue Debt

Business-type aclivities revenue bonds are payable from revenues derived from operalions of the water ufility and
sewer uility.

The waler and sawear ulilities have pledged fulure revesues, nel of specified operating expensoes, 1o repay revenua
bonds issued. Proceeds from the bonds provided financing for capital assets. The bonds are payable salely from
revenues and are payable through 2040, Annual prinzipal and interest payments on the bonds are expecled to
reqguire 21% of water gross revenues and 14% of sewer gross revenues, The tofal principal and interest remaining to
be paid on the bonds s $21.144 T37. Principal and interest pald for the curment year and iotal customer gross
revenues were 32, 578,850 and 53,260,633, respectively,
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VILLAGE OF FOX CROSSING, WISCONSIN

Motas to Financial Statameants

December 31, 2022

Mote & - Long-Term Obligations (Continued)

Revenue Debt (Continued)

Revenue debt payable at December 31, 2022 consists of the following:

Water Liility
2014 Revenue Bonds
20154 Favenus Bonds
20158 Revenue Bonds
2017 Ravenua Bonds
2018 Ravenus Bonds
20749 Ravenue Bonds
200 Ravenus Bonds

Total Water Lty Revenus Bonds

Sawer Liility
2004 Revenue Bonds®
2009 Ravenue Bonds™
2074 Ravenus Bonds
20154 Ravenua Bonds
20158 Fevenue Bonds
2017 Favenue Bonds
2018 Ravenus Bonds
2019 Ravenua Bonds
2020 Revenue Bonds

Total Sew er Lblity Revenue Bonds

*The proceeds of the 2004 and 2009 sewer bonds were paid directly to Fox West Regional Sewerage Commission
for expansion of the regional plant, Principal and interesi payments an this dabt will ba paid by Fox Waest Regional
Sewerage Commission under an agency agreement. The debt service is then recovered by Fox West Regional
Sewerage Commissiaon as part of ils annual usear chargss, The resuling “Advance o Fox Wesl Regonal Sawsrags
Commission” and “Revenue Bonds” of a like amount has been recorded b the Village of Fox Crossing Sewer Litility
and will be reducad as payments are made,

Date of Final Interest Original Balance

Issuance  Maturity Raies Indebtedness 12731122
020314 0E01/23 200-2 55% 3 1492092 3 180,684
[20EMS E0Es  200-2.50% 2,7E3,652 Gl BST
TMAEMS 050128 0080-3.50% 1,177 960 48807
DaMEAT 050125 2004 00% 3,704,032 1848 545
oy 2na 1001428 2.00-4. 00% 813,000 585,000
1058 0R0129 4 .00% 1,745,000 1,650,000
Moe2d  0a014d  200-241% 2,480,000 2.380,000
3 8244492
041404 0E01/23 3,58% ® 1,586,338 3 23,0360
M2 D02 2.6/ % 3,710,849 2548, 507
034 (Ao 200-2.55% BT S84 aee
20as  060Es 200-2.50% 1,981,348 460,244
11HEMS 050135 DED-3.50% 232,040 159,393
D4may a2y 200-4.00% 2,815,983 2566435
07214 100128 2000-4.00% 1,145,000 STE.000
10 Er1% 05012 4 00% 2,050,000 1,915,000
110850 DE01M44] 200-2 41% 4,575,000 4 065000
5 12800245

Dbt sarvica requirements o maturity are as fallows:;

20282032
20:33-2037
2038-2040

2023
2024
2025
2026
2027

Rewenue Bonds
Principal Interest Tatal
3 1988747 3 58507 5 2573818
1,738,874 532 448 2272122
1,783,870 430873 2,264,743
144831 431,774 1,880,045
1,498 004 385877 1,883,081
4,708 130 1,122 DED 2,828,190
4,230,000 848 544 5,128,544
3,700,002 121,691 3,821 693

321,144 T38 34 508438 5256853176




VILLAGE OF FOX CROSSING, WISCDONSIM
Motes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2022

Note T - Lease Receivable

The Village has several leases for which it acls as lessar. The Village leases land to companies who put up cellular
towers for the purpese of transmission and reception of communication signals. The cellular fower leases have ferms
ending bebween 2025 and 2071, The kase recaivables are calculated using an interest rale of 0.35%. For the yvear
ended December 31, 2022, the Vilage recognized $190460 in lease principal and interest revenue related to these
agreaments. Al Decamber 31, 2022, the Village recorded 31,991,413 in lease receivables and deferred inflows of
resources for these arrangemeants,

Beginning Ending Duse Within
Balances Lddifions Reduchions Balancas Cine Year
Call Towears g 2181873 5 - F 190460 31.991.413 5 220 826

Remaining amounts to be received associated with thesa leases at December 31, 2022 are as follows:

Receivable

2023 5 220,826
2024 192 628
2025 157,638
2026 157,638
2027 157 B35
Thareaflar 1,105,045
] 1,991,413

The remainder of this page is left blank infentionally.
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VILLAGE OF FOX CROSSING, WISCDONSIM
Motes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2022

Note & - Net Position
Governmental Activities Statements

Met position of the governmental aclivities reported on the govermment-wide statement of net position at December
31, 2022 includes the Tallowing:

Governmental
Activities
Met Imestment in Capital Assets
Mat Capital Assets P 8107214
Less: Long-Term Dabl Outstanding {15,380,000)
Plus: Unspent Capital Related Debt Procesds 2,975,710
Less: Unamortized Debt Premium (G50, 7120
Mel Investment in Capital Assels 47,852 212
Restricted for:
General Govemmant
Santa Float 2,721
Public Safety
Public Protection 127,831
PD Summer Safety Might 16,6835
FD Meighborhood Watch 457
PD Community Relations 14,768
PD Equitable Sharing 1,147
K-8 Uinif 25 854
FD Citizen Acadeny 338
FO Safety Day 1
FD Public Education 1,252
Fira Thermal Image Cameara 1,860
Fire Defibrillators 147
First Responders 051
Annual Car Event TES
Tatal Public Safety 181,830
Public Works
Capital Projects 5,784 266
Garbage Collection 711,244
&,500,510

&B



VILLAGE OF FOX CROSSING, WISCONSIN

Motes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2022

Note B - Met Position (Continued)

Governmental Activities Statements (Continued)

Restncted far:
Leisure Activities
Park Improvements
Friands of the Park
Disc Golf
Found Lp Program
Boat Trailer Parking Fees
Tree Planting
Woodland Praina
Trail Donations
Special Events
Dpen Space
Total Laisura Actlivtias

Community Desvelopment
Directional Signage
TID Dewlopmeant
Sustainability
Taotal Commurnity Development

Dabi Sanrdce

Pension Benefits
Total Rastnciad

Urirestricted

Tatal Governmental Activities MNet Po=ition

&0

Governmental
BActivities

5 9,225
9,856
141,108
1,228
41,726
4T 255
14,938
1,128
2818
160, 470
425,750

2,500
1,480,613
5,368

1,469,481

BY B20

1,810,774

10,480,788

14,005,121

72448119




VILLAGE OF FOX CROSSING, WISCONSIN
Motes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2022

Note B - Met Position (Continued)

Business-Type Activities

The following calculation supports the water, sewer, and storm water uiilify’s balance of net investiment in capital

assels:

Met Imestment in Capital Assets
Plani in Sendce
Lard
Canstruclion Wark in Progress
Accumulated Depreciation

Subiotal

Less: Related Long-Term Debt Outstanding
Current Portion of General Obligation Debi
Cument Portion of Revenue Bonds
General Obligation Debt Ineested in Capital Assels
Reawnue Bonds Imested in Capital Assals
Unamortized Premium

Subtotal

Add: Urspent Debt Procesds

Met Inwstment in Capilal Assels

Restricted MNat Position
Restricled Assels

Redemption Account
Resarse Account
Depreciation Account
Replacemant Accouni
Construction Account
Pension Benefits

Tatal Restricted Assets

Less: Restncted Assets Mol Funded by Revenues
Resane from Bormowing

Less: Current Liabilites Payable from Restricted Assets

Totlal Restricted Met Positian

Purpose of Restricted Net Position
Depreciation Account
Resere Account
Replacement Sccount
FPension Bensfits

Total Restricted Mat Position

Water Sawer Stormwaler
Uility LHility LHi lity
g 51,020 851 g 44 930,500 g 23841279
159,213 80,355 1,850,551
1,079,119 1,120,256 2,317 477
{17,324,385) {13,048, 766) (6,323,582)
34,934 TEE 33,082,345 21,7TES 725
3,435,000 3,590,000 1,754 877
911,708 358,747 -
2,258,759 - 4,770,585
7,256,975 7.797 882 -
290,706 287517 a3 408
14,153,148 12,034,156 6,618,870
2042 383 1,504 720 891,520
§ 22E24022 % 22842902 5 16058175
- 649 752 % 533,824 %
787,008 845 119 -
485, TE8 2,382 284 1,442,182
- 388 Bod 831,520
2,042,383 1,584,720 -
172,683 117,163 £5, 249
4,148,595 5,962,014 2.418.951
(2,839 3592) (2 539,839)
(49, 406) (53,997 -
% 1,259 7797 % 3388178 5 24185851
$  4B6,TES % 2382284 5 1442182
GO0, 346 479,837 -
- 1BH, 504 B21.520
172,683 117,163 B5 248
g 1,259 747 $ 3388178 g 2418551




VILLAGE OF FOX CROSSING, WISCONSIN

Motes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2022

Note 8 - Individual Fund Balance Disclosure

Thie following governmental funds have a deficit fund balance as of December 31, 2022

Special Revenue Funds

TID #1 3 (38,505)
TID #5 (123,718)
Tatal (159 448)

The deficits will be recovered through fulure tax incremants in the Tax Incrameant Financing Districls and through
future donations and user charges in the Other Special Revenue fund.

Mote 10 - Defined Benefit Pension Plan
Gaperal Information About the Pension Plan

Plan Description. The WRS iz a costsharng multiple-emplover defined benefit pension plan. WRS benefils amd
other plan provisions are established by Chapler 40 of tha Wisconsin Statutes, Benafil tarms may only be madified
by the legiskature, The retirement systemn is administered by the Wisconsin Department of Employee Trust Funds
(ETF). The systam provides coverage fo all eligible State of Wisconsin, local governmeant, and olhar public
emplovees. All employvees, initially employved by a participating WRS employer on or after July 1, 2011, expected to
wiork at least 1,200 hours & year (BB0 hours for teachers and school district educational support employees) and
expecied o be employed for at least one year from empoyes's date of hire are eligible 1o paficipate in the WRS.

ETF issues a standalone Anneal Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR), which can be found at htipsy
el wi.gowabaut-elfi rapars-and-studiesMinancial-raports-and-statements.

Additionally, ETF issued a standalonse Wisconsin Ratiramant Syslam Financial Report, which can alsa bea faund wsing
the link above.

Vesting. For employvees beginning participation on or after January 1, 1280, and no longer actively employved on or
after April 24, 1898, cradilable service in each of five years is requirad for aligibility for & reliremant annuiy,
Farticipants employved prior to 1990 and on or after Aprl 24, 1998, and prior to July 1, 2011, are immediately vested.
Farticipants who initially became WRS eligible an or after July 1, 2011, musi have five years of credilable service to
be vested.

Benefits Provided. Employeas who retire at or after age 65 (54 for protective occupations and 62 for elected officials
and axeculive sarvice rebirement plan parficpanis, # hired on or before Decamber 31, 2018) are antifled to a
retirement benefit based on a formula factor, their final aserage eamings, and creditable service,

Final average earnings is the average of the paricipant's three highest annual eamings pericds. Creditable service
incledas current servica and prnor service for which a paricipant received eamings and made confributions as
required. Creditable service also includes creditable military service. The refirement benefit will be calculated as a
maney purchass benafit based on the employvaes’s coniributions plus matching employer's contributions, with inferest,
if that benefit iz higher than the formula benefit.

Vested paricipants may retire at or after age 55 (50 for protective occupations) and receive an actuarnially-reducesd
banefl. Participants terminating coverad amployment prior to eligibilidy for an annuity may either receve employese-
required confributions plus interest as a separation benefit or leave confributions on deposit and defer application until
eligibla to receive a retirement banafit,

The WRS also providas daath and disability banafits far amployeas.

=)



VILLAGE OF FOX CROSSING, WISCONSIN
Motes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2022

Note 10 - Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Continued)

Posi-Retirement Adjustments, The Employes Trust Funds Board may perodically adjust annuity payments from

the retirement systern based on annual investment performance in accordance with 5. 40.27, Wis. Stal. An increase
(or decrease) in annuity payments may result when investment gains (losses), together with other actuarial
exparence faclors, create a surplus (shortfall) in the reserves, as determined by the system's consulting acluary.
Annuity incresses are not based on cost of living or other similar factors. For Core annuities, decreasss may be
applied only to previously granted increases. By law, Core annuities cannot be reduced to an amount below tha
criginal, guaranteed amaouni (the *floor”) set at retirement, The Core and Variable annuity adjustments granted during
recent years are as follows:

Year Core Fund Adjustment Variable Fund Adjustment
2012 (7.0 (7%
2013 (9.5) g
2014 47 25
2015 28 2
2016 0.5 (5)
2017 20 4
2018 24 17
2019 0.0 (10
2020 1.7 21
2021 2.1 13

Contributions. Reguired contributions are detarmined by an annual acluarial valuation in accordance with Chapter
40 of the Wisconsin Statutes, The employee reguired contribution is one-half of the actuarnially determined confribution
rate for General category emploveas, including Teachers, Executives and Elecled Officials. Starling on January 1,
2018, the Execulives and Elected Officials category was merged into the General Emploves Category. Required
contrbutions for protective employees are the same rale as genaral emplovees. Employers are required to contribute
the remainder of the actuarially determined contribution rate.  The employer may not pay the emploves required
contribution unless provided for by an existing collective bargaining agreemeant.

During the reporting period, the Vilage contributed $542 457 in employer contributions o WRS.

Contribution rates as of Decembear 31, 2022 are:

Employee Category Employes Employer
Gemneral {including teachers,
axaculivas, and alected officlals) 0.75% 0.75%
Protective with Social Securnty 6.75% 11.65%
Protective without Social Security 6.75% 16.25%
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VILLAGE OF FOX CROSSING, WISCONSIN
Motes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2022

Note 10 - Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Continued)

Pension Liabilities (Assets), Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to Pansions

At December 31, 2022, the Village reported an asset of $3,655.479 for its proporiionate share of the net pension
assel. Tha nel pension assel was maasured as of Decembar 31, 2021, and tha tolal pansion liabidity usad o calculata
the net pension asset was determined by an actuarial valuation as of December 31, 2020 rolled forward to December
21, 2021. Mo material changeas in assumptions or benefit terms occurred babtwsen the acluarial valuabon date and the
measurement date. The Vilage's proportion of the net pension asset was based on the Village's share of
confributions to the pension plan ralative to the contributons of all padicipating employers, A Decembear 31, 2021, tha

Village's proporiion was 0.0£2535229%, which was an increase of 0.00024796% from its proportion measured as of
December 31, 2020

For the year ended Dacember 31, 2022, tha Village recognized a reduction of pension expense of $489 224,

Al Decembar 21, 2022, the Vilage reportad deferrad ouflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources relaled
to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Drifferences bebween projected and
actual expenences 5 5905239 k] 425 831
Changes in actuanal assumptions GE1 287 -
Mat differences belween projected
and actual eamings on pension plan
inestments - 8,177,608
Changes in proportion and diferences
betwesan employver contributions and
proportionate share of contributions 5834 1,688
Employer contributions subseguent
to the measurament date 242,457 -
Total 3 735517 % B,E805127
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VILLAGE OF FOX CROSSING, WISCONSIN
Motes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2022

Note 10 - Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Continued)

Thie $542 457 reported as deferred cutflows related to pension resulting from the WRES Emplovers contributions
subsequent 1o the measuremant dale will be recognized as an adjustment of the net pension liability {asset) in the
yvear ending December 31, 2023, Odher amounis reporied as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resounces related to pansion will be recognizad in pension axpense as follows:

Met Deferred
Fiseal Years Outflows
Ending {Inflows) of
December 31, Resources
2022 5 [170,452)
2023 (SE9,14.2)
2024 (434,391
2025 (418,082)
5 (2,012067)

Actuarial Assumptions. The tolal pension liability in he December 31, 2021 acluarial valuation was determined
using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all perods included in the measurement:

Aciuarial Valuation Data: Decamber 31, 2020
Measuramant Date of Met Pansion Lishility (Assal): Decambear 31, 2021
Aciuanal Cost Method: Entry Age Normal
Assal Valuation Methaod: Fair Valua
Long-Tarm Expacted Rats of Returmn: 6.8%
Discount Rate: & 8%
Salary Increases:
Inflatian 3.0%
Senionty/Merit 0.1% - 5.6%
Mortality: 2020 WHS Expenence Mortalily Table
Post-retirement Adjustments” 1.7%

* Mo postreliemant adjustment is guavanfesd dcfual agiustments ae based on recognifed investmend redurn, acfuadal exparence and alfar
factors. 1.73% i8 e assumed snnus’ agjueiment besad o e invesiment reiurm aseumpdon and (e posi-reirement discound A

Actuanal assumplions are based upon an experience sludy conducted in 2021 that covered a three-vear period from
January 1, 2018 o December 31, 2020, Based on this experience siudy, actuarial assumptions used o measure the
total pension lability changed from prior year, including the discount rale, long-term expected rate of return, post-
refirement adjustment, price inflation, mortality and separation rates. The fofal pension liability for December 31, 2021
i% based upon a roll-fareard of the liability calculated from the Decamber 31, 2020 actuarial valuation.

Long-term Expected Relurn on Plan Assets. The long-lerm expecled rate of return on pension plan investmeanls
was determined using a building-block methoad in which best-estimate ranges of expectad future real rates of retum
rexpected returns, net of pension plan insestment expenze and inflation) are developed for each major assel class.
Thesa ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of refumn by weighting the expected future real
rates of relurn by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expecied inflation. The target allocation and
best estimates of geometric real rates of retum for each najor asset class are summarized in the following table:



VILLAGE OF FOX CROSSING, WISCONSIN

Motes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2022

Note 10 - Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Continued)

Asset Allocation Targets and Expected Retums'
Az of December 31, 2021

Lang-Term Lang-Term
Expected Expectad
Aszal MNominal Rale Real Rate of
Core Fund Asset Class Allocation % of Refurn % Return %?
Global Equities £2% 6.8%% 4.2%
Fixed Income 25 4.3 1.8
Inflation Sansitive Assals 19 2.7 0.2
Real Estata T 5.6 a0
Private Equity/Debt 12 a7 7.0
Tatal Core Fund? 115% * B.6% 4, 0%
‘Wariahle Fund Asssal Class
L5, Equities TO% 6.3% 3.7%
Intermational Equities 30 T2 4.6
Total Variable Fund 1005 B.8% 4.2%

"Aszaf Alpcations ae managad within extabishaed ranges; langet parcenfages may difer fom actval manthly aflocabans,

“hisw Englang Pansion Consufants Long Tamm US CRY [inffadion) Forecast 2.5%.

Tha investmant policy used for fhe Core Fund imvalves reducing equify exposure by leveraging bwervoiadity assels such as fived income
saciviban This resuls v &0 asesl sllocabaon Dapond 100%:. Cwremdy, an sssal alocadon tapal af 715% polcy lsvarage s used, sulyec! o an
aVowable range of up fo 20%.

Single Discount Rate. A single discount rate of 8.8% was usad to measure the fotal pension liability, as opposed o a
discount rate of T.0% for the prior year. This single discount rate i based on the expectad rale of relurn on pansion
plan investmenis of 5.80% and a municipal bond rate of 1.84% (Source: Fixed-income municipal bonds with 20 vears
to maturity that inclede only federally tax-exempt municipal bonds as reporied in Fidelity Index's “20-year Municipal
GO AL Index” as of December 31, 2021, In descrbing this index, Fidelity notes that the Municipal Curves are
constructed using oplion-adjusted analytics of a diverse population of cver 10,000 tax exempl securities ). Bacavss of
the unique structure of WRS, the 6.5% expected rate of retum implies that a dividend of approximately 1.7% will
always be paid. For purposes aof the single discount rate, It was assumed that the dividend would always ba paid. The
projection of cash flows used to determine this single discount rate assumed that plan member coniributions will be
made at the current contribution rate and thal employer contributions will be made al rates equal to the differenca
between actuarally determined contribution rates and the member rate, Based on these assumplions, the pension
plan's fiduciary nel posiion was projected to be avallable 1o make all projected fulure benefit payments (including
expecied dividends) of current plan members, Therefore, the municipal bond rate of refurn on pension plan
Investments was applied to all perods af projected banall payments to determine the total pension llability.

Sensitivity of the District's Proporfionate Share of the Net Pension Liability (Assel) to Changes in the
Discount Rate, The following presents the Village's preportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) calculated
using the discount rate of 6.80 percent, as well as what the Vilage's proportionate share of the net pension lability
(asset) would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (5.80 percent) or 1-
parcentage-point higher (7.80 percent) than the current rate:

1% Decrease fo Current 1% Increase To
Discount Rate Discount Rate Discount Rate
{5.80%) {6.80%) {7.80%)
Village's proportionate share of the net
pension Nability (asset) ¥ 2593820 5 (3855479 5 (8.153.810)

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position. Detailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary net position is
available in separately  issuad  financial  statemsnts  available at  hitpsleifw govwaboul-stfireports-and-

studiestfinancial-reports-and-statemenis.
a5



VILLAGE OF FOX CROSSING, WISCDONSIM
Motes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2022

Note 10 - Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Continued)

Payables fo the Pension Plan. The \illage is required fo remit the monthly required contribution for bath the
emploves and Village porlions by the last day of the following month. The amount due to WRS as of Decamber 31,
2022 15 376,195 for December payroll,

Mote 11 - Fost-Employment Benefits Other Than Persion Benefits — Single-Employer Plan

General Information About the Plan

Plan Description. Tha Villags of Fax Crossing operates a single-amplayer ratiree defined benesfit heathcara plan, an
other post-employment benefit (OPEB) plan. The Plan provides healthcare benefitls o eligible refired Village
employaas and thair spousas. The Plan is affilialed with the Wisconsin Public Employer's Group Health Insurance
senvice area plan, a purchasing plan administered by the State of Wisconsin, Benefitz and eligibility for Village
employaas are astablished and amandead through collective bargaining with the recognized bargaining agent far aach
group; and inclede post-employment health coverage. Benefits and eligibility for adminisirators, secretanes amd
general support staff are established and ameandead by the govemning body. The Relires Haalth Plan does nat issue a
publicy available financial report.

Village Employees. The Village alzo provides post-employment health to employees who have reached the age of
25 and samved at the Village with no servica reguirement. Employaes hired pror fo July 1, 2011 veast immediataly,
while those hired onfafter this date are vestes after attaining five years of service. Relirees pay the full cost of
COVErags,

Benefits Provided. Tha Plan provides post-eamployment health banefits 1o eligible eamployess as described in tha
Flan Descnplion section.

Employees Coverad by Benefit Terms, As of the Januvary 1, 2022 actuarial valuation, the following employees
ware covared by the banefit terms:

Inactive employees or beneficiaries curently receivng benefit payments 4
Active Employess T
&1

Contributions. Retired plan members and benaficiaties currantly recaiving benefits are raquired to contnbute
towards the cost of insurance premiums based on the employes group and their retirement date.

There are no assets accumulated to fund the benefits,

Total OPEB Liability. The Village's total OPEB liasility was measured as of December 31, 2022 and was
detarminad by an actuanal valuation as of January 1, 2022,

Actuarial Assumptions. Tha lotal OQPEEB liability in the January 1, 2022 actuanal valuation was dalarminad wusing
the following aciuarial assumptions. applied to all pericds included in the measurement unless otherwise
specifiad:

Aculanal Assumptions
Inflation 2.50%
Discount Rate 4.21% as of December 31, 2022 and
2.25% as of January 1, 2022
Health Care Cost Trend Rates 7.50% decreasing by 0.05% to 4.50%
Mortality Wisconsin 2019 Martality Table




VILLAGE OF FOX CROSSING, WISCONSIN
Motes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2022

Note 11 - Post-Employment Benefits Other Than Persion Benefits — Single-Employer Plan (Continued)

The actuarial assumptions used in the January 1, 2022 valuation were based on the "Wisconsin Refirement System
2015 - 2017 Expanance Study.”

Dizcount Rate, The dizcount rate used to measure the total OPER liability was 4.31%, which is based on the Borl
Buyar GO 20-yaar Municipal Bond Index as of the week of the measurement date, The discount rate used in the

January 1, 2018 actuarial valuation was 4.31%. No assetz have been accumulated in an imevocable trust, so the
Bond buyer GO 20-year Municipal, Bond Indax has bean applied o all panods.

Changes in the Total OPEE Liability:
Inerease (Decreass)
Total OPEE Liability

Balances at 12/31/2021 3 1,724,088
Changes for the year:
Serdce Cosl 133,762
Interest 41,537
Changes aof bernefl terms -
Diffarences between expecied and actual expeanance (185 B78)
Changes of assumplions or other input (245 BOB)
Bensfit Faymeanis {23,638)
Met Changes (253,823)
Balanees at 12/31/2022 5 1,430,265

Sensitivity of the Tofal OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate, The following presants the lotal OPEE
liability of Village, as well as what Village's total OPERB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that
i5 1-percentage-paint lower (3.31%) or 1-percentage-paint highar (5.31%) than the current rata:

1% Decrease Current Discount 1% Increase
3.31%) Rate (4.31%) (5.31%)
Total OPEB Liability % 1,545 854 % 1,430,265 5 1,321,872

Sensitivity of the Total OPEE Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rates. The following presents
tha tolal OPEE liability of Vilage, as well as whal Village's lotal OPEE liabilily would be if it ware calculated wsing

healthcare cost frend rates that are 1-percentage-point lower or 1-percentage-point higher than the current healthcare
coslt trend rates:

Healthcare Cost 1% Increass

1% Decrease Trend Rates (Initial rate of
(Initial rate of {Initial rate of 8.5%
6.5% decreasing T.5% decreasing decreasing to
to 3.5% to 4.5%) 5.5%)
Total OPEB Liability % 1,263,520 : 1,430,285 5 1,623,841

ar
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Mote 11 - Post-Employment Benefits Other Than Persion Benefits = Single-Employer Plan [Continued)

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outfllows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB
Far the vear ended December 31, 2022, the Village recognized OPEB expense of $161,917. At December 31, 2022,
Village reported deferrad outllows of resources related to OPER fram the following sources:

Deferred
Inflows of
Resources
Difflerancas betwean aexpected and
actual experience kS 182,811
Changes of assumplions 18,750
Total % 211,881

Amounts reparted as deferred outflows or resouwrces and defarred inflows of resources related to OPEB will ba
recognized in OPEE expensa as follows:

Net Deferred

Year endoed Inflows of

December 31, Resources
2023 (13,382)
2024 {13,382)
2025 {13,382)
2026 {13,382)
2027 (13,382)
Thereafter {144, 751)
$ 211,661)

Payable to the OPEB Plan, Al December 31, 2022, the Village did not report a payable for the outstanding amount
of contribution to the OPEE Plan requirad,

Hote 12 - Risk Management

The Village is expased o vanous nsks of loss related 1o torts; theft of, damage to, or destruction of assets; amars and
omissions; injuries to employeses; employves health claims, vnemployment compensation claims; and environmental
damage. The Village has purchased commearcial insurarca for medical, dantal and other risks. Tha Village purchases
commercial insurance for short-term disability coverage and the other risks. There has been no reduction in insurance
coverags from the prior year, Insurance safflements for claims resulling from the risks covered by commearcial
insurance have not exceeded the insurance coverage in the past three years.

Mote 13 - Commitments and Contingencies

From time to time the Vilage s involved in legal actions and claims, most of which normally ocour in governmental
oparations. In the opinion of Yillage managament, these issues, and any olher procesdings known o exist ai
December 31, 2022, are not likely o have a material adverse impact on the Village's financial position.

Funding for the operating budget of the Village comes from many sources, including property taxes, grants and aids
from athar units of government, user faas, fines and parmits, and other miscellaneows revenues, Tha Stlale of
Wisconsin provides a variety of aid and grant programs which benefit the Village. Those aid and grant programs are
dapendent on continued approval and funding by the Wisconsin govarnor and legislature through their budget
processes. Any changes made by the State to funding or eligibility of local aid programs could have a significant
impact an the fulure operating resulis of the Villags,

Qg



VILLAGE OF FOX CROSSING, WISCDONSIM
Motes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2022

Note 14 - Water and Sewer Utilities Additional Information and Bond Covenant Disclosures
Number of Customers (Unaudited)

The utilities served the following number of customers al December 31, 2022;

Unaudited
Residential 8,213
Multi-Family 249
Commercial Firi:
Indusirial 21
Public Autharity 22
Total 8,284

Debt Coverage — Water Utility and Sewer LHility

The debt agreement requires that eamings from the sysiem be greater than 1.25 times the revenus bond annual debt
semvice based on the bond year. The coverage requiremant was mel as follows:

Operating revenuas ¥ B302 736
Invesstment income 233,321
Less: Cperation and maintanance expanse {5,685, 424)
Computed Net Eamings & 3,860,633
Subsequant year revenue bomd debl serdce 5 2573818
Less: Fox Wesl Bagional Sewearage Commission

debt sendce not subject to coverage (422,531)
Total debt sendce subject to coverage 2,151,287
Coverage factor required by debl agreesmant 1.25
Required Met Eamings § 2,689109

The utilities have met their debt coverage for 2022,
Mote 15 - Long-Term Contracts

Wastewater is treated under agreemenis betwaen the sawer ulility and the Neenah-Menasha Sewerage Commission
and the Fox West Regional Sewerage Commission. |r 1980, the sewer ulility entered inlo a contract with Neanah-
Menasha Sewerage Commission, Amendmenis were made in 1921 stating municipaliies could withdraw, upon twao
years' notice to the Commission and to each of the athe: conlracting municipalities, from the contract at any tme after
tweniy-five (25) years from the date of the contract anc after full payment of all obligafions of the Neenah-Menasha
Sewerage Commission. The confract betwean the sewer ulility and the Fox West Regional Sewerage Commission
was revised during 2008, The revised contract states municipalities could withdraw, upon two yvears™ notice to the
Commission and o each of the ather contract municipalities, from the contract at any time after fifty (30) years from
the date of the confract and after full payment of all chligations of the Neenah-Menasha Sewerage Commission,

The water ufility has a long-term agreemeant with the Menasha Utilities to purchase a portion of its waler supply.

29



VILLAGE OF FOX CROSSING, WISCONSIN

Motes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2022

Note 16 - Subseguent Events

On Movember 14, 2022, the Village of Fox Crossing Board of Trustees increased the Fox Crossing Sewer Ltility rates
effective January 15, 2023

On December 14, 2022, the Public Sarvice Commizsion of Wisconzin issued a final decision authoring a rate increase
for the Fox Crossing Water Liility. The Village of Fox Crossing Board of Trustees authorized the rate increase io be
effective February 15, 2023

On March 13, 2023 the County Highway 1| Water and Sanitary Sewer Main Exlension project was approved for
#805,000.

On March 27, 2023, the Ninth Street Water Main improvemeant project was approved for $202 889, the Sand Point
Stormwater Pond construction projact was approved for 3886 316, and the 2023 Road Resurfacing Program projects
were approved for $1,307.951,

On April 24, 2023, the Church Pond Stormwater Pond and Wility installation construction project was approved for
33,029,107,

Mote 17 - Restatement of Beginning Net Position

During the year, the Village completad a PSC rate case study. Upon completion of the rale cate it was determined
that, the Village had written off costs of assets that showld have been capitalized in accordance with the PSC
guidelines. The Village has comacted this understatemant af capital assels as shown below.

Business-hpe Water

Activities Ukility
Net Position - Beginning FYS216306 F 25168520
Additional Capital Assels dentified B70 B29 By0EBZB
et Position - Restated 5 7HBET 135 % 25837418

100
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VILLAGE OF FOX CROSSING, WISCONSIN
Wisconsin Retrement Syatemn (WRS) Schedules
Schedule of Employer's Proportionate Share of the Met Pension Liability (Asset]
Last 10 Fiscal Years *

illage's Proportionate

WillEge's Willge's Share of the Plan Fiduciary
WRS Fical Proportion Proporicnate et Pension Met Poaition
‘foar End Date af tha Mat Share of the Village's (Assaf)iLiability  as a Percentage
{Measurerment Pengian Ned Pengion Coverad @5 a Percentage of of the Total
Data) (é4sset)Liabdity  (AssefyLiabdity Payriol Covered Payroll  Pension Liabaliby
123N 0.04535228% § (3655479 & 5677 6T 62 18% 106,02 %
120152020 0.04510433% (2,815 825) 5761008 48.88% 105.26%
123172018 0044 50EE2% (1,435 167) 5,506,675 26.06% 102 .96%
1332018 0.04574825% 1,627,580 5,447 Ta4 20.86% O6,45%
127172017 0.04604T18% (1,367,195) 5301377 25.79% 102.93%
123172018 0.04274025% 352,281 5,180 928 6. 80 20.12%
127152015 0.042859760% 647,078 5,169 600 13.48% DB.20%

Schedule of Emplover Contnibutions
Wisconsin Relirement System
Last 10 Fiscal Years *

Contrbutions in
Relation to the Contributions
Contractually Contractually Caonfribution Covared as a Percentage
Village Required Required Deficiency Employes of Coversed
“Year End Date Conitributions Contribubions [Excess) Payrall Payrall
1HINA022 3 S42457 8 542 457 - 3 5,003 627 9.05%
127172021 930,233 930,233 - 5877677 $.02%
123172020 520879 220979 - 5.761.00& 9 04%
120152019 461,557 461,557 - 5,508,675 4.38%
1273172018 463,031 463,031 - 5,447 T4 8.50%
1HIN20T 440 725 440 725 - 5,301,377 a.48%
127172016 408,754 408,754 - 5,180,928 7.85%%

“The amounis presented for each year ware delermined az of the calendar year-end from the prior calendar year.
Ten pears of data will be accumbated beginning with 2015

Gan Noles fo Fequired Supplementary Informalion
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VILLAGE OF FOX CROSEING, WISCONSIN
Sahwdule of Chargaes in Emplovers Olher Past-Empleymant Banelits Liabiily and Related Ralics
Grher Post-Emplayment Benafits - Single Employer Plan

2018 2030 201 02z
Tatal OPES Liability
Sarvics Cosl ¥ T3S 3 E& 1E8 106 958 ] 133, 7a2
Inberest 48,2253 45 480 IxAE 41,537
Changes af Banalil Wirns - - - -
Giffarances beteren cupeched and achsal axpenence - {49, 440) 25 838 (198 578
Changes ol s plicrs of alles inpul 90,172 12,149 B4 988 [245 E08)
Benefit Payments [28,519) {31 Baay (30,856 [23,536)
MNel Changes in Tolal OPER Lialsility 153,051 181 45T 220,501 [283.523)
Total OFEB Liabilsty - Beginning 1,158,074 1,322 130 1,508 587 1,724,088
Tatal FER Liahikty - Ending [] 1,322,130 3 1,500 587 1.724.088 [] 1,430,265
T E— —
Covered Employee Payroll -] 5,208, 454 3 5,268,695 5417042 ] STAT 421
Taotal WPEB Rability a= a percentage of covered payroll 25.40% 28.40% 31.580% 25.00%

Thara ara no resources accumulated to fund the beralils provided.

S Mirlas 1o Requined Sapplamsantary Infamnalion
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VILLAGE OF FOX CROSSING, WISCONSIN
Detailed Schedule of Revenues and Other Financing Sources - Budget and Actual
General Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

Variance
Original Final Actual Favorable
Budget Budget Amounts  _(Unfavorable)
REVENUES
Taxes
Local Tax Lewy § T4oO3G84 3 0 TOOOBOM 03 TSBA2IT 5 {1,437)
Mobile Horre Taxes 85,000 85,000 63,299 &,.209
Oither Taxes B00 GO0 619 19
Total Taxes T 605,264 7 605, 2684 7862 145 6,881
Intergavernmenial
State fud - Shared Taxes 341, TET 344 TaT 355 348 13,579
State Aid - Computer Exempt 173,088 176, 098 176,098 -
Slate A - Personal Properly Aid G854 09,854 69,804 -
Slate fod - Fire Insurance Dues Bz, 000 82,000 B2, 100 100
Etate Aid - General Transporiation £12 864 510 864 a08 Ta {2 246)
State A - Other Transporiation B5,202 85,202 131,182 45,880
Slate A - Orlher 43,860 49 860 48,700 100
Federal Ald - Ciher Transportabon 83,130 88,130 B4 186 6,066
Fedaral fid - Other 30,004 66,775 Bd, 034 18,1589
Total Intergovernmental 1,733,784 1,770 480 1,852,188 81,724
Licenses and Permils
Liquor and Malt Beverage Licenses 23 000 23,000 32725 4725
Tawern Operators Licenses 12,820 12,820 11,684 {1,236)
Cigaraite Licensas a0n 800 BOO -
Motbile Hame Park oo 00 20 20
Do and Cat Licenses 7700 7,700 6,460 {1,240)
Cahble TV Franchize Fes 172,000 170,000 175,835 5,835
Waights and Measures 3,302 8,302 11,6580 3,288
Cither Mscellaneous Licenses 1,380 1,380 1,385 (25}
Armusement Licenses 2,350 2,350 1,250 {1,100}
Building Permits 102,000 186,013 213,202 27,189
Electrical Parmits 52,000 50,000 a5, 196 45,188
Flumbing Permits 35,000 35,000 9,588 44 568
Heating Fermits 42,000 40,000 53,408 13,408
Sign Permits 2,000 2,000 2,950 50
Slate Parmits 3,700 3,700 3,690 {10}
Loming Permils 27,200 27.500 62,070 4,570
Fira Pratection Permits 5,000 5,000 14,395 4,305
Sireat Excavation 5,500 5., 500 4 550 (050}
Tolal Licenses and Parmits 485,852 581,865 771,668 188,701
Fires and Forfeits
Court Penalties and Costs 142,000 142,000 125,748 (16,252)
Parking Violations 13,000 13,000 12,159 (8413
Ciliwer 2,040 _2.040 2049 __ o
Total Fines and Forfeits 157,040 157,040 130,058 {17,084}

Sea Moles lo Required Supplerentary Infarmalian
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VILLAGE OF FOX CROSSING, WISCONSIN
Dietailed Schedule of Revenues and Other Financing Sources - Budget and Actual (Continued)
General Fund

For the Year Ended December 37, 2022

Fublic Charges for Services
Real Estale Inquiries
Rentals
License Publication Fess
Weed Conirol Fees
Copy Fees-Palice
Impact Fees-Fire
Recraation
False Alarm Feses-Fire
Fire Sarvices-Prevention Visils
Fire Sendices-Vehicle Response
Crther
Total Public Charges for Services

Special Assessments
Epecial Assessments

Investmant Income
Investment Income

Miscellaneous
Miscallaneous

Total Revenues

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Translers In-Ciher Funds
Transfers In-Payment in Lieu of Taxes

Total Other Financing Sources

Tatal General Fund Revenues
and Other Financing Sources

Variance
Original Fimal Actual Favorable

Budget Budget Amounts {Unfavorable)
] 15000 % 16,000 5 14610 § {1,390
108,120 108,190 102,969 {5,.221)
1,430 1,430 1,320 {1109

700 2,473 1,285 {1,128)

500 500 i) 2556

252,000 25,000 188,502 164,302
121,378 126,420 144 BE3 15,473
5,000 5,000 7,135 2135
1,600 1,600 4 363 2,853
8,000 8,000 11,478 3478
5BTS 5.675 14,333 & 858
283,371 300,138 402 443 192,305
18,000 18,000 20,113 2113
83,065 88,085 45752 {52, 333)
33,875 33,975 B, 349 52,374
10,485,371 10,614,837 11,070,512 455 6BS
524,324 243 235 &rg 539 (62,656
630,000 630,000 685 053 55,853
1,454,324 1,672 235 1,566 402 {6, 743)
§ 110833685 & 12187 062 12636004 3 448 042

Sea Moles lo Required Supplerentary Infarmalian
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VILLAGE OF FOX CROSSING, WISCONSIN

Detailed Schedule of Expenditures and Other Financing Use - Budget and Actual
General Fund

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

EXPENDITURES
Genaral Govarnment
illage Board
Adminesiralion
Village Clerk
Financa
Elections
Infarmatian Technology
Assessor
Municipal Complax
Legal Counsel
Judezial
Orher General Government
Total Ganeral Govermnment

Public Salety
Palice
Fira
Inspections
Tatal Fubke Safety

Public Works
Street Maintenance
Transporabon Services
Weed and Nuisance
Total Publc Works

Leisure Activilies
Farks and Public Areas
Racraation
Total Leisure Activities

Canservation and Development
Commamity Devalopmant

Total Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING LISE
Transfars Out

Total General Fund Expenditures
and Other Financing Use

Sae Mobas o Requined Supplemaentary Infarmatian
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Varlance
Orriginal Fiiral Actual Favorable

Budget Budget Amounts (Unfavorable)
5 65,704 % 67,929 41738 3 13,751
192,735 197 5849 183,225 14,374
119,569 123,205 116 486 6,738
B 67T 333,021 283,458 38,562
55,448 5B 448 38,2186 16,232

454 528 59T FaE 498 120 BEGr2
T2.400 106,400 8,997 48,405

BE3 474 736,741 526,180 210,551
100,000 1100, 000 67,246 32,754
90,159 91,535 88427 3,106
457,540 333,276 261,690 71,566
2,623,315 2,734 846 2179214 855,732
3,934,700 3973771 3,854,885 318 866
1,466,314 1,545,161 1,545,046 115
162,508 252 850 252 860 -
2,263 612 2,771,759 2408 791 318,001
2315670 2341112 2,087,804 243,308
242 Bid 243 G534 264 286 [21,812)
il 2,423 2423 .
2,559,054 2578219 2,354,523 221,696
729,302 770,309 B57 673 112,636
320,425 332,082 332,078 4
1,049,717 1,102 391 989,751 112,840
161,625 163,575 154,685 B,860
11,857,383 12,348,923 11,130,874 1,217,240
1,083,632 1,245,470 1,093,747 121,723

§ 13081035 5 13584303 1222471 & 1,330 872




VILLAGE OF FOX CROSSING, WISCONSIN
Motas to Required Supplementary Information
For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

Budgetary Process

The Vilage follows these procedures in establishing the buedgetary data refiected in the budgetary comparison
schedules:

= Prioe ba Movember 20, Village management submits to the Village Board a proposed operating budget far the
calendar year commencing the following January 1. The cperating budget includes proposed expenditures
and the maans of financing them. After submission to the governing body, public hearings ara held o obiain
taxpayer comments, Following the public hearings, the proposed budget, including authorized additions and
deletions, is legally enacted by Village Board aclion.

« Budget confrol i mantained at the coslt cenfer lavel Cost canters are dafined as follows for the
governmental fund types: General and capital projects at department level; special revenue and debt service
at tofal fund leval. Cnca the Village budgst has been adopled, no further amendmeants shall ba made axcapt
throwgh the following process. The Village Manager is authorized to approve infradepartmental activity
fransfers of funds, axcep! ones relating to capital expenditures. Transfers of funds from one departmeant to
another or between funds must be approved by the Village board.

« Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with accounting principles generally accepied in the United Siates
af Amearica far all Village funds. Budget is definad as the onginally approved budget plus ar minus appraoved
amendmenis. Budget appropriations not expended during the vear are closed to fund balance unless
autharized by the govemning body to be forwarded info the succeeding year's budpgal. Comparison schadulas

are presented on the same basis of accounting 2sed in preparing the adopted budget.

# During the year, formal budgetary integration is emploved as a management confrol device for the
governmenial and proprietary funds.

« Encumbrance accounting s used by the Village to record commitments related to unperformed cantracts far
goods or services, Appropriations lapse at vear end unless specifically camied over.

« The Village did not have any material violation of legal or confractual provisions for the fiscal year ended
Decambar 31, 2022,
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VILLAGE OF FOX CROSSING, WISCONSIN
Motes to Required Supplementary Informsation
Far the Year Ended Decambar 31, 2022

Defined Benefit Pension Plan
Changes of banafil lerms, There were no changes of bensfit terms for any participating emplayear in WRS.
Changes of assumpilions.

Basad an a thres-year experienca study conducted in 2021 covering January 1, 2018 through December 31,
2020, the ETF Board adopted assumption changes that were used to measure the total pension lability
baginning with tha year-ended December 31, 2021, including the fallowing:
« Loweering the long-term expected rate of retum from 7.0% 10 6.8%
= Loweanng the discount rate fram 7.0% o 6.8%
+ Lowering the price inflation rate from 2.5% to 2.4%
* Lowearnng the post-retirement adjustmenis from 1.9% o 1.7%
« Morality assumptions were changed to reflect updated trends by fransiticning from the Wisconsin 2018 Mortality
Tabla ta the 2020 WRS Experiencea Maoriality Tabla,

Basad an a three-yaar experienca study conducled in 2018 covering January 1, 2015 through December 31,
2017, the ETF Board adopted assumption changes that were used to measure the total pension lability
baginning with the year-ended December 31, 2018, including the fallowing:
« Lowering the long-term expected rate of retumn from 7.2% to 7.0%
= Loweanng the discount rate fram 7.2% to 7.0%
+ Lowering the wage inflation rate from 3.2% to 3.0%
* Lowernng the prica inflation rata from 2.7% to 2.5%
« Lowering the post-retirement adjustments from 2.1% to 1.9%
= Mortality assumptions were changed to reflect updated trends by transitioning from the Wisconsin 2012
Mortality Table to the Wisconsin 2018 Mortality Talsle.

Post-Employment Benefits Other Than Pension Bensfits — Single-Employer Plan
Changes of benafit ferms. There were no changes of benafil larmes for the Village's early refirament benafits,

Changes of assumplions. Increase in discount rate from 2,25% to 4.31%,
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VILLAGE OF FOX CROSSMG, WISCONSIN
Combining Balanos Shisl
Monmajer Govemimental Funds
A of Decambesr 31, 7027

ASSETS

Zash and Imsusimaems
Aesingied Cash - Debd Serene fom Bond Fremums
Hemreskne

Tisica

OO
Frepad Hems

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED IMFLOWS OF
AESOURCES AND FUND BALGNCRS (QEFICITS)
Liabylrjm s

Apegunts Fayatis

Deposis

Advance o Uimer | unds
Tobal Lissdlition

Caaferresd Infloaws: ol Fasaunces
Taees Lewviesd for Subsaquent Penods

[Fisred Esalaneic | Daficits]

HMonspendahia

Pregand Bems
Rastricad

Equitable BFaring

Pabikc Frolociion

Carbage CodesionHesyting

Equiprrsm Haplecemas

O Special Puiposes
Azsigned

Equpment Heplacemenl
Lissrssigrund (Dakat)

Tolal Fufd Balaneis [Deficits)

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWE OF
RESOURCES AMD FURD BALANCES (DEFIZITS)

S | R Fundu
Tatal
TR T R TID &3 TR M TID A5 TIQ Funds
5 ¥ 20,041 5 Baf, 02 Z8B6:  § 10,000 1,028 602
Rl 427 48 11,5 - - 450,
RELATT 418 353 1,083,524 LTS - 2083432
H 585521 & 285 7B & Z [ D80 Efil & 10000 3 542 HE
g - £ ToDx 8 1 E5T 8 - & 857
10,000 10,00
4838 - - 1210 1r2dad
A8 830 LA 1 E5T 153,718 191 214
AT 41830 1,080, Bl o e - 2063 45
10,04 440 525 1,007,178 el - 14608132
(4R B30) 1133, 716)] (172 ﬁE'.'E

2 BES {13,718

sS850 4

Efdl &

-3 N 3

1 388 I6e

3542 HE




Apecal Revenus Funds Pro Fund

Gariage Githar Tutal
Colleeties Spacial Exgaipitianl Hon-Majpor
ard Recyching Rayenun BRPE Raplacement Funds
E-] BIHEIE & GBd4, T 5 ] 5814, 351 5 2,447 584
- - - - 450 862
1,148 488 - - 3,211 538
4544 4, 555 BA13
I - - - T
3 F013397 & BHD A & - & 291-1 k=31 ! 12154 g.':'
- 153438 & T § - & 0,714 8 176,785
10,200
- - - - 1025
153 436 FG - 10,714 =H 157
1,141 481 - - - 2201 526
T - - - T
- 1,147 - - 1147
1Zrex 12781
s - - - S
- EGT GI3 - - 2,018 205
- - - =, B R 2R
- . - - {172,357
J'11|H1 lﬁﬁ?ﬂ- - EIB'HIB}T EIEH B4
3 FREF< I ] BHD A & - & G914 351 ! 12154 E.‘:‘




VILLAGE OF FOX CROSSING, WISCONSIN
Cambining Statamant of Fevanues, Expasdilums and Changas in Fund Balances (Dalicits]

Nenmajor Givesnmental Funds
Fear the Yasr Ended Decambar 31, 2022

RENEMUES
Taxas

Intergovemmental
Puibdic: Charges ki Sarvices
Irvestment Inoomas

Mescallansaus

Todal Revenwes

EXFEMDITURES

Gerweral Gowsnmant

Pubiio Safeby
Pubdic: Warks
Lizssung Actisites

Consarnalion and Devalapman

Capital Qullay
Diabl Sarvics
Primecipal

It e s Baempanicas Cionale
Tofal Expendiures

EXCEES |DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER
[UMDER) EXPENHTURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USE)
tssuanps of Long-iem Dbt

Band Pramium
Transfers In
Transfiars Cul

Tofal Other Financing Sources (Use|
HET CHAMGE IN FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS]
FUKD BALAHCES (DEFICITS) - BEGINMING

FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS) - ENDING

Special Rewernie Funds

Taotal

TID #1 TID #2 TD %3 TID ¥4 TID #§ TID Funds
3 sseaz2z  § 411,258 53 1228204 5 6601 - % LINATS
13 7,084 - - - 7,607
285 10,048 6,048 2 - 16,413
556,630 428,900 1,232,342 6523 - 2,324,458
18,081 8751 B18,704 150 1018 1,435,584
£0,000 245,000 - - - 288,000
113,318 46,30 16300 - - 177.918
571,313 488,951 B3T, 004 150 1,018 1,858,503
(14, 70 180,051} 305,336 BATI (1.018] 335,983
{12044 11.485) (55) (212} (119.410) [122.818)
1,204} i1,485) {505) (212} (119,410] 122, B1E)
{156,953} 61,536} 334,833 6,261 (120,428 Jri e i
(22,642 502,061 61.2, 346 (3,335] (3,230 1,085,075
5 F-HIE’BEE 5 -1-'-|I]|525 5 1&1’.11’“5 = EEE £ I'Il'l'."'l-!l £ 'II&IE-E




Special Revenis: Furds [ 1P Fund
Garbage Collissr Tokal
Collection Special Equipment Mon-Sajor
arul Recycling Grants Mevenue ARPA Rieplacement Funds
§ - § - a5 - ¥ 3 2,221,648
0 G 21,413 - 1,988,569 2,078,645
1201 520 - 153,020 - - 1,354,840
10453 - 5,305 B, 979 Brf,BES 100,065
41823 - 33,343 - - 75,166
1313817 21,413 216,842 1,985,538 57 ,BES 5,830, 475
- - 1,951 1,151
- - frary o3 276
1000 461 - - 1,008 461
- - 16,182 16,182
R B ; ; ; 1,435,584
249219 - 1,996,019 213,661 2,458,855
- - 285,000
TASG - - - - 185411
1.2555 173 - 17, E05 1,956,015 213,661 B, 351, 564
47 B 1,413 184, 234 {81} [155.782) 438,411
245 000 - 245,000
TE19 - - - T.810
- - 3] 1,083,132 1,083,747
(173.491) (#1413 [127.865) - {445,585
T 121,413 [127,280) 1,083,132 500,581
123972 - T,584 30 537,340 1,335,392
2B 35 - ENd, ERE Bl 4 BE6, 297 1,260,353
£ 11 El £ - Bl § 5 EIB'DEIE]]' 5 EEBB-ITH




VILLAGE OF FOX CROSSING, WISCONSIN
Schedule of Revenues, Expendilures, and Change in Fund Balance - Budget to Actual
Debt Service Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

Variance
Original and Actual Fawvaorable
Final Budget Amounts {Unfavorable)
REVEMUES
Taxes k] 1,885,064 3% 1,885,083 3 (1)
Special Assassmeants 572 5,484 (B3}
Investment Income 5,435 22478 17,043
Total Revenues 1,876,071 1,893,030 16,5959
EXPENDITURES
Debt Service
Principal 1,815,000 1,815,000 -
Interest and Fiscal Charges 271,233 281,203 {18,970
Total Expenditures 2,086,233 2,106,203 {189,970)
DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES
UNDER EXPENDITURES (210,162) (213,173) 13,0113
OTHER FINAMCING SOURCES (USE)
Bond Premium . 64,237 64,237
Transfars In 30,000 B8 531 58,831
Transfars Cui (850 {B78) {28)
Total Other Financing Sources [Use) 28,150 153,280 124,140
MET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (181.012) (39.883) 121129
FUMD BALAMCE - BEGINMING 1,429,121 1,428121
FUND BALANCE - ENDING ﬁ 1,248 109 ﬁ 1i35'9i23-ﬂ ﬁ 121”2‘9
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VILLAGE OF FOX CROSSING, WISCONSIN
Scheduke of Revenues, Expenditures, and Change in Fund Balance - Budgel to Actual

Capital Projects Fund

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

REVENUES
Irvessimwant Incomse
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Capital Outlay
Interest and Fiscal Charges
Total Expenditures

DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES
UNDER EXPEMDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USE)
lesuance of Long-Term Debt
Bond Preamium
Transfers Out
Tolal Other Financing Sources (Use)

MET CHAMGE IN FUND BALANCE
FUND BALANCE - BEGINMING

FUND BALANCE - ENDING

Variance
Criginal Fimal Aclual Favorable
Budget Budget Amounts {Unfavorable)

5 10000 % 0,000 3 1IWr228 % 167,228
- - 5,000 5,000
10,300 10,000 182 Z2E 172 228
2,139,500 2,139,500 1,842 543 205 957
30,7300 30,000 52, TER (52, TEE)
2,169,500 2,169,500 1,825,331 244 169
(2,159,500} (2.158.500) {1,743, 103) 418,387
2,459 200 2 816,891 2,506, 000 236,000
- - 27 418 274148
(5000, 200} [B57.911) (528,311) [28,311)
1,959,200 1,958,000 2194 107 235,107
(200,500 (200.500) 459,004 651,504
7 raaaar ¥ 788 Eav T TEE BET .
] 7588387 % 7588387 % Bxioas1 & 651,504
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VILLAGE OF FOX CROSSING, WISCONSIN
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Charge in Fund Balanca (Deficit) - Budgat to Actual

Tax Incramental Distnict #& - Special Revanue Fund
Far the Year Ended December 31, 2022

Variance
Criginal and Actual Favorable
Final Budget Amounts {Unfavorable)
REVEMUES
Taxes 3 6686 & BE01 % (B85)
Interest revenue - 22 22
Total Revenues 6,686 6,623 (E3)
EXPENDITURES
Consenvation and Devalopriwent 1640 150 10
EXCESS OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES 6,526 8473 (23]
OTHER FINAMCING USE
Transfers Out (200) (212) (12)
MET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT) 6,326 5,261 (65)
FUND DEFICIT - BEGINNING 13.396) [3,396) =
FUMD BALANCE - ENDING § EIEED § EIBES § ;ES!
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VILLAGE OF FOX CROSSING, WISCONSIN
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Change in Fund Deficit - Budget to Actusal
Tax Incremental District #5 - Special Revenue Fund
For the Year Ended Decembear 31, 200232

EXFENDITURES
Conservation and Development

OTHER FINANCING SOURCE (USE)
Transfers In

Transfers Car
Tatal Other Financing Source [Use)

HET CHAMGE N FUND BALAMNCE
FUMD DEFICIT - BEGINMING

FUMD DEFICIT - ENDING

Variance
Original Fimal Actual Favorable
Budget Budget Amounts {Unfavorable)
3 5 1016 3 {1,018)
- 121,838 - (121, 838)
- (121,638 {118.410) 2,428
. - (112.410) (119,410}
_ . {120.428) (120,428)
(3.200) (3,280} {2,280) -
5 (3290) 3 (3290) 5 (123718) § (120,428
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VILLAGE OF FOX CROSSING, WISCONSIN
Schedule of Revenues, Expendilures, and Change in Fund Balanece - Budgel bo Actual
Garbage Collection and Recycling - Special Revenues Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

REVENUES
Intergovernmental
Public Charges for Senices
Imvestment Incoms
Miscellanaous
Total Revenues

EXPEMDITURES
Pubdc Works
Debt Service
Inlerest and Fiscal Charges
Capital Outlay
Total Expenditures

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVEMUES
OVER (UMDER} EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USE)
Proceads from Long-Term Daebl
Bond Premium
Translers In
Transfers Out

Taotal Other Financing Sources (Use)
HET CHAMNGE IN FUND BALANCE
FUND BALANCE - BEGIMNING

FUND BALANCE - ENDING

Variance
Origimal Final Actual Favorable

Budgel Budget Amounls {Unfavorable)
5 57,000 % Gr.ooo % hoges & 2 GG
1,203 340 1.203 B40 1,201,828 [2.011)
2000 2,000 10,4980 8,484

2 )68 2 068 41,825 39,755

1,264 308 1,264,808 1,313,817 48,809
832,140 832,140 1,008,461 [77.321)
. . ¥Aaa93 [7.483)

105,334 345,834 248,218 06,615
1,037 374 1277874 1,266,173 11,601
226,334 [13,066]) AT, B4 60,710
245,000 245,000

- - 7818 7.B14
- 240,000 . {240,000)

(222 315} (222 915) (173,491) 49,424
[222.315) 17,085 79328 62,243
419 40149 126,972 122,953

584 348 o4 540 SEd4 340 -

5 GHOEE % GaR3EE 3 711321 & 122 853
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VILLAGE OF FOX CROSSING, WISCONSIN
Schedule of Revenues, Expendilures, and Change in Fund Balance - Budget to Actual

Grants - Special Revenue Fund

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

REVENUES
Intergovernmeantal

EXPENDITURES
General Government

EXCESS OF REVENLUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING USE
Transfers Out

MET CHANGE IM FUND BALANCE

FUMD BALAMCE - BEGINMING

FUND BALANCE - ENDING

Variance
QOriginal and Actual Favorable
Final Budget Amounts (Unfavorable)
b 21548 % 21413 % {135)
6,548 - 6,548
8,452 21,413 12,961
(15,000) (21,413) (6.413)
(6,548) . 6,548

5 (6.548) & - & 6548



VILLAGE OF FOX CROSSING, WISCONSIN
Schedule of Revenues, Expendilures, and Change in Fund Balance - Budget to Actual

Other Special Revenue Fund

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

REVEMUES
Taxes
Public Charges for Sarvices
Investment Incoma
Miscellaneous
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Currant:
Genearal Governmeant
Public Safely
Liesura Activities
Total Expenditures

EXCESS OF REVENLUES
OVER EXPEMDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCE (USE)

Transfers In
Transfars Out

Total Other Financing Source (Use)

MET CHANGE IN FUNMD BALAMCE

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING

FUND BALANCE - ENDING

Variance
Original and Actual Favorable
Final Budget Amounts (Unfavorable)
4 8000 % 21,171 12,171
65,500 153,020 87,520
5,000 8,308 4,308
22,050 33,343 8,203
104,550 216,843 112,283
2,000 1,181 244
8,500 278 8,224
6,750 16,182 19.432)
18,250 17 6048 B4
8&,300 184,234 112,834
1,400 615 (785)
[42,380) (127 ,865) {B5,485)
(40.980) (127,250 (86.270)
45320 71,884 26 564
G14, 588 G514 586
b E29906 3 B846,570 26,664
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VILLAGE OF FOX CROSSING, WISCONSIN
Schedule of Revenues, Expendilures, and Change in Fund Balanece - Budgel bo Actual
Equipment Replacerment Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

Variance
COriginal Final Actual Favorable
Budgel Budget Amounls {Unfavorable)
REVEMUES
Irmvestment Incoms 5 15100 § 15,000 & E7BE0 % 42 BEY
EXPEMDITURES
Capital Cullay G20.382 853,132 213,661 406,721
DEFICIEMCY OF REVEMUES
UNDER EXPENDITURES (605,382} (638.132) {1556, T92) 449 580
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Sale of Capital Assels 72598 105 448 . (T2 698)
Transfers In 1.094.315 1,094 815 1,003,132 [(1,783)
Tatal Other Financing Sources 1,167,313 1.200 363 1,095,132 (74 4E1)
MET CHAMNGE IM FUND BALANCE oGz 2 562,231 Q3T 340 375,109
FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING 4 966,297 4 966 287 4 BeE Far -
FUND BALANCE - EHNDING & 5528528 % 5628628 3§ Hoapyeir & 375,100
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VILLAGE OF FOX CROSSING, WISCONSIN
Schedule of Revenues, Expendilures, and Change in Fund Balance - Budget to Actual

ARPA Capital Project Fund

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

REVENUES
Intergovernmeantal
Invesiment Incomaea

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Capital Quilay

DEFICIENCY OF REVEMUES
UNMDER EXPEMDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers Out

MET CHANGE IN FUNMD BALAMCE
FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING

FUND BALANCE - ENDING

Variance
Original and Actual Favorable
Final Budget Amounts (Unfavorable)
5 18898958 % 1289858 % 1,989 958
1,000 5,973 5,973
1,980,958 1,985,938 1,985,938
(1,980,950} 1.886,019 [1.986.019)
- {B1) {B1)
(81} (813
E1 B1
b &1 b b {81}
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VILLAGE OF FOX CROSSING, WISCONSIN

Combining Batance Sheet Schadule
Tax Incramantal Disincf Sufunds
Az of Docembar 31, 2022

ASSETS
Cash and nvesimants

Resinchad Cash < Dabt Sarvica from Sand Framidms

Tamos Receivable
TOTAL ASSETE

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES [DEFICITS)
Liabilnss

Accounts Payabile
Dwe To Ciber Funds
Total Liabdlities

Dafarmad InMows of Resources
Taxas Lavied for Subsaguant Periods

Fund Balarsas (Dalicits)
Riasiriciod
ther Special Purposes
Unassigrad [Daficits)
Total Fund Balances [Deficits)

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES ([DEFICITS)

TID W TID #1 TID W TID 2
Special Revemie Debt Service TOTAL Special Revenuse
5 - £ - 5 - 5 20,041
- 10,044 0,044 -
524 847 30530 5585 477 318 256
g 524 847 £ A0574 & SES 521 E 458 500
5 : £ = & E ] 7000
48,838 - 45,850 -
48.E28 - 48 633 7.000
5§24 547 A, 530 588 4TT 418,255
- 10,044 10,044 13,041
(48 B35 - (48 E33) .
(MIE-.‘!E-| 10,044 (E-EIE-EIE] 1f||l:l-l'-l1
5 524 847 £ A0574 5 SBS 521 5 458 300
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TID 2 TID w2 TiD @3 TID ¥3 TiD M3

Debt Service TOTAL Spacial Revanise Debt Service TOTAL
L] - 5 20,041 3 345 702 5 - £ 245 702
427 484 4Z7 484 - 13,334 13,334
- 418 255 1,078 G538 5235 1,083 934

i = & roae 1,857 5 - 3 1.857
s ¥, 0l 1,857 . 1,857

s 418,258 1,078 658 5236 1,083 934

42T 484 A4, 525 293,545 13,334 1,007.1749

427 484 440 525 £33 5645 13,534 1,007 173

i 427484 5 Bi55 T84 & 2,074,400 3 18,560 £ 2082580
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VILLAGE OF FOX CROSSING, WISCONSIN
Combmning Schedule of Revenues. Expendiures and Changes m Fund Balances | Defals)
Tin brcsvrrminiad Dosaniel Subdunds
For the esr Endied Decambar 312122

oM TiD &1 TID & TID & il=l 3
Epecial Aevenas Capital Paopecin Dbt Service TOTAL Special Resenus
REVEMUES
Tawes k] S § L T ] 40,000 § pPhl2 % 163,300
Inmergossermimenial 12 - . 13 T,55d
Inveetmenl Inooms - - 205 205 o)
Total Revenues 216,25 o 41, 255 b 630 L e
IXPFINDITURES
Conservalion and Detse opmaeni 417,783 | . 415,061 197 551
Dbl Sarvica
Frincipal 413,000 20 KD
Inlzrest ond ssuance Costs 108,198 - 7,520 1132318 -
Total Expenditures ash o8 L) AT 2y b 187 551
EXCESS [DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUEE OVER
(UNHDER] IXPERNTURDS 7.3 G2y 72255 114, 7aE) 126 A58}
OTHER FINAKCIMNG SOURCES (UISE)|
Transhens In q,r 3 4,738
Transfors Out [1,204) {4738} . (5 BT [1.485)
Total Other Financieg Sources |Lses) 11,0 fLREL] 4.7 (1.2 11 Aday
NET CHAMGE IN FURD BALANCES [DEFICITS) 8,506 e sen} 3287 {15.953] [T 1)
FUND BALAKCEE (DEFICIT] - BEZMMING 40, 13035 £ 960 13,531 {22 B4Z) 41 0E3
PUND BALARCES (DEFICIT) - INDING S {4863 & - = g 8 j3e.085) B 13,041
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D a2 TID &2 TID ¥3 TiD 83 TID #¥1 TD 52 D 8%
Eapital Prajects  Debt Servics TaTAL Special Revenue  Capital Projects Dbt Service TOTAL
5 5 Mres 5 411,258 £ 120788 % £ 100 1,426,304
. - 7,584 - - - -
4.579 5206 10045 5788 151 i G4
4,508 SO0, 166 LN L) 1,273, g 131 18, a0 1302 342
- 197,651 B18, 704 - - B1E 74
a5 D 245, [0
a6 200 45,300 - - 18,300 18300
201K Ab2.01 4. i - 18 HK o7 e
A.57% 136,134} (E0L0ST) JEe. 078 151 e 385 336
WL EFD JELHIS 13225 THEES
[ - | 387 4607 jLL=]] |13 225} - {12730
(AT RLEETH 114651 13 [IEFEL] 13225 (]
[ic-r ] 5T 211 81,5038 I5TE 13074 1233 a4 833
ol yoE 63 543 500 061 596,372 13074 - G61% 385
§ - § 431r4gd  § A40h2n B HEEN S =] - & 13,334 1,007 178
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VILLAGE OF FOX CROSSING, WISCONSIN
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Change in Fund Deficit - Budget to Actual
Tax Incremantal District #1 - Special Revanus Fund
For the Year Ended Decamber 31, 2022

Variance
Original and Actual Favorable
Final Budget Amounts (Unfavaorable)
REVENUES
Taxes 3 523432 & S162868 3 (7,166)
Intergovarnmeantal T.E0T 13 (7,584
Total Revenues 531,034 516,278 {14, TE0)
EXPENDITURES
Conservation and Developmeant 424 536 417,783 6,753
Debt Service
Interest and Fiscal Charges 105,798 105,788 -
Total Expenditures 230,234 523,581 6,753
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVEMUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 705 (7,302 (8,007
OTHER FINAMCING USE
Transfers Out (=00 {1,204) (70d)
NET CHANGE IN FUMD BALAMCE 205 (8,508) (8.711)
FUND DEFICIT - BEGIMNING (40,133) (40,133) -
FUND DEFICIT - ENDING % (39,8287 % (48,628 % (8,711)
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VILLAGE OF FOX CROSSING, WISCONSIN
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Change in Fund Balance - Budget fo Actual
Tax Increamental Disiriclt #1 - Dabl Sarvice Fund
Far the Year Endad Dacamber 31, 2022

Variance
Original and Actual Favorable
Final Budget Amounts (Unfavaorable)
REVENUES
Taxes 3 40,000 3 40000 % .
Intarest revenue - 285 285
Total Revenues 40,000 40 295 285
EXPENDITURES
Debt Service
Principal 40,004 40,000 -
Interest and Fiscal Charges 7,830 V220 10
Total Expenditures 47,830 47,520 210
DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES
UNDER EXPENDITURES (7.830) (7,225) Gos
OTHER FINAMCING SOURCE
Transfers In 7830 4,738 (3,082
MET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE . [2.487) (2487
FUMD BALANMCE - BEGINNING 12.531 12,531
FUND BALANCE - ENDING 3 12531 3§ 10044 5 L2487
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VILLAGE OF FOX CROSSING, WISCONSIN
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Change in Fund Balance - Budget to Actual

Tax Incramental Distnd #2 - Special Revanue Fund

Far the Year Endad December 31, 2022

REVEMUES
Taxes
Intergovarnmantal
Interest revenus
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Conservation and Development

DEFICIEMCY OF REVEMUES
UNDER EXPEMDITURES

OTHER FINAMCING USE
Transfers Qut

MET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE
FUND BALAMNCE - BEGINNING

FUND BALANCE - ENDING

Variance
Original and Actual Favorable
Final Budget Amounts {Unfavorable)
¥ 16BE0E 3§ 183,308 3 (5,298)
14 817 ¥,a494 (7,323)
50 253 203
183,573 171,155 [12,418)
180 444 197,651 1,793
{15,871) (26 498) (10,625)
{1,000) {1,485) {485)
(16,871 [27.951) (11,110)
41,022 41,022 -
¥ 24151 % 13041 & (11,110]
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VILLAGE OF FOX CROSSING, WISCONSIN

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Change in Fund Balance - Budget fo Actual
Tax Incremental District #2 - Capital Projects Fund
Far the Year Endad Dacamber 31, 2022

REVEMUES
Interest revenue

OTHER FINANCING USE
Transfers Qut

MET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE
FUND BALAMNCE - BEGINNING

FUND BALANCE - ENDING

Variance

Original and Actual Favorable
Final Budget Amounts {Unfavaorable)
3 - & 4579 § 4,570
(400,000) (3853975) 4,025
(400.000) [381,396) 8604

381,206 391,396

] (8.604) 3§ - B804
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VILLAGE OF FOX CROSSING, WISCONSIN

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Change in Fund Balance - Budget fo Actual
Tax Increamental Disfricl #2 - Dabl Sarvice Fund

Far the Year Endad Dacamber 31, 2022

REVEMUES

Taxes
Intarest revenue
Total Revenues

EXPEMDITURES
Debt Service
Principal
Interest and Fiscal Charges
Total Expenditures

DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES
UNDER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCE
Transfers In

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE
FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING

FUND BALANCE - ENDING

Variance
Original and Actual Favorable
Final Budget Amounts (Unfavaorable)
3 247,950 247950 % -
500 5218 4 716
248 450 233,166 4. 7168
245000 245,000
45,300 48,300
201,300 281,300
{42 850) (38,134) 4 716
442 850 3858975 (45,875)
400,000 A57.841 (42,159)
69,643 B0 643
3 459 643 427484 3 (42,158)
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VILLAGE OF FOX CROSSING, WISCONSIN
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Change in Fund Balance - Budget to Actual
Tax Incramental Distnct #3 - Special Revanue Fund

Far the Yeaar Ended December 31, 2022

REVENUES

Taxes
Interest Revenua
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Conservation and Developrment

EXCESS OF REVENUES
OVER EXPEMDITURES

OTHER FINANCING USE
Transfers Qut

MET CHANGE IN FUND BEALANCE
FUND BALAMNCE - BEGIMNNING

FUND BALANCE - ENDING

Variance
COriginal and Actual Favorable
Final Budget Amounts {Unfavorable)

k- 1223791 & 1,207,994 & (15,797
- 5, TEE 5 TEE
1,223,781 1,213, T82Z {10,0089)
833,237 818,704 14,533
380,554 395,078 4,524
(500 (503) (5)
380,054 394 573 4,519
500,272 599,272 =

5 989326 & 993845 & 4519



VILLAGE OF FOX CROSSING, WISCONSIN
Schedule of Revenues, Expandituras, and Change in Fund Balancea - Budget to Actual
Tax Incremental District #5 - Capital Projects Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

REVEMUES
Interest Revenue

OTHER FINAMCIMNG USE
Transfers Out

MET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING

FUMND BALANCE - ENDING

Variance
Original and Actual Favorable
Final Budget Amounts {Unfavorable)
3 - % 151 % 151
(13,000) (13,225) [225)
(13,000] (13,074) (T4}
13,074 13,074
b 74§ - & (74)
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VILLAGE OF FOX CROSSING, WISCONSIN
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Change in Fund Balance - Budget fo Actual
Tax Incramental Disfiricl #3 - Dabl Sarvice Fund

Far the Year Endad Dacamber 31, 2022

REVENUES
Taxes
Intarest revenue
Total Revenues

EXPEMDITURES
Interest and Fiscal Charges

EXCESS OF REWVENUES
OVER EXPEMDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCE
Transfers In

MET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE
FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING

FUND BALANCE - ENDING

Variance
Original and Actual Favorable
Final Budget Amounts (Unfavaorable)
3 18200 3 18300 % .
- 108 108
18,300 18,409 108
18,300 18,300
108
13,000 13,225 225
13.000 13,334 334
:] 13000 3§ 13334 5 334
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STATISTICAL SECTION



VILLAGE OF FOX CROSSING, WISCONSIN
Slatistical Saclion

This zection of the Village of Fox Crossing's annual comprehensive financial report prezents detfailed current and
historical information as a context for understanding what the information in the financial statemants, nole disclosuras
and required supplementary information says about the Village's overall financial health.

Conbents Page
Financial Trends

Thesa schedules contain frend information to help the reader undersiand haw the govammeant’'s

financial performance and well-being have changed ower time. 138-144
Rewvenue Capacity

Thesa schedules contain informabon o help the reader assess the govermmants most

significant local revenue source, the property tax. 145148
Debt Capacity

Thesa schadule present informalion to help the meader assess the affordabilly of the
government's current level of outstanding debt and the government’s ability to ssue additional

dablt in the future. 148-153
Demographic and Economic Information

These schedules contain demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand

tha environmeant within which the govamment’s financial activities lake placa. 154-158
Operating Information

These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how the

infarmatan in the govermmeant's financial repar relales to the servicas the government provides

and the activilies it performs. 158-161

Sources:

Urnless othersise noted, the information in these schedules s derived from the annual
comprahansive financial reports for the relevant year,
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Schadule 4

Wilage of Fox Crossing, Wiconsin
Fisrad Balanees, Soverfmintal Fufds
Last Ten Flscal Yaars
[modified aoorual barsis of mooosaring

Fiscal Year
FLIRE] FIEL] FiE] FLAL FIE Fl] FIE] FLEL] 281 FLEE]
Genarl Fusd
Manzpendalia £ A TAR & MO0SE £ I 5§ ARATH § MOANS & JMATF § IN0EX ¥ DMAde & 0225 & ek Mm
CoommirmiEssal 1HEAZ? U556 1SS0 AR ZAENT44 295354 2297 TM RASTAST 260205 27977
Asaigned 1ETHE  L0I0EE  1BE34T 1270 1T EW 1138317 14RDASD 120005 1I9SA1d 2400504
Ursassigned 27,772 3IHTIAE I TAION)  BE4G6S IO0G530 J4STM4 4535143 4095733 4 3ITAT1 354730
Total Genaral Fund HOB1 2 EBH 440 7iHsB0E 741970 JTEeabes  @bsr0h:  BEOLG0  BOd4 71l 5182515 GEGL T
Other Govemmental Funds
Monspendabin . 100,000 . . . « 1,241,300 . i
Resiioted 767,528 543 254 38515 624,53 TI4486  Z4STEID  1433T04  EANZ3E3  I0,ZS3SES 11,187,828
Commifed . F ' 1 " 1 L 1
Amsigned LoD 3S0TY azatals ATRRET  ATERTAS 44N PET SRSTIE REMI23 sEnAes 7025
Uraszigned - - 11,8 L O LA L - PELEN (00,64} £l 550 172387
Tolal Diter Gosemmenial Funds EAMAGET 4 narodl  SOraTEl A aMal [ I L % [ [ < I [ N TR
Total 81 Breemmanial Funds SI0AESETH S11178471 12367385 511534775 S13044110 £14 B3306F §16.304428 S23063E0% ERSES0 NS 837 79I T

hoke T Vilags implamenied GASE Elatemsd 52 in 2071

N AHE, e Town of Menasha, in s enbinety, incorpormed into tha Village of Fox Crossing; hoeeforn, staksical data prior Io fiscal year 2017 iz froms the Town of Monasha, Faga 143
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Schedule &

Village of Fox Crossing, Wisconsin
Assessed and Equalized Value of Taxable Property
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Real Property Personal Property
Assessed Values Azsessed Value Tatal
Combinsd
Residential — Commercial  Manufacturing Other Commercial & Mig, Valug Valug
£59.854,900 338 575,100 1EC 182,100 2472400 3,382,500 1451.273,000 1,284 275,300
£23,550,600 344 Ta5.200 152,125,500 ZAET 400 1,835,900 1455,553,800 1.434 553,900
00,530,600 HEETT 00 150195 5600 250500 2025700 1481 185,700 1.480.133,000
S0E 883,000 0 s 600 147 550, 700 2149200 B1.848 300 1471003700 1502 404 400
o1 377 500 a1 s 500 145523 600 225500 54,730,800 1560066400 1506 693,600
80,154,600 417 510,700 145,020,500 et e 51,902,200 15596 800,100 1844 BIT 000
1,103 ,825,158 445 153,600 145,230,300 2312200 52,003,500 1,743,343,0B5E 1,820,357 ,800
1.204 918,008 318,820,200 181515400 4,358 500 54,931,700 1,952,583, 906 1.251,553,000
1.271.4580,500 534 718,700 158 265 300 2580500 55,850,800 2035 .936,800 2.0 24d 500
1,455 508,900 SEE 262 400 140,726 500 7 BEG 300 54,330,800 2256085000 7385 161,600

53Z3
=
4
445

104 21%
10 45%
P 4E
ST

BT
SE 10
1000
100 34%
100 04%

In 2OAE, thes Town of Menasha, in e snliraly, inGcorporated inta The Wilsge of Fox Crosaing: theralons, lalishcal dala prion fo Facal year 2017 & ram the Town al Manaskhs

Page 145



Schedule T

Village of Fox Cressing, Wisconsin
Property Tax Rates - All Direct and Overlapping Governments
Last Ten Fscal Years

Pai 54,000 of Equaliped Valusd '™

Village Direct Rates Cnriapging Rabes ™
Db Weenah Memasha  Appleton  Valley

Lewy  Fiscal  General Service TID  Wilage School  School  Schood  Techmical County  State

Hear Near Fund Pund Local Total Déstricd _ District  Disiric  College & State  Credd
2013 2014 423 15 SES .60 1036 LEL a7 G168 148}
2014 2015 429 128 8.57 BES 11 854 112 B (1.42)
015 206 437 131 557 857 1137 0 &l 111 B02 {154
2018 amy 4.7 130 Sk 8.0 127 .08 iz &0 1158}
2017 18 4 131 0 5.5z TS 1138 8.7 1.08 568 (167}
2018 e 4.0 T e 5.3 V.2 11.40 il 16 Sl {1.58)
w01 0 3n7 101 048 5.06 B0 1154 132 10 830 (142
2050 02 3 76 09 03 501 TB 1154 7 6 099 S48 (133
20 Mz 374 0EE 030 a.86 A8 116 758 080 486 (1)
2022 023 417 08 028 5.39 T4 1168 T 6 0.80 486 (131

Per 51,000 of Assessed Valued
Villige Direct Ralus Cwarlapping Rabes "
Dabi Weanah  Menmiha  Applalon  Valky

Lewy  Fiseal  Genarsl  Servies  TID  Wilage Schesl  School  School  Tethaieal County  State

Yaar Year __ Fund __ Fund __ Local _ Todal District_ _District __ District__College & Stabe _ _ Credit
2013 2014 413 126 5.3 B34 arr 870 1.88 580 (1.386)
2014 015 473 136 545 8% 1123 045 111 805  {140)
2015 2018 42 152 5.55 pEE 1m 4104 112 BO06 (160}
2016 T 4 76 133 550 819 1162 035 1.14 B 11 {161}
207 & 425 1% b6 G4 THS 11.50 LR Lig TR {1.88)
2018 s 472 IRES T 5.45 41 1212 912 108 565 (164)
018 2020 400 105 048 523 T3 1202 BET 108 551 {148}
20 2021 378 0Es a1 8.01 T 118 7 .5 818 (132
2001 Mz 373 08¢ 020 404 748 1168 70 090 484 {131
20 20y Jd4 L 024 445 6.81 1187 7AS 060 442 (1.2

Hote:
1) Tha Willag of Fizs Crossing's Iy B rasimictid by levy Bmits imecssd by Be Stats of Wisconsin
2.] The Willage of Fox Crossing's Equalzed Tax Rate is calcuated by using e Assessed Tax Fale Smes Fe Assossment Ratio (ot the actual vake)

1] werlapping rales sre those of other gosemments o technical colfeges fra apply 1o property owners wiln the Wilage of Fox Crosming. Only one
oraTlapping soncol disiniel e will apply oa Village of Fox Crossing peogsity swmied

In E01E the Town of Menasha, in s enbrety, moorporated imia the Village of Fox Crosming therefone, stabsical data pnor io hecal year 20107 1= Fapge 146
Trosmn thia Torn of Menasia
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FlmberdyClark Conpaorabion
Badgars | & 11 LLC
loushmark on Wes] Prospscl
Thomas & WWright
Comimiindy Firsl Cradi Linin
Syrmahme Fes Estale LG
Thedacarnz

Claarwalid Faisir
Ksurpecsencs Cantar

Hame

Kimberty-Clark Conporabon
Badgers | &Il LLC
Tharmas WiTight
TimacFumark Oin Wesl
ECA

Claarwalin Faisr
Surrshm Real Ealate LLC
Pierce MFG
Heunmecsmnes Cantar LLC

‘Warshouss Spaciabel

Seiedule §

Village of Fox Cressing, Wisconsin

Frincipal Taxpayers
Decembar 31, 2022

Peacasng ol Tats Fukr FT

Hasers of Beaneas Amapmand Valus  fesssaed Valua Egqualrad Take

Imsurance L BH% £ BS504. 000 £ B3 =202 000
Faper Produnts Marlaoturing 215T% 57518 400 57385700
iz Buildings 15T% a5 508 300 A5 232 400
Fetrement Lang Complex 1.58% D 100 3 SE B0
ResidentbialMulli Family Living 125% 31 gar 400 31,530,100
Finanzial Inshinlcn 1.234% 26303 W0 20333000
RessrjerlialWduili Farmky Living 050% HLSHH DG HABDAOD
Wi ioal DEA% 14,518,400 14,488 500
Paper Producsy Manuladurning D45% 11,145 500 11,131 700
Medzal 047% MLTEE G LTHLMED
TATALS 13.81% 3 3N0BEGD0 3 Nd 100

Brincipal Taxpamrs
Town of Merasha, Wisconsin
December 31, 302

Peavars ol Tatal i ik

Hagers of Bieaness Amprmped Valus  fesssard Valug Egqualizad Wake

Fapsr Producis 15% - S2pEzM0 % 48 G348 400
CiTice: Buildings 27T0% 38 551,200 AT 490 400
RécaidariialMuti Familky Living 154% 22 408 30 198 00D
Retivesuant Lvng Complex 145% 20575 500 10683 500
Faper Produots 104% 15 104, 000 14173700
Paper Pridas 0% 13 40 400 12 £31 400
Femaafertialfuili Farmky Livieg 0E5% 1237500 11507700
Fre & Uhiiy Truck Bodes 0% iR by e 0455, 700
Kadzal nrits 0,380 300 8,703 400
Warehausng ET BT0E B0 0106300
TOTALS 14,365 5 IE253.300 3 185,504 500

“The Vilgge of Fas Cirasing's Equakoed Tas Anbs is calountsd by imisg the Asseassd Tax Rong tmes e Asesssmeni Ralo (nol the actial aales)

In A8, e o = mila
thes Torwm oF Mlenasha.

o e Village of Fas © ki poeed A Foecal yaai 2000 & Bom

Paps W7



Year
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2018

2021

Fiscal
Year
13
4
2015
16
17
2018
219
30

2z

Todal Tas
Lewy®
#8406
1818136
7Bz 248
8,116,555
B2F115
B 48 B2
875 sy
9,146,402
9, TE0,433

10,063, 645

Schedule §

Village of Fox Crossing, Wisconsin
Property Tax Levizs and Collections

Tofal Tax
Cellections
as of 12031°

T .03e
rar3s
T 480,181
B 116 085
B 220,700
2453 180
B 724 931
B 148,245
B 7T8,ERS
10,055,429

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Tolal
Call=clions

as Parganl of
Current Lewy
bR

9. 5%

40 67

BN T
40ty

BN T
99,.59%
100.00%

90 B9%
90.E2%

Outstanding  Culbstanding

Diedinguent
Parsonal
Property

Taxes
4367
e
2058

470
1,415
TE
1,026
154
S48
8216

Dalinguent
Taxes as
Parcand
of Lavy
0.06%:
0.06%
0.01%
0.01%
0,02%
0.01%
4.01%
0.00%
001%
0.08%

Collections
In
Subsequenl
Years
3824
3860
2038

P
Az
M
205

(G29)

Tolal Colleclions bo Dabe*

AMoUng
1 A80.852
AT 988
TaE2 188
B11E 316
B221,022
B4 451
B7ES 126
B, 146,245
B,77a,885
10,054,500

Percentage
af Lewy
.50%
.5
29,09 %
89,99 %
29, 99%
89,99 %
59,99%
B9.69%
B9.69%
B9.01%

Mote: Winnebago County purchases all unoollected taxes from the Village excepl for defnguent persanal properly taxes. The Village is responsible
far the colestion of all persanal property taxes.

*Includes Village partion of the Tax Incremental District lesy

In 3016, the Town af Menasha, in ils entirety, incorparated inbo the Village of Fax Crossing; therefore, statistical data prior ba fiscal year 2017 is from

ke Tawn of Menasha

Fage 143



Schecule 10

Village of Fox Crossing, Wisconsin

Dutstanding Debt by Type
Last Ten Fiscal Years
Governmental
Activilies Business-Type Activities
Revenue Bonds
General
Gamaral Ckbgabon Tetal

Feezal Qibligation Bonds for Litilgy Grand Zhate Grand Chute Grand Chuta  Grand Chute Frimary
Foar Ciabit Dabk Rewanue Sonds™  Bonds 1891 Bonds 19§32 Bords 2004 Bongs 2009 Gipwarnmant
2013 10 550 645 B 706 BER 13 564 457 - - 0 250 5,201 581 =8 308,008
2014 11,033,078 10,581,807 12,517 801 - - 186 2048 4 BOE G5 I3 255 B89
2015 10,390, 547 10,499,138 12,704,743 - - 167.ar3 4 B&5d. 743 38.272,0:3
Z0E B 233,227 8,708,050 11,457 525 - - 14E.856 4,285 535 33,922 562
017 B 352,732 BAT2.316 13,728,675 - - 129256 4 [Rearry ELE: L
2018 B G583 DOE 10,084,130 14 328 025 - - 105 147 3 p04 8572 A7 248 o1
2018 & 740 5 10867 019 16 934 572 - - OB 408 302415 40,923 112
2020 16201 BTE 11,802 313 22400 pap - - HT 288 3192 155 = B e
2021 15,268 742 18 353 508 20,733 X5 - - 454473 2873700 E5.275,TTA
2022 16,040,712 17,731,305 14,081 402 = = 2303 2 54B 707 55423 156

**This amount excludes praceeds of the 1881, 1893, 2004 and 2009 bonds thal were directly paid b Grand Chute Menasha Weast Sewerage Commission.

In 2016, the Toen of Menasha, in iis enbrety, nocorparated info the Village of Fox Crossing; thercfore, statistical data prior to fiscal year 2017 is from the
Town of Menasha,

Fage 143



Calendar ¥ear

Ending 1331
203
2014
205
2016
207
2018
2018
2020
2021
202z

General
Dutatlanding
Debt
20,317,517
21,814,885
20,728,685
17,830,276
17,895,045
18,007 2197
20,397 640
28,083,589
31,623,430
337720107

Schecule 11

Village of Fox Crossing, Wisconsin
Ratio of Outstanding Debt to Equalized Valuation
Debt per Capital, and Debt to Personal Income
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Equalized

Valuation *

1,384 275 300
1,434 553 800
1,469,133 800
1,502, 4494 400
1,578, 693 800
1,644 537 000
1,820,357 800
1,851,555,000
2,029,944 500
2,285,161 600

Percent of Cebt

T
Equakized
Waluation

1.48%
1.51%
1.41%
1.19%
1.13%
1.16%
1.12%
1.44%
1.568%
1.48%

Estimaied Debt Per

Population*
18,582
18,824
18,865
18,741
18,8592
19,028
19,084
18,090
18,258
18,011

Capita
1,093.40
1,160.58
1, 11062

B58.74

BT 23

50886
1,066.83
1.471.14
1,643.71
1,77E45

Detaits regarding tha Villaga's cuistanding detd can ba found in the notes 1o financlal statemants,

" Sae Schadula & Tor tha equal@ed wakation schedule,

" Sae Schadule 18 for the population data and pereenal iIncoma data

Perganal
Income**

346,828 280

358,387 370
374,353 887
375878302
372,892 584
404 403 489
423,052,254
426,273,279
441,353,752
LI

Percentage of

Pergomnal
Income
5.B6%
6.03%
5.54%
4 77%
4 BO%
4.70%
4 B2%
B.58%
TAT%
i

In S8, thie Towen of Menasng, in its andrety, INComparatad mho the Vilage of Fox Crossing; theredore, statistical data pror o Niscal year

ZO7 |8 from thea Town of Manasha,

Fage 150



Jurisdiction
Direct Dehbt

Villagpe of Fox Crossing®

Overlapping Debt

Fea Walley Technical College Disirict

Winnebaga County

Mermsha Joinl Schoal District

Meesnah Jont School Disirict

Appleton Area School District
Todal Overlapping Debl

Todal Direct and Overlapping Debt

Schetule 12

Dbt
Dutstanding

¥ 16,040,712

3,580,000
3,253,823
21,217, 02
150,850,000
&, 580,000

3 265,370,805

$ 281,411,817

Village of Fox Crossing, Wisconsin
Computation of Direct and Overlapping Debt
December 31, 2022

Percent
Applicable to the
Village of Fox
Crossing

100, 00%

4.32%
12.85%
3.AT%
2B.55%

0.08%

Estimate Share of
Debi & Overlapping
Dbt
Applicable to the
Willage of Fox
Crossing

$ 16040,712

2,747 0BE
2888116
6,783,110
43,008,225
5,085

3 55,618,618

$ 860,330

Mate: The percent of debt applicable ta the Vilage of Fax Crossng is based on the percentage of the Vilage of Fox Crossing's
egualized valus in the taxng junsdiction to the iotal axing urisdiction’s egualized value,

Sources: Oher jurisdiction infarmation was abtained directly from those entities

Faga 131



Berwdub 13

Village of Fox Crossing, Wisconsin
Computation of Laga| Deli Bargin

Liasd Tasn Flscal Yaars

FuE] okl s ik AT Fb] Fub] i firal Filr ]
Equabibe) Vs =l Aesl s
e §OLMM PR B L4 5E000 B 04SN INAGND B N SO4400 8 STRESSEI0 B LELEIN000 B LENLISTAID B 109 SS000 § 2OISSM45N B 29180 800
Creid et Fims (1 Pt of
Eyekesd Vuhale (A Hoorain
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Schedule 14
Village of Fox Crossing, Wisconsin
Revenue Bond Coverage

Water and Sewer Utility
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Drirect Direct Het Revenus Debt Service Requirements
Fiscal Operating  Investment  Operating  Available for Required  Coverage
Yoar Rewenues Income Expenses Debt Service Principal Interest Total Coverage Rate
2013 8,562 007 19840 5,154 558 3448 289 1,070,000 507 E3E 1,677 B3 189720458 219
2014 8 AT0,560 &1,237 5491256 2,540 841 1,130,000 429 FIE 1,559, 2% 1,849 045 1.89
2015 8,813,000 51,808 5842074 2,822 73 1,240,000 333817 1.573,817 1,887,308 1.79
2018 8774 B75 56 428 5,881,206 2,850,087 1,285,000 306,003 1.581,003 1,888,753 1.79
2117+ B.848,857 103, 06e 5,858,574 3092452 1,345,000 357,240 1.702,240 2,127 B0D 1.82
20148 8,858,141 161,158 5,B96 947 3,022,353 1,440,000 389,840 1,839,800 2,280,888 1.64
2019 8,744 E19 188,231 5,887,745 2,855,105 1,605,000 £02 058 1.987 058 2,406,323 1.48
2020 8,084,807 117,082 5,711.069 3,500,820 1,615,000 606,008 2221008 2,776,261 1.58
2021 B,056,616 130,706 5,525,867 3,6881.457 1,580,000 566,194 2,156,194 2,685,242 1.70
2022 8,302,736 253,321 5,695 424 3,860,833 1,630,000 521,286 2151286 2,689,108 1.7a

Moda: Datals regarding the Village's autstanding dabd can ba found in the actes o fnancial stalemants.  Direct operating axpansas do nod includa
Insarast

* Decembar 31, 201 T financial statemants ncluded axpanses redated to the 441041010 praject, in the ameund of 3570 576, in the aperaling eepenss
calegory, alfough they related 1o capiial cutlay. For comparabibty, these costs have been remaved in the schedule above to accurately reflect the
opcraling capenses for 3017,

In 3016, the Town af Menasha, in its entinety, incorporated into the Village of Fax Grossing; therefore, statistical data prior ta fiscal year 2017 is fram
the Town of Menasha
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Schecule 15

Village of Fox Crossing, Wisconsin
Ten Largest Water Users
Year Ending Desember 31, 2022

Theousamds
of Galkons Wlarier
Hams Hatwre of Business
1 Eimberdy-Clark Faper Producis Manslfaoluring 45 203 e N
2 Fierca Manuiaciuaning Fare & Lty Truck Badss 24584 137 843
3 Essfy Prolesmonal Hypens “aper Froducts Manatactunng s 25 0
4 1040 Crapman Awe LLC Flacila; Manuraciuring T2 41,311
5 Graal Nodhern Conlane Corrugaled Containe Mamiachrer 5,135 R
6 Crofsman Vilage Anks Aparierenl Comphex 4 535 37188
T Sara Ineumnea ST 5§ 035 36,504
B R Lews S Less LLC Aipariren] Complex hfan] F18M
0 Fhaal Farmn Ftail £37T .34
10 Rankin Maenssha Hokdings Aparimen] Complex g4 A
Tedal of Tan Lamgéesl Retal Lisar 133772 | | £33,73
Tiotal Waler Hilled I AN i £ S 05
Ten Largest as Percient of Tolal 'Water Billed % 14%
HISTORICAL WATER USAGE DALY DEMAND STATISTICS
| Hemiu v 5 o Qallones) (Eousands of galiors per day)
Last Ten Fiscal Yiears Last Ten Fiscal Years
AT g Baimium A G
Calersdar Gallors Gallana Cadandar Daiky Daily Fared Sysbam
Xear Efied  Pumped Year Demared Demared Capacity
2013 600,323 04 T4T k] 2451 3550 =]
214 841 B3 246 06l Aind 2430 3550 1]
2018 Tie 572 254,120 iy L] 2 465 3335 =4 ]
2016 TiR 11T 15 306 AHE 2507 3340 =]
2017 rou = a1 i 2478 3,52 L8 1]
2018 BA5 280 &30 503 il ] 2437 A7 =]
2% BEEADT 36, 780 200A 2293 337 E.80
201 &86,200 234 735 020 2184 2734 =4 ]
201 63T 243 NEERE g | 2118 3,194 =]
2023 G B [l Jrarr 2074 3,31 H

Sounce. Fon Crossng Utiies warler biling reconds

I 2015, the Town of Menasha, in s epbrety, noomoraied imo the Villsge of Fos Crossing therefore, sisishoal dala pnor o hscal
year 204 7T i from e Town of Menasha



Schecule 16

Village of Fox Crossing, Wisconsin
Demographic Statistics
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Village af Fox Annual Average
Fisial Crossing Personal AGI Unemployment
Tear Bopulation™  lngome = Ber Return ® Bate ™
2013 18,532 348,628,260 55,000 6.4
2014 18,624 353,387,370 56,410 5.2
M5 18,665 374,353,867 57.824 4.1
2018 18,741 373,678,302 60,408 3.5
2ms 13,69z 372582584 0,820 in
204 19,028 404, 403 455 3828 27
2m# 19,084 432,052,254 4,401 29
2020 19,080 476273278 5 4440 55
2021 19,238 441,383,752 TOOET 33
2022 19,011 i i 25

""" wWisconsin Department of Administration

" Wisconsin Department of Revenue, A3 far all returns fied for Village of Fox Crassing residents
* Wisconsin Department of Workforee Develapmend, annual rates for the Oshkash-Mesnah
Metrapolitan Stalistical frea, not seasonally adjusied.

In 2018, the Town of Menasha, inits ertirety, incarporated into the Vilage of Fox Crossing:
therefore, stalislical data prior ta fiscal year 2017 is from the Town of Menasha.
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Siehidubk 17

Village of Fox Cressing, Wisconsin
Principal Industrial and Commescial Emoloyers

Decembsr 31, 2022

Comparnry Mams Prodect ar Servise
1 Fiems Manlacining Fires g Ly Trck marafsctuns
2 Sacuta na Co Insurance
1 Mimberty Cark Papar Procucts blanracursr
4 Mespaha Schonl Disine Educanan
3 Musmah 1" s P Producs Hemfecira
A et horham Comp Farkagng
T Commanity Fint Credi Linon Firancial iretiuson
L] [ =1, P Producs Hemfecira
] Faveram | Lypan fpal poper oo man-iscioner
10 MELRGSSENeE SrmD Faan Cand

Sraich Hobwar W Hard Dabl Seoowing e silage Dipartmants

Erincipal Industrial and Commsircial Employers

Decembsr 31, 2012

Eompdmg Mame Brmd st Seoko
1 HamDaE Ol Corporaion P Proaucis Manrisouner
2 Fiarca Marrslechinmg Fu i UNEY Trock Masuled e
3 RR Donesbey (ot D) Frimang, packagng ard maiing
4 Foilh Technohsgess Ebsctrizal Conmiecig
3 Miron Conalrechon Conalnchon
fa oA T Fape Frocucts kararscaran
T Cedu Tiss Cog P Proouis Manrisouner
L] Filnay Bdarwvas Inc B g = vl Ve e
9 Outiook Craghicy Friving, Malling & Comesring
10 Sne KT Corporatn Cawmsgnis] Corianer Marlaciiier

Soerer Aohard W Mard Debd Torosing snd 'sibge Depariments.

¥ moume Local Seea | o ) v of W ¥

Percemiage of

Mumbsar of ke Fox Waley
Esiphyyiss apea”

1000 DA

= DA%

1,000 DA

am DT

3 oS

> b

00 DoE

e DS

D b

150 DO

Percemiage of

Mumbsar of iha Fox Waley
Esiphyies araa”

AB4E 1.77%

1p00 1465

2441 1,10%

1,000 Dudird

1,000 DA

SN DATHR

513 ik

40 OIS

I D1

Mz D1F%
A i N panah

In 22140, the Toren of klenasha, in iy enbirety, inporpospied info e Wilge of Fo Crossng: ferefons, slmisicel dods prgr io fiscan

it 2011 @ Tom Bae Town of Marsshi.

“Thene and 2 ohermarmiary Sohooks Koa e o ine Villags. The fgund shosn s e numier of enphrpses Srpowed THougsor e

Massha Joint Schonl Dliedrict



Schedule 18

Village of Fox Crossing, Wisconsin
Schedule of Insurance in Force
G6M1/2022-5/312023

. ‘
Iype of Coversgs Carrier Coverage Eramewm
Public Entity Lizbulity (Public Officials, Community insurance Comoration £ 3,000,000 £1,000 dod £ 103,350

Law Enforcarnant, Ganeralfisa Liakilly) Aagis Corparagion

Public Employea Thafl Aagis Carporaion £ 500000 55,000 ded 5 2421
Moy & Seciriine, e -] 50000 5500 ded
Money & Securites. Culside premses. £ S0.000 500 ded
Canlrastan Egidpiranl Sadeztivia |RSUrANGH -] 3,604 035 51 000 del 5 9428
Buikdings. Pemonal Properly and Properly Sadective |naurance £ 20.BETSED 51000 dad ] 31,707
n the Open
Auto [Comprehersive & Collmion) Salective |naurance -] TASE 748 51,000 ded § 25408
Boiler and Machinery Lolectve Insurance £ 20967589 51,000 dod incuded above
Warkers Compansalian Aegm Carparalion g 100000 Ea Acciderd § 183570
Community Insurance Comoration £ 500000 Policy. Limit
Banchenark Insurancs Company 5 100000 Ea Emploves
Storage Tank Third Party Liabikby® S B Farsher £ 1,000.000 510,000 ded g 3580
Ficod and Earthquake Selective Insuranca £ 10,000,000 525000ded  included above

" Thi is Tor a 2 year pramium
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Population

Ared Sguare Miles
Agrss - Land
Acres - \Waber

Altitude

Miles of Streets
Loval Sireuls
Artaral Collsdor Higireays

Humber of Street Lights

Water & Sewer LHility
Avaragn Humbsr of Cusiomars
Ay Daily W aler Consumplon
Milzs ol Waber Mairs
Mies of Sankary Mans
Waler Towers
Lt Etafions
Water Treatmenl Plargs
Resersoirs

Sourca: Vilage degartrnents

Schecule 19

Village of Fox Crossing, Wisconsin
Miscellaneous Statistics
December 31, 2022

Crganized: April 20, 2016
Form of Governmert: Board of Trusteas

2022
18,011

1412
8,064
ard

FO0-F0
Tzaa
28.26
1,186
9,363

2,173,521
13820
12417

3

&
3
3

Permanent Village Employees
Full Time
Part Tim=
Seasonal!CasualTemporary

Fire Pratection
Murnisar of Slalione
Murngsar of Fralighlem
Part-lirma
Fulklirme
Paid on-Call

Palice Protecton
Furnibvar of Stations
Piirriteiar of Fodics Officers

Parks and Recreation
Aoroage
Pumingr of Farks
Traiks [rrles)

Building Permils
Papmibs. e
Estmatsd Cosl of Consinaction

2022

ar
o
52

G
1%

k)

04T
16
1850

BG5S
3 167,345,549

Fage 158



Schecule 20

Village of Fox Crossing, Wisconsin
Operating Indicators by Function/Program

Functlon/Program 2022
General Government
Ewikding Permils Issuad B0
Bwiding Inspections conduciad 1.210
Police
Parking Vizlatans a6
Traffic Violatiors 4,545
Fire
Emergency respanses (non ERES) 412
Inspections:
Routine wisils 1,372
Tark program 1]
Certificate of Ocoupancies 1]
Campliance visils T
Special visits 1]
Muisarce Abalement Taskhonce 0
EME Calla Th4

Sounca; Vilage depariments

Amuymiss W5 CEp per year

FIII'IEIH!II'HP!EHIH‘I‘I

Refuse Collection
Redusa collectad (lons par day)
Recyclables colleched (lons per day)
Yard Washe collechad (ons per day)

Parks and Recraation
Park remals
Community Cerder rentals

Water
Miew cannectians
Waler Main breaks
Average daily consumption (thousandigallons)
Peak daily consumiplion (thawsand gallans}

Sewer (millions of gallons)
Avarage daily sewage trealmant [FaWR)
Average daily sewage trealrment [MMSC)

2022

2.4
1zm
16.56

-k

15
2,174
331

242
0
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Schecule 21

Village of Fox Crossing, Wisconsin
Capital Asset Statistics by Function/Program

FunctloniProgram 2022 Function/Program 2022
Police Fublic Works
Halicne 1 Sireeds (miles) 101.4
Pairal Units 14 Sireed Lights 1,186
Trathic Signals 46
[Fira
Saations £ Water
‘Water mans (mies) 1582
Parks and Recreation Fira Hydrants 1431
Acrcage 28047 Siorage capacity (thausand/galions) 3apd
Flaygraunds. 14
Baschall'Softball diamands ¥ Sower
Zoccerfootbal fickds ] Santary scwers (miles) 12417
Community Ceners 1 Sewage lift station force mains (mikes) &3
Treatment capacily (FWR] milionsigallons 131
SBltormwater Treatment capacily (MMW S ) millons/gallons 12.8
Pands 8
Sarmaaler Mans (miles) 51.85

Sourca: Vilage depariments
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eaerraral S imsi
Admrusizabicon
ALsesnng

Chark

Communiy Desstopment
Financa

information Technalogy
Municipal Towt
Palice

s

Cheiliars
Firn

s

Cheiliars

Firaligrilars
Pubisc Works
Pairics amd Racreation
Walar
SEwer

GRAMD TOTAL

Source. Vilage deparimenis

Schedule 22

Village of Fox Cressing, Wiseoensin

Full-Time Equivalent Village Government Employess By Function/Program
Last Ten in Fiscal Years

Inn 2006, the Teram ef kb I

o 5

Lanclicn/Frogrym
2013 2014 2015 i vy [ 0T 2018 20139 200 ranrg | 023
225 22 2.2 2.2 2.2 2 [N} e 2.0 200K 2 K
1.288 1.238 1288 0000 0000 000 QuDzd 0000 0000 0000
1851 1673 1E73 1747 1740 2 [} 2000 2000 2 0050 2 [}
405 4152 d.8250 anu a.1uz 4 Vel 4.7 4.X axr 2%
4] EET2 8542 BATE BATE 6353 E.115 .11z B.A15 8115
2 D 2000 2000 2 000 2 000 2 D 2000 3000 3000 % 0dnd
1.000 1.000 1.000 1000 1000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1000 1.000
26 000 2000 000 26 003 27 03 27 i 7000 000 20 003 20000
LA =8 6551 T84 a0z T3 &.678 4538 4528 483
% Diu} 000 a.000 5 000 5 000 5 0in} EA e 5000 5 000 5 0}
1.060 1.050 0500 &0 &0 0 G 0600 (=) 0E00 OG0
B84 SETS 11.888 1063 10623 1071 10772 15272 16 963 160G
10ET2 10,672 10572 10573 10573 10700 10673 10673 11 862 11.652
e i G404 6.ani 10 283 LiK: ) 100614 10.780 11065 11.308
BT a.7an A. 786 0 ThE i) 0 28T 2000 9000 2 000 B 0xl
4.7 4.7y d./ua avne a3 428 4280 a.7m8 a.ns 4.2
G5 842 B3 36T 103 ETD 101 H3 102711 10z 753 102377 106588 108 364 111.087
mils ¥. 1 vl Thes Village of Fas O a ik | data prioe b Eeacal pear 017 & frem the Tien of Mamsha
v & af thar job culws alleoabed i e waler, seser and slormesl s BT i . e abesw schesdule shows tha ful

T |
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ADDITIONAL REPORT



W KerberRose

Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance
and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance With
Government Auditing Standards

To the County Board
Village of Fox Crossing, Wisconsin

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United Slates of Amenca
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govemment Auditing Standards issued by the
Compircller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-ivpe
activities, each major fund, and tha aggreqgate remaining fund information of Village of Fox Crossing, Wisconsin,
(County) as of and for the year ended December 31, 2022, and the related notes to the financial statements,
which collectively comprize the County’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated
September 20, 2023

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our acdit of the financial statements, we considerad Village of Fox Crossing,
Wisconsin's internal control over financial reporting {intermal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements,
bul not for the purpose of exprassing an opinion on the effectiveness of Village of Fox Crossing, Wisconsin's
internal control. Accordingly, we do nol express an opinion on the effectiveness of Village of Fox Crossing,
Wisconsin's internal control.

A deficiency i internal controd exists when the design or operation of a contrel does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, © prevent, or delecl and correct,
misslatements, on a timely basis. A matertal weakness i a deficlency, or a combination of deficlencies, in internal
control, such that thera is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements
will not be prevented, or detected and cormected, on a timely basis. & signifcant defficiency Is a deficlency, or a
combination of deficlencles, in internal controd that is less severe than a material weakness, vel important enough
to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Cur consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this seclion
and was nol dasignad to dentify all deficiencies in ntemal contral that might be matarial weaknassas or
significant deficiancias, We identified a carlan deficiescy in internal control, described in the accompanying
schedula of findings and responses as items 2022-001 that we consider 1o be material weaknass.

Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Village of Fox Crossing, Wisconsin's financial
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracis, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the financial statemeants, However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an apinion. The resulis of our tests disclosed no
instances of noncompliance or oiher matiers that are required to be reported wnder Government Auditing
Standards

i AT L
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To the Village Board
Village of Fox Crossing, Wisconsin

Village of Fox Crossing, Wisconsin's Responses to Findings

Govermiment Audibing Standards requires the auditors to perform limited procedures on the Village's responses 1o the
findings ientified in cur aedit and described in the accompanying schedide of findings and rezponzes and corective
action plan. The Village's responses were not subjected o the other auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report s solely 1o describe the scope af cur testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion an the effectiveness of the Village's internal control or on

compliance, This report is an integral part of an audit perfformed in accordance with Government Auditing
Sfandards in considering the Villaga's infermal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not
suitable for any othar purpose,

Kerberfose SC

KerberRose SC
Certified Public Accountants

Cshkash, Wisconsin
Saplamber 20, 2023
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VILLAGE OF FOX CROSSING, WISCONSIN
Schadule of Findings and Responses
December 31, 2022

2022-001

Condition:

Criteria:

Cause;

Effiect:

Recommendation:

Management’s
Response:

Responsible
Official:

Anticipated
Completion Date:

Bank Reconciliations

The Village's internal contral environment has allowad for cash reconciliations to not be
prepaned timely.

The implementation of effective internal controls activiies should include timely
complefion of reconciliations of the Vilage's cash. This allows Village personnel 1o
detect possible misstatements in the Village's general ladger or bank accounts in a
timely manner. 164

The Village does not have a strong control environment that emphasizes control
activities to ensure its assats are nol msappropriated.

The Village could have its assets misappropriated or fraud to be perpetuated without
effective preventive and detective contrals,

Wa recommend the Village implament a strong infernal conbrol environmant that begins
with the Village Board. This will create a focus on the contral environment which will
protect the Village's assets.

The Village is awara af tha delay in imely bank reconciliations and will reviaw ils
intarnal contral structura to implement improvemants (o focus on protecting Villaga's
assals.

Jeramy Searl — Finance Director

The Village will remedy this in the sibsagueant fiscal year.

16



FOX _ ViLLAGE OF Fox CROSSING
CROSS[NC, PO RN TIOTING Fan (ERRTIOTI6

ARIOGING THE FOX CIT | wwrey fome rossngwi ooy

Corrective Action Plan

Financial Statement Findings

2022-001 — Bank Reconciliations — The Vilage is aware of the delay in timely bank reconciliations and will
review its intermal contral strecture to implement improvements to focus on protecting Village's assets.

Responsible Official — Jaremy S=arl, Financa Diraclor

Anticipated Completion Date — Tha Villaga intends o remady this iEsue in the subsequent fiscal year.
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